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The Prosecution submits these materials in compliance with the ORDER TO
THE PROSECUTION TO FILE DISCLOSURE MATERIALS AND OTHER

MATERIALS IN PREPARTION FOR THE COMMENCEMENT OF TRIAL
dated 1 April 2004.

In compliance with Order 1, a list of the pseudonyms of each witness the

Prosecution intends to call at trial appears under Cover Sheet 1.

In compliance with Order 2, a report indicating:

a. the number of witnesses for whom witness statements or summaries have
been disclosed;

b. the date upon which statement or summary was disclosed; and

c. the total number of pages of each statement or summary

appears under Cover Sheet 2.

In compliance with Order 3, a table appears under Cover Sheet 3 indicating:
a. asummary for each witness appearing on the list under Cover Sheet 1;
b. the count or counts in the indictment to which the witness will testify; and

c. an estimated length of time for the evidence in chief of each witness.

In compliance with Order 4, a table appears under Cover Sheet 4 detailing the

exhibits the Prosecution intends to tender in evidence at trial.

In compliance with Order 5, a copy of each documentary exhibit appearing in
the table under Cover Sheet 4 appears under Cover Sheet 5. As aresult of
technical difficulties the exhibits numbered 60, 80, 82, 83, 111,112 and 119
as noticed under Cover Sheet 4 have not been reproduced here. These items

will be provided as soon as possible.
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COMPLIANCE REPORT

Witnesses disclosed to date number 207. This chart shows:

The date of statement or summary
The date disclosure was made
To whom disclosure was made
The number of pages of each statement or summary

25/11/02

T17/04/03

N

30/07/03 MF, AK
28 /11/03 1/04/04 HN,MF,AK 1
TF2 - 002 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 3
30/07/03 MF, AK
11/01/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 6
19/11/02 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
TF2 - 003 30/01/03 17/04/03 HN 4
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 004 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
13/01/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 7
TF2 - 005 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
08/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
14/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 3
23/01/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 10
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24/01/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 1

TF2 - 006 27/11/02 17/04/03 HN 3
30/07/03 MF, AK

TF2 - 007 29/11/02 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK 3

10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK

TF2 - 008 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK

27/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1

9/02/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1

28/11/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 11

TF2 - 009 03/02/03 17/04/03 HN 2
30/07/03 AK MF

TF2 - 010 08/04/03 17/04/03 HN 2
30/07/03 MF, AK

29/11/03 16/02/04 HN,MF,AK 1

TF2 - 011 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF,AK

22/10/03 16/02/04 HN, MF,AK 3

21/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1

26/11/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 7

23/01/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 4

5/04/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 1

TF2 - 012 19/01/03 17/04/03 HN 5
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30/07/03 MF, AK
29/11/03 16/02/04 HN,MF, AK 1
TF2 - 013 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
16/11/02 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK 13
15/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
TF2 - 014 27/11/02 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
9/02/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
26/11/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 15
27/11/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 10
18/12/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 9
18/12/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 3
16/01/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 132
17/01/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 110
28/03/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 8
25/04/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 2
19/05/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 2
03/06/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 4
23/06/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 5
14/07/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 2




12/08/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 2
19/12/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 2
9/01/04 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 3
TF2 - 015 15/11/02 17/04/03 HN 10
30/07/03 MF, AK
19/11/03 16/02/04 HN 1
16/02/04 MF, AK
TF2 - 016 16/11/02 17/04/03 HN 8
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 017 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
18/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
2/12/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 8
18/12/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 3
18/12/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 6
17-18/01/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 2
27/03 /03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 4
25/04/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 2
17/01/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 33
18/01/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 27
18/01/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 21
TF2 - 018 24/11/02 17/04/03 HN 2




30/07/03 MF, AK

TF2-019 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MK,AK

TF2 - 020 26/11/02 17/04/03 HN 4
30/07/03 MF, AK

05/04/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1

29/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1

TF2 - 021 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK

04/02/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK 11

13/01/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK 9

05/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1

TF2 - 022 16/10/02 17/04/03 HN 8
30/07/03 MF, AK

27/01/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK 2

TF2 - 023 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK

16/10/02 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 7

TF2-024 19/01/03 17/04/03 HN 5
30/07/03 MF, AK

TF2 - 025 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK




16/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
23/10/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 9
TF2 - 026 18/11/02 17/04/03 HN 6
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 027 16/11/02 17/04/03 HN 10
30/07/03 MF, AK
15/01/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK 1
TF2 - 028 18/11/02 17/04/03 HN 6
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2-029 16/11/02 17/04/03 HN 10
30/07/03 MF, AK
5/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 4
15/01/04 16/02/04 HN
MF, AK
TF2-030 26/11/02 17/04/03 HN 4
30/07/03 MF, AK
05/04/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 2
TF2-031 26/11/02 17/04/03 HN 3
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2-032 19/01/03 17/04/03 HN
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 033 11/01/03 17/04/03 HN 9
30/07/03 MF, AK
19/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1




TF2-034 19/01/03 17/04/03 HN 10
30/07/03 MF, AK
29/11/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
TF2 - 035 31/01/03 17/04/03 HN 8
30/07/03 MF, AK
29/11/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
TF2-036 19/01/03 17/04/03 HN 5
30/07/03 MF, AK
28/11/03 26/04/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
TF2-037 27/11/02 17/04/03 HN 6
30/07/03 MF, AK
30/11/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
TF2 — 038 01/02/03 17/04/03 HN 6
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 039 19/11/02 17/04/03 HN 3
30/07/03 MF, AK
17/04/03 HN 10
10/01/03 30/07/03 MF, AK
21/11/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
TF2 — 040 11/01/03 17/04/03 HN 4
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 — 041 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
13/01/04 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
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17/11/02 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 6
TF2 - 042 10/01/03 17/04/03 HN 9
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 043 29/11/02 17/04/03 HN 10
30/07/03 MF, AK
28/11/03 16/02/04 HN 1
16/02/04 MF, AK
TF2 - 044 30/09/03 17/04/03 HN 8
30/07/03 MF, AK
19/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
TF2 - 045 18/11/02 17/04/03 HN 8
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 046 18/11/02 17/04/03 HN 10
30/07/03 MF, AK
14/01/04 16/02/04 HN 2
MF,AK
TF2 - 047 24/10/02 17/04/03 HN 9
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 — 048 17/11/02 17/04/03 HN 6
30/07/03 MF, AK
15/01/04 16/02/04 HN 1
MF,AK
TF2 - 049 16/10/02 17/04/03 HN 5
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 — 050 16/10/02 17/04/03 HN 2
30/07/03 MF, AK




TF2-051 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 052 23/10/02 17/04/03 HN 5
30/07/03 MF, AK
17/04/03 HN
18/10/02 30/07/03 MF, AK 5
13/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 2
TF2 - 053 19/11/02 17/04/03 HN 6
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 054 08/04/03 17/04/03 HN 2
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 055 10/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
13/11/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK 9
TF2 - 056 05/04/03 17/04/03 HN 3
30/07/03 MF, AK
01/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF,AK 1
TF2 - 057 05/04/03 17/04/03 HN 6
30/07/03 MF, AK
01/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
TF2 — 058 06/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 — 059 07/04/03 17/04/03 HN 2
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 — 060 07/04/03 17/04/03 HN 4
30/07/03 MF, AK
07/05/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
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28/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1

TF2 - 061 07/04/03 17/04/03 HN 2
30/07/03 MF, AK

TF2 - 062 07-08/04/03 17/04/03 HN 4
30/07/03 MF, AK

02/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1

TF2 - 063 09/04/03 17/04/03 HN 4
30/07/03 MF, AK

30/09/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK 11

07/05/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 2

29/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1

TF2 - 064 08/04/03 17/04/03 HN 3
30/07/03 MF, AK

28/11/03 16/02/04 HN, 1
MF, AK

TF2 - 065 08/04/03 17/04/03 HN 3
30/07/03 MF, AK

TF2 — 066 17/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK

TF2 - 067 06/04/03 17/04/03 HN 8
30/07/03 MF, AK

30/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1

TF2 - 068 17/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK

01/12/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
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06/04/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK S
TF2 - 069 06/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 -070 07/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 071 05/04/03 17/04/03 HN 5
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 072 17/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2 - 073 17/04/03 17/04/03 HN 1
30/07/03 MF, AK
7/04/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 6
TF2 - 074 06/04/03 17/04/03 HN 3
30/07/03 MF, AK
TF2-076 03/04/02 30/07/03 HN 2
MF, AK
TF2-077 21/07/03 30/07/03 HNMF, AK 1
TF2-078 07/04/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK 3
23/03/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK 1
TF2-079 21/07/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK 1
08/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 2
01/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 2
10-11/05/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 23
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15/05/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 23

TF2-080 08/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK 5
08/03/04 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 1

TF2-081 07/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK 4
30/09/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK 7

21/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 7

29 /01/04 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 1

TF2-082 21/07/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK 1
09/02/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK 1
08/05/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 25

TF2-083 21/07/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK 1
11/05/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 7

27/05/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 6
04/06/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 96
13/06/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 39

TF2-084 19/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK 2
TF2 - 085 19/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK 2
TF2 - 086 29/06/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK 5
TF2 - 087 21/07/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK 1
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21/05/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK

TF2 - 088 21/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
9/02/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK

TF2 - 089 21/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 090 20/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 091 23/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 092 21/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 093 20/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 094 20/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 095 23/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 — 096 29/06/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 097 20/05/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 098 20/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 099 22/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 100 23/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2-101 06/04/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
09/04/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
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TF2 -103 10/06/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 105 20/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 106 19/05/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 107 21/07/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 108 21/07/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
27/07/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK

TF2 - 109 28/06/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 110 27/06/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 -111 21/07/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
19/06/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK

29/06/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK

TF2 - 112 19/06/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2 - 113 17/06/03 30/07/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2-114 18/11/02 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2-115 10/04/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK
9/02/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK

TF2-116 04/08/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK
28/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK

29/03/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK
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TF2-117 20/05/03 18/11/03 | HN, MF, AK 4
TF2-118 15/07/03 18/11/03 | HN, MF, AK 4
20/08/03 18/11/03 | HN, MF, AK 5
TF2-119
24/09/03 18/11/03 | HN, MF, AK 3
TF2-120
23/09/03 18/11/03 | HN, MF, AK 3
TF2-121
TF2-122 20/09/03 18/11/03 | HN, MF, AK 1
TF2-123 23/09/03 18/11/03 | HN, MF, AK 3
TF2-124 09/05/03 18/11/03 | HN, MF, AK 10
02/12/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
TF2-125 17/11/03 18/11/03 | HN, MF, AK 1
07/08/03 26/04/04 | HN, MF, AK 3
24/09/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
TF2-126
11/10/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
01/10/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 2
TF2-128
13/10/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 2
TF2-129 9/02/04 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
1/10/03 26/04/04 | HN, MF, AK 5
9/10/03 26/04/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
TF2-131 25/09/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
11/10/03 16/02/04 | HN, MF, AK 1
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TF2-133 01/10/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
09/10/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-134 9/02/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-135 24/09/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
11/10/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-136 11/10/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
25/09/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2 -139 17/11/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2-140 29/06/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2-141 10/05/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2-142 06/09/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2-143 01/10/03 18/11/03 HN, MF, AK
TF2-144 07/04/02 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
05/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
15/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-145 30/06/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-146 14/09/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-147 15/07/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
19/03/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK
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TF2-148 10/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK

15/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-149 07/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-150 09/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
Tf2-151 10/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK

14/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-152 09/11/03 16/02/04 HN,MF, AK

15/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-153 07/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-154 07/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK

16/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-155 05/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-156 7/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-157 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-158 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK

18/02/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK
Tf2-159 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
Tf2-160 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
Tf2-161 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-162 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK

20/02/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK
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TF2-163 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
Tf2-164 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
Tf2-165 27/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-166 27/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
Tf2-167 27/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-168 27/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
T12-169 28/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-170 29/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-171 29/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-172 29/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK

3/03/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-173 29/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-174 30/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-175 30/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-176 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-177 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-178 03/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
Tf2-179 23/01/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-180 20/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-181 28/11/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
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TF2-182 21/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-183 22/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-184 22/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
03/03/04 1/04/04 HN MF, AK
TF2-185 21/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-186 21/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-187 9/02/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-188 9/02/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
25/9/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK
11/11/03 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-189 24/09/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
11/10/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-190 09/05/03 16/02/04 HN,MF, AK
28/02/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK
05/03/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK
13/03/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-191 10/10/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-192 3/12/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-193 22/05/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
Tf2-194 09/10/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-195 16/01/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
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TF2-196 9/02/04 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-197 19/06/03 16/02/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-198 18/02/04 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-199 20/02/04 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-200 19/02/04 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
04/03/04 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-201 20/02/04 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-202 11/11/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-203 27/11/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2- 204 25/09/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
11/11/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-205 24/09/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
18/03/04 HN, MF, AK

11/10/02
TF2-206 25/09/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
11/11/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-207 01/10/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
13/10/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2- 208 01/10/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
11/11/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
TF2-209 24/09/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK
11/11/03 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK

20

c\):)
DA

4



TF2-210 3/03/04 18/03/04 HN, MF, AK 3
TF2-211 21/05/03 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK 3
TF2-212 15/07/03 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK 8
TF2-213 02/12/03 1/04/04 HN

1

1/04/04 MF, AK

TF2- 214 22/07/03 1/04/04 HN, MF, AK 3
TF2-216 16/04/04 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 3
TF2-219 22/01/04 26/04/04 HN, MF, AK 4
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COVER SHEET 3

WITNESS SUMMARIES



PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY
TF2 - 001 1&2 lhr. Witness saw two police officers being killed by Kamajors. Witness learned that 3
5 soldiers who were being held as prisoners were killed by Kamajors. Witness saw
6 Kamajors looting.
7
TF2 - 003 6 lhr. Witness brought by uncle and initiated in Kenena, 1997 by Kamo Brima (rebels
8 captured father and killed grandfather), told was joining for “protective reasons”,
received military training in Zimmi. Witness fought in Kenema, Zimmi; describes
the big , men of CDF as Sheku Kalloh, BJK, C.O. Mamoh, Musa Idrissa, Tagawa —
from whom witness took commands, states others on top of these. Witness states
other initiators included Kunduwai Bangura, Kam Munihu, Kam Bimba and many
others.
TF2 - 004 1&2 1hr. Witness joined the Kamajors in 1996 at the age of 10. Witness states that, in Zimmi,
3&4 they shot an Alpha man and burned his wife alive. Witness states that there were
6 many civilians in Zimmi and the ones that worked with the Junta were punished.
8 Witness was initiated and received weapons training. Witness will testify that he

fought in Telu Bongor, Pujehun town and Zimmi. Witness states that most of the
fighters were older than he but some were younger. Witness saw HINGA NORMAN
in Telu Bongor and Zimmi. Witness states that all the big bosses reported to HINGA
NORMAN.




| PSEUDONYM [ COUNT(S) [ TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 - 005

1&2
6
8

4hrs.

States that NH was in charge of everything and was a one man show; also that he
commanded the death squad along with ALLIEU KONDEWA and MOININA
FOFANA. Witness personally heard HINGA NORMAN instructing Kamajors to
target civilians who worked with the junta or mined for them and treat them as
enemies. Witness has knowledge that child soldiers as young as 12 were used in
fighting.

HINGA NORMAN issued a press release stating that all those working with the RUF
would be seen as collaborators and would be treated as the enemy. Witness
personally heard HINGA NORMAN instructing Kamajors to target civilians found to
have been working with the junta or mining for them and treat them as enemies.
Witness’ Commander told him that many civilians were killed in the battle for
Tongo.

Witness was told that HINGA NORMAN had instructed frontline commanders to kill
anybody who ventured out in the highways during the Black December operations.

TF2 - 006

3&4

lhr.

Witness was fleeing Bo when Kamajors attacked. Kamajors accused Witness of
being a rebel and amputated four of his fingers with a machete. Witness saw child
soldiers amongst those who attacked him.

TF2 - 007

1&2
3&4

lhr.

Witness was in Fengehun village, Bo, in 1998 when Kamajors mutilated and killed
his father. He saw his father tied up by a rope, with blood oozing from his head as a
result of his ear having been cut off. Witness’ father was subsequently taken to a hut
in the village, tied up and burned along with the hut.

TF2 - 008

4hrs

Witness will testify that the War Council met daily to discuss complaints relative to
the conduct of Kamajors during the war. Witness states that “a good number of
atrocities committed by Kamajor Operational Field Commander had the blessing of
HINGA NORMAN.” Witness reports that ALLIEU KONDEWA threatened to kill
members of the War Council because they were checking on Kamajors.

Witness personally heard HINGA NORMAN give instructions to do whatever was
needed to capture Koribundo, including burning the town. Witness heard HINGA
NORMAN say, at Base Zero during a speech: “if you see police, cut off his hand.”
Witness will give evidence that HINGA NORMAN, at a town hall meeting in Bo,
took responsibility for the killing of 2 civilians.




| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 - 009 6 lhr. Witness joined the Kamajors in 1996 and was initiated by Kamoh Brima. He fought
8 for three years in Tunkia, Gbima and Kenema. HINGA NORMAN knew he was a
soldier because a list of names was sent to him along with a request for food supplies.
Witness was one of the several child soldiers in his unit.
TF-10 1&2 1hr. Witness was a home with her husband when the Kamajors came into her house and
3&4 took her husband out and murdered him. She was also present when the Kamajors
5 looted houses.
6
TF2 - 011 6 1hr. Witness heard HINGA NORMAN openly said at Base Zero and in Bo town in 1998,
that he should be held responsible for the excesses of the Kamajors.
TF2-012 6 lhr. Witness was present at a meeting in Koribondo Barray where HINGA NORMAN
commended Kamajors and admitted that he sent them to capture Koribondo. HINGA
NORMAN went further to say that he was responsible for the destruction of
Koribondo and not the Kamajors. HINGA NORMAN said he was annoyed at seeing
a lot of houses standing since he was only expecting to see 4 houses. He further said
the Kamajors were not to be blamed for the burning of houses or looting because
they were only acting under his instructions. Also present was MOININA FOFANA.
Witness saw Kamajors looting and burning houses.
TF2 - 013 1&2 2hr. Witness fought at Tongo (Black December Operation) and saw Kamajors bring Chief
6 Conteh not far from his guard post and then return with only his head and organs.
8 Witness had orders to kill persons with weapons in their home. Witness fought with
a lot of small boys.
TF2-014 6 4hrs. Witness was instructed at Base Zero to kill all captured rebels and collaborators as a
result of which there were many such killings.
Witness saw looting at several locations and heard HINGA NORMAN give direct
orders that certain targets were to be looted.
TF2 - 015 1&2 1hr. Witness was in Tongo area when it was attacked. Kamajors gathered civilians at the
3&4 NDMC HQ, segregated and removed various individuals throughout the night
6 (particularly those in uniform) and hacked others to death. The following day,
Witness fled the HQ and was traveling amongst a group of people when they were
stopped at a bridge in Kamboma by Kamajors. Kamajors ‘chopped’ or shot all of
these people as well as the Witness and left him for dead.
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| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) [ TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 - 016

1&2
3&4
6

1hr.

Witness saw Chief Aruna Konowa, tied and paraded around town by the Kamajors
and later saw the disemboweled, dead body of Chief Konowa.

TF2 - 017

1&2
5
6

4hrs.

Witness was told by HINGA NORMAN that if the Kamajors succeeded in
eliminating the RUF, they would run Sierra Leone for three years. Witness will
testify to looting and burning, the use of child soldiers, and that HINGA NORMAN
said that “rape was a part of war and civilian women were rations.” Looted items and
a captured soldier were handed over to HINGA NORMAN in presence of MOININA
FOFANA and ALLIEU KONDEWA. HINGA NORMAN told Witness to kill any
civilian in Bo who was a collaborator. HINGA NORMAN made these statements in
the presence of ALLIEU KONDEWA and MOININA FOFANA.

Witness heard HINGA NORMAN (with MOININA FOFANA and ALLIEU
KONDEWA present) say that Bo Town, Koribundo and Freetown Highway (which
included Taiama and Kebe Town) were to be attacked, any rebels or collaborators
were to be killed and no Prisoners of War were to be taken.

HINGA NORMAN, in the presence of ALLIEU KONDEWA and MOININA
FOFANA, told Witness to loot houses in Bo and return the loot to HINGA
NORMAN. Looted items and a captured soldier were handed over to HINGA
NORMAN in presence of MOININA FOFANA and ALLIEU KONDEWA.

TF2 - 020

1&2
3&4

lhr.

Witness was fleeing Bo after the Kamajor takeover and saw the Kamajors use
machetes to hack 5 people, 4 people died as a result. Witness was threatened as part
of a group of civilians.

TF2 - 021

1&2

00 3 O

lhr.

Witness was captured and initiated in 1996 (along with 6 others, the oldest was 11
years old). ALLIEU KONDEWA initiated Witness who says he joined because he
didn’t have a choice. Witness saw Kamajors kill a Fullah man and the murdering of
police officers in Kenema. Witness was in Freetown for two weeks when he was
brought to Freetown to fight. In Bonthe district, Witness heard HINGA NORMAN
say “if you capture an enemy, kill him.” Witness fought in the Masiaka-Port Loko
highway, Kenema, Daru and Freetown.

Witness will testify that HINGA NORMAN came to Bo to talk to soldiers. HINGA
NORMAN used to visit all the Kamajors camps in the area. HINGA NORMAN
encouraged him to fight and supplied him with arms and food.
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| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 — 022 1&2 lhr. Witness was a Tongo resident when the Kamajors came. Witness saw Kamajors
3&4 slaughter civilians with machetes. He saw many others shot when Kamajors opened
6 fire on them, and he later saw the dead bodies of others. He heard Kamajors say that
8 HINGA NORMAN told them that when he entered Tongo he didn’t want to see any
civilians, that they should all be killed. Witness saw Kamajors kill three civilians,
based on tribal origin, at checkpoints on the road out of Tongo. Witness saw three
civilians with camouflage fabric wallets murdered. Witness was amongst a crowd of
people that Kamajors fired on at NDMC HQ. Witness saw child soldiers 10-12 years
old fighting in Tongo.
TF2 - 025 1&2 lhr. Witness fled Tongo in August, 1997 when the Kamajors pulled out and returned to
3&4 Lalehun in early 1998. Witness saw Chief Conteh’s severed head being carried
6 away.
TF2-026 1&2 lhr. Witness was a Tongo resident in January, 1998 when the Kamajors took Tongo.
5 Witness saw a captured rebel called Cobra killed as well as others who were accused
6 of being rebels. Witness was told to drag the bodies into the bush. He also saw
another person killed.
Witness was made to transport looted property from Tongo on the orders of the
Kamajors; he also saw Kamajors loot houses.
TF2 - 027 1&2 lhr. Witness lived in Tongo throughout the war. He was herded into NDMC HQ as
3&4 Kamajors took over. Once inside, Kamajors sorted civilians by tribe and ordered
6 civilians to point out who the rebels amongst them were. Those pointed out were led
away and he never saw them again. The next day, civilians were ordered to dig
graves and Witness could see bodies being carried to the grave.
TF2-028 1&2 1hr. Witness was kept with a group of civilians in Tongo when the Kamajors chose
3&4 people, especially young men who they alleged were rebels and took them to the
5 back of a fence after which the witness never saw them again. He also witnessed the
6 killing by gun shots or machete of other civilians in the crowd with whom
he was kept.




| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 - 029 1&2 1hr. Witness was resident of Tongo when the Kamajors came in late 1997. He was taken
3&4 to NDMC HQ. Witness was amongst a group of civilians into which Kamajors
6 opened fire killing several. Witness heard a Kamajor say that HINGA NORMAN had
given orders to kill all Tongo residents. He witnessed a young boy taken away by the
Kamajors and never saw the boy again. Witness saw many civilians dead around the
HQ on the day after the attack.
TF2 - 030 1&2 lhr. Witness was a Bo resident when Kamajors came in February, 1998. She watched as
3&4 her husband was mutilated and killed by Kamajors. Kamajors had tried to chop off
6 both of his hands and feet and they were hanging by flesh. When Witness went to
see him the next moming he was dead.
TF2 - 032 1&2 1hr. Witness will testify about Kamajors attack on Koribondo. One of their commanders
5 gave the orders for the houses to be burnt. Another ground commander was also
6 involved in the looting and burning of houses. Witness found out on his return that
7 his house along with many others had been burnt. HINGA NORMAN came and had
a meeting in Koribondo where he said that he sent the Kamajors to burn the town
with the exception of the court barray and mosque but the Kamajors did not do well.
Witness was informed that a man called Kafala was killed between Koribondo and
Bendu for being a rebel collaborator. Abema, a Kamajor, was killed for not operating
as a Kamajor.
TF2 - 033 1&2 1hr. Witness was present when the Kamajors entered Kenema. Witness saw Kamajors
6 kill four police officers.
7
TF2 - 034 6 1hr. HINGA NORMAN gave instructions to destroy all houses in Koribondo with the
exception of 4 houses because every house in Koribondo had rebels or SLA or their
relations. These instructions were given at Base Zero. MOININA FOFANA and
ALLIEU KONDEWA were all present. Upon entering Koribondo, Witness saw a lot
of houses burning, which he says was done by Kamajors. Witness will testify that
ammunition was supplied at Base Zero, but if you didn’t take diamonds to HINGA
NORMAN you did not get ammunition.
TF2 - 035 1&2 Lhr. Witness was a resident of Tongo Field and saw a twelve year old boy killed by the
3&4 Kamajors along with a large number of other civilians.
6
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[ PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2- 036 1&2 1hr. Witness will give evidence about Kamajors burning houses in Koribondo, including
5 his own. Witness saw Kamajors kill one Limba man for allegedly tapping palm wine
6 for the soldiers. Witness will testify that collaborators were usually tried and
7 sentenced in one house and handed over to a killer in another. Witness was present
when HINGA NORMAN came to Koribondo and said that he was not expecting to
see so many houses standing. He said that he had instructed the Kamajors to destroy
everything except the mosque and that it was the presence of the junta in Koribondo
which led to the attack on Koribondo.
TF2 - 037 1&2 lhr. Witness, and another individual, was beaten and threatened with death for suspected
3&4 of being a police officer from Bo.
6 Witness was told that 3 of his colleagues had been killed by Kamajors. Witness
7 heard that Kamajors were looking for police because they were “junta” police.
TF2 - 038 1&2 lhr. Witness was forcefully conscripted by the Kamajors and taken to Guinea where he
6 saw ALLIEU KONDEWA and HINGA NORMAN during his training and initiation.
8 HINGA NORMAN brought food and guns. HINGA NORMAN told the troops in
Guinea to treat the rebels in the same manner as the rebels treated the Kamajors.
Witness saw Kamajors kill two children in Tanihun. Also saw Kamajors kill rebels
captured in Segbema.
TF2 - 039 1&2 lhr. Witness was in Kenema and was there when the Kamajors took the town. He
6 assisted with the burying of the murdered police officers.
7
TF2 - 040 1&2 1hr. Witness was in Kenema and will testify that the Kamajors killed numerous police
6 officers. Witness helped bury the dead bodies of six officers.
7
TF2 - 041 1&2 1hr. In February 1998, Witness was in Kenema and survived a Kamajor attempt to behead
3&4 him. Witness’ colleague died in the same attack.
6
7
TF2 - 042 1&2 lhr. Witness was in Kenema in February/March 1998 and she personally witnessed the
3&4 killing of three police officers.
6
7
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[ PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 - 043 6 4hrs. Witness was a Kamajor in Koribondo and present during all 4 attacks until it was
taken on the 13th and 14th February 1998.
Witness is aware of killing of civilians on the bus which was attacked as a result of
Black December operation.
Witness will testify that they were commanded to take Koribondo at all costs even if
it meant destroying the town completely. This order was given by HINGA
NORMAN. Kamajors looted everything. Witness saw some Kamajors with looted
items and reports were made to HINGA NORMAN, who replied that they should be
thankful that at least there were a few houses left standing.
TF2 - 044 1&2 1hr. Witness was in Kenema when the Kamajors took the town. Witness saw dead police
3&4 officers and heard Kamajors say that they were going to kill all police officers.
5 Kamajors arrested and detained Witness, then cut and tortured him. He saw
6 Kamajors with property looted from his home.
7
TF2-046 1&2 1hr. Witness personally saw the execution of two women by firing squad who were
3&4 suspected of being wives of junta soldiers. Witness was also called out by Michael
6 Cole to see the bodies of 50 collaborators killed by Kamajors. Witness also saw 7
people killed by burning tires placed around their necks. He was segregated from 60
of his other non-Mende colleagues by the Kamajors while escaping from Tongo to be
told later that they were killed. Also as he walked away from the non-Mendes, he
heard gunfire. Witness gives the names of 20 non-Mende people that were left
behind and never heard from again.
TF2 - 047 1&2 1hr. Witness was in Tongo when Kamajors took over the town and told everyone to go to
3&4 the NDMC HQ. Witness saw a Kamajor kill a captured soldier. The following day,
6 Witness saw the bodies of other dead soldiers with military ID’s on their chests.
Witness was involved in the burial of several victims.
TF2 - 048 1&2 Ihr. Witness was in Tongo during Operation No Living Thing (“... Operation No Living
3&4 Thing, whether dog or mortal man-nothing was to be spared”.). Witness watched as
6 her brother was killed by a Kamajor.
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| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 - 051 1&2 4hrs. Witness will testify as to the structure and command responsibility of HINGA
6 NORMAN, ALLIEU KONDEWA and MOININA FOFANA.
Witness received reports of Kamajor atrocities, but disciplinary efforts where
thwarted by HINGA NORMAN.
Witness was aware of a truck load of Coffee and Cocoa that was captured and
brought to Base Zero, and also a Mercedes Benz car.
TF2 - 052 1&2 1hr. Witness was forced to go to the NDMC HQ by the Kamajors along with many other
3&4 civilians after Kamajors took Tongo Field. Witness watched as many people were
6 taken by Kamajors to a field and never returned. Witness was later detained for eight
days by Kamajors as he was suspected of being a collaborator.
TF2 - 053 1&2 lhr. Witness was a resident of Tongo Field who took refuge in the NDMC HQ during the
6 two Kamajor attacks in November. While at NDMC HQ, Witness saw two men
executed after being pointed out as being juntas. His son was taken away by
Kamajors and he has not seen him since.
TF2 - 056 1&2 1hr. Witness was the head of the Limbas in Bo in 1998 and had to go to the Kamajor
5 commander, on several occasions, to ransom Limbas. Witness saw the killing of a
6 Limba man by Kamajors. In the capacity as Limba Tribal Leader, he received many
reports of killings of Limba civilians. In March/April 1998, Witness saw Limba
tribesman taken and held for ransom by Kamajors while their houses were burnt
because they were thought to be collaborators. Witness states that policemen were
killed at checkpoints the Kamajors had set up and he saw the bodies of 8 policemen.
Witness’ house was looted and all of his property taken by Kamajors.
TF2 - 057 1&2 lhr. Witness was a Bo resident during the Kamajor attacks. Witness, along with his
3&4 brother, was ordered imprisoned by MOININA FOFANA and kept on water only
6 rations for a period of 25 days. After being taken away by Kamajors, Witness’
brother and 2 other detainees were never seen again. Witness will also testify to a
murder he saw take place at a checkpoint he was at as well as other things he saw
when passing through a series of checkpoints.
TF2 - 058 1&2 lhr. Kamajors stopped the Witness and her husband and gouged out her husband’s eyes.
3&4 She was told that Kamajors had cut off her husband’s head and danced with it on a
6 stick. Witness also saw another individual being killed with machetes by the
Kamajors and another chopped dead body.
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| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 - 059

1&2
3&4
5
6

lhr.

Witness was fleeing Bo when he witnessed Kamajors kill 6 men by hacking them
with machetes. Witness was robbed, beaten and threatened with death by Kamajors
during a screening for collaborators.

TF2 - 060

1&2
6
8

2hrs.

Witness was initiated when he was 9-10 years old and ALLIEU KONDEW A was
present. Witness will testify to seeing the killing of many people believed to be
rebels and to receiving instructions from ALLIEU KONDEWA to kill people who
were not Mende.

ALLIEU KONDEWA also gave order to do sacrifices and Witness saw them.
Witness fought in Njanjahun Gboko, Bo and Freetown. Witness states that there
were about 50 small boys in his group.

TF2 - 062

2hrs.

Witness was present in Bo when Kamajors entered in February 1998.

Witness saw multiple killings, mutilations and lootings by Kamajors and he attended
public meetings in Bo held by HINGA NORMAN and attended by MOININA
FOFANA.

Witness heard HINGA NORMAN say at a meeting held in Bo: “Kamajors joined the
society to protect their mother land. The Temnes came to this land, this is not their
land, they have to go back to their own land. Whatever you want to do to these
Temnes, Limbas, do it.”

Witness saw people being tied up and their throats cut and others who had tires put
on them, petrol added and then burned.

Witness saw many lootings and heard HINGA NORMAN give orders, at public
meetings held in Bo and attended by MOININA FOFANA, to burn the houses of the
Temnes and Limbas. Witnesses will testify that two brother-in-laws’ houses were
burned and land sold by Kamajors.

TF2-063

4hrs.

Witness will give evidence that armed Kamajors from the 19th Battalion broke into
his house, fired shots and beat up his uncle. The group included MOININA
FOFANA who was the commander of the 17th Battalion which was on Mahi Boima
Road near HRS school.

Witness will give evidence on Kamajor initiation rituals including the killing of a
pregnant woman.

Witness will testify to the initiation of small boys of the age of 5-7 years of age.
Witness was taught how to use guns, arm and disarm, cock and fire.

10
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| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 -064 1&2 1hr. Witness fought in Bo. He will testify that they went around from place to place for a

3&4 long time killing rebels. In a village behind Tikonko village, “we killed a lot of the

6 rebels there, only men. We left all the women. We killed the men with a knife.”

8 Witness will say that Kamajors taught small boys how to hide, how to cut and kill
human beings and also to go ‘in a group of small boys and grab the rebel and one of
us would cut his throat.” Witness states that they did this one time. Witness will
testify that small boys were organized in groups and there was a small boy’s group
leader who did the cutting of the man’s throat.

TF2 -065 1&2 lhr. Witness is a Temne who was living in Bo at the time of the Kamajor take over.

3&4 Witness saw Kamajors chase a man down and kill him. Witness was beaten,

5 suffering permanent hearing loss as a result, his possessions were looted, and he was

6 robbed by Kamajors.

TF2 - 067 1&2 lhr. Witness was a resident of Bo when Kamajors took it in February, 1998. He saw

3&4 Kamajors kill men and women, Temnes in particular, as well as dissmbowelings and

5 mutilations. Witness was arrested on more than once; on one occasion, he was kept in

6 jail for 26 days.

8 Witness saw his father and other family members arrested by Kamajors. Sometime
after March 1999, Witness saw Kamajors looting his home and the home of his
uncle.

TF2 -068 6 4hrs. | Witness states that HINGA NORMAN, MOININA FOFANA and ALLIEU

KONDEWA did not punish those who were committing atrocities.

At Talia, Witness found HINGA NORMAN who, Witness states, was in charge.
HINGA NORMAN appointed the director of war, Battalion commanders, Director of
Operations and Platoon commanders. He appointed the High Priest, ALLIEU
KONDEWA.

Initiation of Kamajors and military training took place at Base Zero. HINGA
NORMAN was in charge of training and sometimes came with military instructors to
do training. They were training in the use of weapons.

Witness will testify that he saw a looted car at Base Zero and ALLIEU KONDEWA
using it. HINGA NORMAN saw the car as well.

Witness also saw a truck loaded with coffee and Cacao that was seized by Kamajors
and taken to Talia. The truck was turned over to the High Priest and the Director of
War, MOININA FOFANA. HINGA NORMAN was informed of this seizure.
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| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 -069

3&4

1hr.

Witness lived in Bo during the Kamajor occupation. Witness was beaten and
threatened by Kamajors. His home was looted and property stolen by Kamajors.

TF2-070

~N QNN D

4hrs.

Witness will confirm many ethnically motivated killings that took place in and
around Bo. Many Temnes were murdered, property looted, and houses burned as
they were alleged to be supporters of the Junta. Witness will testify to the setting up
of checkpoints in and around Bo and that people fleeing attack were screened on
ethnic bases and once identified as non Mendes, were instantly labeled collaborators
and killed. Those killings took place at checkpoints manned by MOININA
FOFANA'’s boys and Witness states that he knew about the atrocities.

Witness says that Kamajors burned house in Bo. Kamajors looted properties and
shared them amongst themselves.

Witness will state that the CDF, particularly the Kamajors, moved away from the
1dea of protecting people to attacking and killing them.

TF2 -071

1&2

1hr.

Witness was in Bonthe when the Kamajors took over 1998. He will testify that afier
September 15th 1997 an attack was launched by Kamajors on villagers from Bonthe
Town and three were immediately killed and eaten by the Kamajors. The remaining
were to be eaten in installments. The three victims were Bockarie Kpaka, Samuel
Kamara (a Blacksmith in Bonthe Town) and one Junisa. Witness will testify that in
January 1998 in Bonthe Town, a Guinean businessman was killed between
Gbongoma and Molaikaika, Sitia Chiefdom, Bonthe District. Witness found
Mohammed’s body shot with his back cut open. Witness buried the corpse.

Witness will give evidence that HINGA NORMAN had gone to Bonthe via
helicopter and made a speech to the people saying that it was useless to complain
about the Kamajors saying ‘that working with the Kamajors was like working with a
cutlass and it cuts you, you drop it, but later you pick it up and work with it again’.

TF2 -072

4hrs.

Witness will give evidence that the Kamajors received arms and ammunition from
the army through HINGA NORMAN.

Witness along with other Kamajors attacked and captured Bo from Kenema in
February, 1998. Witness will testify that Kamajors were looting and burning houses.
There were reports of killings at checkpoints manned by Kamajors especially the
killings at Bakapu and Gbaiian done by Kamajors for money and diamonds. All these
incidences were reported to MOININA FOFANA.
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[ PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 -073 1&2 1hr. Witness was a resident of Moyamba who will testify to the murdering of two traders.
6 Kamajors looted Witness’ home and took his car.
7
TF2 -078 1&2 lhr. Witness was a resident of Bo when the Kamajors entered in 1998. She and her
3&4 husband were beaten and tortured; Witness’ husband was taken away by Kamajors
5 and she later saw his mutilated, dead body. Witness was told that her son was also
6 arrested and killed by Kamajors. Witness’ house was looted and burned to the
ground.
TF2 -079 1&2 4hrs. | Witness will testify that the Death Squad did everything ranging from killing to
5 looting to vandalizing and that they were created to carry out the worst jungle justice.
6 HINGA NORMAN created the Death Squad and allowed it to continue despite the
7 fact that he had heard complaints about it. Witness will also say that the instructions
given by HINGA NORMAN, in the presence of ALLIEU KONDEWA and
MOININA FOFANA, for most towns (i.e. Black December, Tongo, Koribondu)
were to attack it, occupy it, kill the collaborators and take property for the Kamajors.
HINGA NORMAN gave instructions to attack juntas and collaborators in Tongo,
take their property and create roadblocks so the junta can’t pass with vehicles.
Witness heard HINGA NORMAN say to Kamajors, on more than one occasion,
“wherever you go, fight and take whatever is yours”; MOININA FOFANA and
ALLIEU KONDEWA were also present.
TF2 -080 1&2 2 hrs. | Witness was initiated into the Kamajors at Bumpe Village along with many others, a
5 mixture of initiates from ages 12 to 20 years. Witness heard some of the boys yelling:
6 “Leave me alone, let me go!” He had to pay a registration fee for joining which he
8 paid to ALLIEU KONDEWA's secretary.
He saw and participated in killing civilians, looting and burning. In 1999, Witness
fought at Mogbongo village and Mile 91. In March and April of 1999, Witness’
group ambushed rebels, killed them and kept their weapons. Witness states that one
time they captured three boys and a woman rebel. They tied them up, took them
away and cut their throats. At Camp Charlie, ALLIEU KONDEWA’s right hand man
gave the order to kill everyone, so every civilian or rebel that was seen was killed. At
night they started burning all houses.
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[ PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 -081 1&2 1hr. Witness is a 16 year old who fought as a child soldier after being initiated by
6 ALLIEU KONDEWA. He watched Kamajors kill his father and then felt he had to
8 join the CDF or be killed by them. Witness had gone with his father to get food when
they were intercepted by the CDF in dress garb. They accused his father of being a
spy, beat him, had him dig his own grave and killed him. Witness ran away and felt
he had to join the CDF or be killed by them.
TF2 -082 1&2 4hrs. | Witness was a member of the Kamajors. He states that children were made to cut
5 throats of prisoners because ALLIEU KONDEWA did not want ammunition wasted
6 on them. Witness says that HINGA NORMAN gave him instructions not to spare
any living thing; “kill them all whether they are human beings, domestic animals,
everything that had life should be killed.” Witness was aware that looting was going
on because he saw it happening and he made an effort to return looted goods to
civilians. HINGA NORMAN gave him direct orders to destroy all of the houses in
the town.
TF2 -086 1&2 1hr. Witness was a Bonthe resident in 1997 after the Kamajors took the town. Witness
3&4 was mutilated and left for dead in the same incident in which Witness’ friend was
6 killed.
TF2 -087 5 4hrs. Witness has information as to the structure of the Kamajors and the beginnings at
6 Base Zero.
Appointments to committees were made by HINGA NORMAN & MOININA
FOFANA. Orders went directly from HINGA NORMAN to the District
Administrators who then passed them on to the Chiefdom Commanders.
Complaints of Kamajor excesses were passed on to HINGA NORMAN but nothing
came of those reports, a case in point was the looting of drugs from Mattru Jong
Hospital. He states that HINGA NORMAN, MOININA FOFANA and ALLIEU
KONDEWA had information about misdeeds in general but that nothing was done
about them.
TF2 -088 1&2 lhr. Witness is a resident of Bo District whose son was killed and his body parts used in a
3&4 sacrificial manner. Witness reported the incident to HINGA NORMAN who said:
5 “whatever a Kamajor does should be left to God”. Kamajors looted and robbed
6 Witness’ house.
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| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 -091 3&4 1hr. Witness was a Bonthe resident who was held by Kamajors. Witness saw Kamajors
5 looting property from houses. Witness was abducted by Kamajors and forced to cook
6 for them.
TF2 -092 3&4 1hr. Witness will testify that he was taken from church by Kamajors who undressed him
5 and left him naked. Witness will testify that Kamajors accused him of supporting the
Juntas and he was levied a huge sum to save his life. The money was paid to
ALLIEU KONDEWA. Kamajors burnt down his house and looted Le. 2,000,000
from him.
TF2 -096 1&2 lhr. Witness was a resident of Talia when the Kamajors first arrived. Witness personally
6 saw ALLIEU KONDEWA kill two civilians by shooting them.
TF2 -103 5 lhr. Witness was resident in Bonthe when Kamajors were at Base Zero. Witness was told
6 of the killing of a young boy named Kekuru which he reported to the Kamajor
commander who did nothing about it. Witness saw Kamajors looting and burning
houses in his village. ALLIEU KONDEWA came to his village and threatened them
with death if they didn’t contribute food.

TF2 -105 1&2 1hr. Witness will testify that he was in Bonthe when Kamajors attacked. He saw

5 Kamajors shoot a man just behind the Mission on Lime Street. Witness observed
6 Kamajors looting and burning houses. Witness saw one Kamajor beating the Town
Chief.

TF-107 6 1hr. Witness was aware of HN involvement in the freeing of Kamajors who were taken
into custody for murder. Also provides information relative to AK and the execution
of a civilian.

TF2 -108 1&2 1hr. Witness was abducted from her parent’s home in Bonthe District in 1998. Witness’

3&4 parent’s property was carried away by the Kamajors. Witness was taken to Talia

5 where she was raped and forced to “marry” a kamajor. Witness saw the killing of 6

6 civilians. Killings in Talia often took place on the instruction of ALLIEU
KONDEWA or Kamoh Lahai. Witness was the subject of sexual violence and she
witnessed it.
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TF2 -109

1&2
3&4
5
6

2 hrs.

Sometime in 1998 in the Dry Season during the AFRC regime, Kamajors from Talia
attacked Witness’ village and she was abducted together with other people and taken
to Talia. Witness saw HINGA NORMAN and ALLIEU KONDEWA in Talia.

In Witness’ presence one civilian was arrested and brought to Talia by the Kamajors.
ALLIEU KONDEWA gave orders that he should be burnt to death because he was a
rebel and he was killed. She also saw another man killed by Kamajors.

In Talia village, one of the Kamajors forcefully took her to be his wife. Witness will
testify that she was “virginated”. Witness will testify of other young women brought
to Talia who were forced to have sex with Kamajors. According to Witness, some of
the young girls who refused to have sex with the Kamajors were killed. Kamajors
took these women as their wives and carried them to the war front. Kamajors also
brought girls and women for ALLIEU KONDEWA.

TF2 -111

4hrs.

According to Witness, HINGA NORMAN arrived in Talia within three months of
the AFRC coup. HINGA NORMAN and ALLIEU KONDEWA established the Base
Zero. When HINGA NORMAN came to Talia he came with a great number of
Kamajors. ALLIEU KONDEWA, HINGA NORMAN, and MOININA FOFANA
were all based at Talia. ALLIEU KONDEWA was in a separate house which the
chiefdom people gave to him. MOININA FOFANA and HINGA NORMAN were
staying another house. ALLIEU KONDEWA was the highest ranking Kamajor as he
was responsible for initiations.

TF2-115

2 hrs.

Witness was arrested sometime in 1998 and detained at the police station in Bo on
the orders of the Bo District CDF Administrator. It was alleged that Witness had
knowledge of the killing by Kamajors of two civilians in his area. Witness recalled
seeing the two men riding on a bike coming through the town from one check point
but could not tell whether they left through the other check point. The two men
subsequently went missing and were presumed killed by Kamajors in his village.
Witness was released after a few days. He met HINGA NORMAN on his way out of
the police station. HINGA NORMAN inquired from him and he explained what had
happened. HINGA NORMAN was unhappy with the Bo District CDF Administrator.
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TF2 -116 1&2 1hr. Witness was a resident of Bonthe Island who was present when Kamajors entered in

3&4 February, 1998. A Kamajor told Witness that he just killed a young boy shortly after

5 Witness saw him leave with the boy. Witness heard shots fire and then heard

6 Kamajors reporting to their commander that they had shot dead a tailor accused of
making clothes for the Junta. Witness later saw the tailor’s dead body. Witness was
threatened and ordered to be killed. Witness attended a meeting where civilians
complained to ALLIEU KONDEWA, but as far as Witness knows, ALLIEU
KONDEWA did nothing about it.

TF2-118 6 lhr. Witness was initiated along with other small boys, who were maybe 5-6 years old.

8 After initiation, Witness was trained in Gambia for three weeks. The trainees were
not younger than 9; the 5-6 year olds were not trained. ALLIEU KONDEWA was
present for the training. Witness saw MOININA FOFANA at Gambia who told him
that boys his age were allowed to fight.

TF2 -119 1&2 1hr. Witness was in Bo on February 15, 1998. Just before Kamajors attempted to kill

3&4 Witness, they advised him that HINGA NORMAN had given instructions that all

5 police officers were to be killed. Kamajors made three separate attempts to kill

6 Witness who suffered serious injuries as a result.

TF2-121 1&2 lhr. Witness was a Bonthe resident when the Kamajors took the town in 1998. Witness

6 was present when the Kamajors shot and tortured to death a man who they accused of
being a rebel collaborator.

TF2-122 1&2 1hr. Witness was in Bonthe when the Kamajors took the town in 1998. Witness saw

6 Kamajors kill 2 men.

TF2-123 1&2 Lhr. Witness was in Bonthe when Kamajors took the town. Witness saw Kamajors beat

6 and then kill his friend.
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| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 -124

1&2
6

2hrs.

Witness will testify that he, along with many others under the age of 15, was initiated
by ALLIEU KONDEWA. They were trained to cock and fire, dismantle and
assemble weapons.

Witness will testify that MOININA FOFANA introduced the element of tribalism
into the war. MOININA FOFANA gave orders to Witness’ Commander to separate
captured rebels or civilians by race and if anyone is a Mende they would let that
person through but if you were from the other tribes, you had to wait. Then they
would sort the people not allowed to pass through by the different tribes. They
would take the Temnes into the forest and kill them. Manning a checkpoint, Witness
was among other Kamajors when about fifteen Temnes, both men and women were
killed.

Witness will testify that he saw some Kamajors in the Bo area drink human blood,
cut out the human heart, eat it and eat the human flesh.

Witness will testify that once rebels were captured, they were killed in front of the
other captives to terrorize them and the rest of the prisoners would be killed also.

TF2 -125

3&4

lhr.

Witness will testify that on Friday, 26th February, 1999, Kamajors armed with guns,
sticks, and cutlasses entered her compound with one Peugeot car marked ‘CDF’
Koribondo’s transport and put members of her household under gun point whilst the
Kamajors broke into her husband’s garage. Witness will testify that one of the
attackers identified himself as Director for the Kamajors and that he has been
instructed by HINGA NORMAN to remove two cars from her husband’s garage.
On that same morning, the same group of armed Kamajors with a new leader
appeared at her compound and put them again under gunpoint and demanded the
documents to the two vehicles already taken away by them. Witness submitted the
documents and the entire house was ransacked. Pots, tea kettle, toaster, cooker, and
perfumes were all carted away onto an awaiting vehicle.

Various appeals were made to HINGA NORMAN to return the vehicles which he
was later seen driving.

TF2 -126

3&4

1hr.

Witness was abducted from Gambia around 1996/1997 and taken to Gbap (Bonthe).
Witness was confined and raped multiple times by Kamajors. She was also forced to
cut wood and cook for them. Anytime the captured women resisted, they were beaten
and threatened. Witness heard that MOININA FOFANA used to visit the camp and
brought the Kamajors logistics.
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TF2 -128

1&2
3&4
6

1hr.

Witness was captured by Kamajors when they invaded Bonthe town sometime in
1998 around the Ecomog invasion of Freetown. Witness’ daughter was accused of
being a rebel and killed. Witness was captured by Kamajors and repeatedly raped.
She stayed with the Kamajors for about a month and escaped.

At Mopete, the Kamajors were going from house to house selecting women to marry.
She met MOININA FOFANA in Goba town.

TF2 -129

1&2
3&4

lhr.

Witness was captured by Kamajors from Sondomie in the Pujehun District and taken
to Bonthe. Witness was raped by Kamajors and kept as a wife.

According to Witness, 3 pregnant women were used as a sacrifice for their Kamajor
“husbands” to become members of a society headed by ALLIEU KONDEWA. The
sacrifice was performed by ALLIEU KONDEWA.

TF2 -131

1&2
3&4

1hr.

Witness will give evidence that she had to hide in the bush with her parents and other
villagers because Kamajors were doing things like looting and raping. Witness will
testify that she was captured and taken to Talia by one Kamajor. She was held in a
hut in Base Zero and was raped multiple times by Kamajors. Witness states that her
parents were killed at Base Zero. She made a report about the rapes to some older
women at the Base. They told her that they would inform the top commanders
namely MOININA FOFANA & ALLIEU KONDEWA. MOININA FOFANA later
remarked that it was part of the war.

Witness will confirm that she saw MOININA FOFANA & ALLIEU KONDEWA at
the camp having meetings with Kamajors.

TF2 -133

1&2
3&4

1hr.

Witness will give evidence that sometime in 1997, she and her parents were captured
by Kamajors and taken to Sogbini chiefdom.

Witness will testify that she was asked to be the Kamajors wife but she and her
parents refused. Witness will give evidence that one of ALLIEU KONDEWA’s
Kamajors raped her. Witness’ mother was raped when she protested against her
daughter being raped. Witness cried and her parents protested, at which point he shot
and killed both of them while she watched. Witness will testify that she could not run
away because when the Kamajors went to fight, they left an armed Kamajor on
guard. Witness was forced to stay with a Kamajor for about two months and now has
a child from that relationship.
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| PSEUDONYM | COUNT(S) | TIME | SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

TF2 -134

3&4
5
6

1hr.

Witness will testify that in the dry season of 1997, a group of Kamajors attacked

Blama and Witness was captured and abducted. She was taken to Base Zero at Talia.

Witness will testify that every morning Kamajors used to rape her. Witness would
scream for help but no one would respond. Witness states that at one time ALLIEU
KONDEWA observed one Kamajor having sex with her. Witness screamed loudly
for ALLIEU KONDEWA to rescue her but he left the scene without saying a word.
Even the leaders such as ALLIEU KONDEWA use to rape captured women and
girls.

Witness will testify that every morning ALLIEU KONDEW A took out his Kamajors
for morning parade and it was during this parade Witness got to know HINGA
NORMAN. ALLIEU KONDEWA introduced HINGA NORMAN as his boss.
Witness will give evidence that she saw HINGA NORMAN providing food and
ammunition and talking to the Kamajors.

Witness will testify that she spent six months with the Kamajors and attempted to
escape but was captured by one of the Kamajors who took her to their boss in Talia.
She will also testify that Kamajors went to the nearby villages to loot properties
belonging to innocent civilians.

TF2 -135

3&4

lhr.

Witness will testify that some time in 1997, Kamajors accused her of being a soldier
and that she was blind folded and forced into a house. Then for 1 month she was
raped continuously by many men a day.

Witness escaped and was captured again by another group. The boss man himself
raped the Witness for 3 nights. When Witness was freed, she and a group of other
women went to MOININA FOFANA to report this as he was the director of war.
MOININA FOFANA told them to gloss over it because it was happening to many
women.

TF2 -136

3&4

1hr.

Witness will testify that she was captured during the dry season of 1997 by Kamajors
at Gambia and accused of being a rebel. She was made to fetch wood and subjected
to beatings and other forms of mistreatment. While there, Witness states that she was
raped many times by the son of one of the commanders, who took her to be his wife.
When he went to the battle front, other Kamajors would rape the Witness; sometimes
2 or 3 on the same day.
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]

TF2-140 6 1hr. Witness will testify that when he was under the age of 15 he took part in 3 attacks on
8 Koribundu.
TF2-142 5 1hr. Witness was a member of the CDF during the Freetown invasion. He will testify that
6 he saw looted property being carted away from a compound by Kamajors.
TF2 — 144 1&2 lhr. Witness was in Tongo when Kamajors ordered everyone into NDMC HQ where he
3&4 saw Kamajors hack people to death. He also saw the killing of civilians at a
5 checkpoint in Kenema. Witness’ children were attacked and beaten by Kamajors, his
6 houses burned to the foundation and a third house looted.
TF2 -145 1&2 2hrs. | Witness will confirm that he was told by some people that they had received an
6 instruction from HINGA NORMAN that they should kill all police officers because
7 the police were not in support of them (Kamajors). Witness said he had to advise
them not to kill any policeman because that was not the reason why Kamajor society
was formed.
Witness confirmed that Kamajors committed many atrocities in Bo town. He
confirmed the burning of houses of the Northerners by Kamajors.
Witness will testify that HINGA NORMAN was aware of atrocities committed.
TF2-147 1&2 1hr. Witness was in Bonthe during the Kamajor taking of the town in mid February, 1998.
5 He will testify to the ransoming of hostages and killings that went on there.
6
TF2-148 1&2 1hr. Witness was a Kamajor who fought in Kenema and Tongo. Witness’ Commander
5 said that MOININA FOFANA ordered that they proceed to attack Kenema and the
6 instructions were to kill all captured combatants and their collaborators, burn their
8 houses, and seize their property. In the battle for Tongo, Witness states that many
individuals were executed for being collaborators, rebels or soldiers and for tribal
reasons. Witness fought with child soldiers.
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TF2-149 3&4 2hrs. | Witness will testify that HINGA NORMAN was aware that there was a lockup in the
7 CDF office. HINGA NORMAN used to visit the CDF office, and he used to talk to
all heads of office. HINGA NORMAN came to Kenema about once every two
months.
Witness will give evidence that there was a general policy of understanding within
the ranks of the CDF that collaborators should be punished. Witness heard of people
being burned on tires, of people being beaten at the task force command office, and
of arbitrary arrests, in the context as punishment for collaboration.
TF2-150 1&2 1hr. Witness was a Kamajor who went to the SS Camp when the Kamajors captured it
6 from the rebels. Witness has information relative to the killing of collaborators and
POW'’s.
TF2-151 1&2 1hr. Witness returned to Kenema after the Kamajor intervention in February 1998.
3&4 Witness observed three separate incidents of Kamajors killing civilians. On more
5 than one occasion, Witness was arrested, beaten and threatened to be killed while
6 detained.
TF2-152 1&2 1hr. Witness watched as Kamajors launched a RPG bomb into the front of their house,
3&4 looted and vandalized it. Kamajors found two tenants in the home who they hacked
5 and killed.
6 In a separate incident, Witness was arrested, detained and watched as Kamajors
killed another detainee. Witness was threatened to be killed and cut in the neck by a
Kamajor.
TF2-153 1&2 1hr. Witness was a victim in Kenema Town of Kamajor looting and burning. Witness
5 also saw Kamajors kill an individual.
6
TF2-154 1&2 1hr. Kamajors came looking for the Witness’ father at their home in Kenema in
3&4 February/March 1998. Witness watched as Kamajors launched a RPG bomb into the
5 front of their home, looted and vandalized it. Kamajors found two tenants in the
6 Witness’ home who they hacked and killed. In a separate incident, Witness was
arrested, subjected to screening based on tribe, and then watched as Kamajors killed
two more civilians.
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TF2-156 1&2 1hr. Witness was in Bo when the Kamajors took over. Witness was the only survivor of
3&4 the group of 4 men who were killed at time Witness #11 lost her husband. Witness
5 suffered serious physical injuries. Witness also saw a Temne man be killed by
6 Kamajors. Witness’ property was looted and he saw other civilians property being
looted and burned.
TF2-157 1&2 1hr. Witness was in Koribundo when Kamajors attacked in February, 1998 and when
5 HINGA NORMAN made a speech at the town barrie. Witness heard HINGA
6 NORMAN say the Kamajors did not do well as there were still houses left standing
7 and everyone in Koribundo should have been killed (even the ants) because they
were here with the soldiers. Witness saw Kamajors kill several residents of
Koribundo.
TF2-158 1&2 lhr. Witness’ father was tortured and killed by the Kamajors when they took Koribundo
3&4 in February, 1998. Witness attended a meeting at the town barri presided over by
6 HINGA NORMAN. At this meeting HINGA NORMAN told the townspeople: that
7 he was the party responsible for ordering the Kamajors to conduct themselves as they
had; inasmuch as the people of Koribundo had supported the SLA they were being
subjected to the treatment being meted out by the Kamajors; he was in fact
disappointed in the Kamajors due to the fact that while he had instructed them to kiil
every living thing in the village and to destroy all but three of the buildings located in
Koribundo and they had not followed his orders completely.
TF2-159 1&2 1hr. Witness will testify that on a Friday in February 1998, Kamajors attacked Koribondo.
3&4 Witness heard Kamajors say that they were acting on instructions from HINGA
5 NORMAN.
6 Witness will testify that the following Saturday, he saw Kamajors kill 5 Limba
7 people along Blama Road; two were shot and three were beaten to death. Witness
says that at 7:00 that same night, he saw Kamajors burn 10 houses on Blama Road.
Witness states that women were killed because they were accused of being Junta
wives. Their heads were displayed at checkpoints and bodies dumped into a well.
TF2-160 3&4 lhr. Witness was a resident of Koribundo when the Kamajors entered in February, 1998.
5 He heard the Kamajors were looking for him as a collaborator so he fled to Bo.
6 Upon his return, he was beaten on two occasions by Kamajors. Witness attended a
7 meeting where HINGA NORMAN stated that he was responsible for what the
Kamajors did.
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TF2-162 1&2 1hr. Witness was a resident of Koribundo during the Kamajor takeover in February of
5 1998. Witness saw the Kamajors kill two civilians by beating them to death with
6 sticks. Witness was also present when the Kamajors began burning and looting the
7 homes of townspeople.
TF2-163 1&2 1hr. Witness will give evidence that he was informed about three graves containing the
6 bodies of three people from Koribundo that the Kamajors had killed. The Witness
was also informed that the chief of Goambu named Kafalla was killed by the
Kamajors during this attack.
TF2-164 1&2 1hr. Witness will give evidence that after the Kamajors captured Koribondo, he was
3&4 arrested and whisked off to their HQ. While enroute Witness saw another group of
5 Kamajors beating a Limba man who was killed and decapitated.
6 Witness will testify that the commander ordered his Kamajors to burn his house.
7 They looted his properties before burning the house.
TF2-165 1&2 1hr. Witness was a resident of Moyamba in July of 1997 when Kamajors took over.
6 Witness was present when Kamajors killed and decapitated one man for being a
collaborator. Witness also saw Kamajors burn to death another person.
TF2-166 1&2 1hr. Witness was a resident of Moyamba in 1998 when her father was mutilated by
3&4 Kamajors and later died. Witness’ home was looted and Witness was beaten with a
5 cable by Kamajors.
6
TF2-167 1&2 1hr. Witness was a resident of Moyamba on February 5, 1998 when Kamajors took over
3&4 the town. Witness saw Kamajors kill numerous civilians; including his 3% year old
6 grandson. His daughters were captured and his son was shot.
TF2-168 1&2 1hr. Witness was a resident of Moyamba on February 5, 1998 when Kamajors took the
3&4 town. Witness watched as Kamajors killed his wife and looted from his home.
6
TF2-169 1&2 lhr. Witness was a resident of Moyamba Town when Kamajors took over in 1998.
6 Witness saw the head of a victim paraded around town.
TF2-170 1&2 Thr. Witness was a resident of Bradford in March of 1998. He saw Kamajors kill a
5 civilian by first chopping him and then shooting him in the face. Witness also saw
6 Kamajors looting.
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TF2-171 3&4 1hr. Witness was in Moyamba in Febuary/March of 1998 when a letter was received by
5 the townspeople telling them that HINGA NORMAN had not paid the Kamajors and
6 that therefore the Kamajors were to engage in Operation Pay Yourself. Witness fled
the town but was captured by Kamajors who recruited him to carry looted property.
Witness fled to avoid the task and was shot by the Kamajors sustaining permanent
injury.
TF2-172 1&2 1hr. Witness was in Bradford, Moyamba in April, May, 1998. Kamajors caught Witness’
5 brother and proceeded to torture him. Witness heard gunshots and his brother
6 moaning and crying in pain; he later discovered his brother. Witness tried to save his
brother by taking him to a hospital, but he died en route. His farm was looted.
TF2-173 1&2 1hr. Witness will give evidence that he saw Kamajors shoot and kill his aunt and loot his
3&4 aunt’s property. Witness was shot in the arm.
5 Witness saw HINGA NORMAN get stuck behind a broken down vehicle on the
6 Mabang bridge in Moyamba. HINGA NORMAN got out of his vehicle and started
yelling and then his bodyguards starting shooting indiscriminately. Witness saw two
people get shot.
TF2-174 1&2 1hr. Witness was appointed a member of the Kamajors in Moyamba after the ECOMOG
6 intervention. He’s aware of the command structure in Moyamba District. He
8 attended many meetings at which HINGA NORMAN was present. Witness confirms
that he also saw ALLIEU KONDEWA and MOININA FOFANA in Moyamba.
Witness states that there were many Kamajor child soldiers.
TF2-175 6 1hr. Witness was a Kamajor who served in Moyamba after the coup in 1997. Witness’
8 son was initiated into the Kamajors and used as a soldier; Witness is aware that many
children under the age of 15 were used as soldiers.
TF2-176 1&2 1hr. Witness heard HINGA NORMAN'’S speech wherein he said that he had given orders
3&4 that no living thing should survive in Koribondo and that the civilians were not to
6 blame the Kamajors for the burnings and atrocities but should blame him. He also
7 heard HINGA NORMAN say that the people of Koribondo were being punished
because they were collaborators.
Kamajors tied Witness’ hands and beat him.
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TF2 -179 6 1 hr. Witness’ statement relates to an incident in late 1998 in Mabonda Village, Shenge in
Moyamba District. Witness recalls fighting between Kamajors in Kagboro Chiefdom
and those in Bumpe Chiefdom which led to some Kamajors being arrested and taken
to the District Officer’s office in Moyamba. While there, Witness and others saw the
corpse of a woman brought in who was said to have been killed in the fighting.
Witness and others were also informed that her son had been thrown into a fire by
Kamajors. Witness gives the chain of command of the Kamajors in his area which
runs up to MOININA FOFANA and HINGA NORMAN.

TF2-180 1&2 Thr. Witness was a Moyamba resident. Witness’ husband was beaten by the Kamajors as

3&4 Witness watched and her husband later died. Their property was looted and Witness

5 and her children were forced to carry it for the Kamajors.

6

TF2-181 3&4 1hr. Witness will testify that she was arrested and detained by Kamajors around

6 Christmas 1997 on allegation that she was a junta collaborator. During the arrest she
was mercilessly beaten all over her body and face. She heard Kamajors mentioning
the names of HINGA NORMAN and MOININA FOFANA as their bosses. Witness
was informed that there were instructions from the Kamajor high command to have
her killed. Witness heard from her brother how her husband was killed and his head
hung on a stick by the Kamajors.

TF2-182 8 1hr. Witness served as a child soldier for the Kamajors.

TF2-183 1&2 1hr. Witness was a Bradford Town resident in Moyamba District in 1998. Witness was

3&4 with her brother and son when the Kamajors arrested them and shot her 5 year-old
6 son, killing him. Her brother was also shot. Witness also saw the killing of two other
civilians by Kamajors.

TF2-184 3&4 1hr. Witness was present at a bridge that was blocked when HINGA NORMAN arrived

6 and Kamajors started shooting randomly. Two people were injured by gunshot
wounds. HINGA NORMAN was shown the injured but he merely walked away
without saying a word.

TF2-186 1&2 1hr. Witness will give evidence as to the killing of Mr. Thomas by the Kamajors in

6 Moyamba. Witness will testify that MOININA FOFANA came to Moyamba and
made a speech at the Court Barrie, whilst Witness and others were forced to listen.
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TF2 -187

1&2
3&4
6

lhr.

Witness will give evidence that in November 1998, she and three pregnant women
were captured by Kamajors. One of the Kamajors took Witness and made her one of
his three wives.

Human sacrifices were done by ALLIEU KONDEWA and his Kamajors. ALLIEU
KONDEWA would rub the blood of the victim on their faces. Witness will testify
that she saw five pregnant women in all being sacrificed.

Witness will testify that ALLIEU KONDEWA met her at a junction and forced her
into the bush by the water side and threatened to kill her if she resisted, and then
raped her, at that time she was pregnant with child.

TF2 -188

1&2
3&4

1hr.

Witness will give evidence that she was abducted by Kamajors. Witness was ordered
to carry loads or threatened with death. She carried the loads to Tihun. At Tihun,
Witness was told that she was going to be taken as a wife by one of them, she refused
and he threatened to kill her, so she agreed. She did not try to escape because she
was threatened to be killed if she tried to escape.

Witness will give evidence that while at Talia she met ALLIEU KONDEWA, the
Chief initiator who said he was going to kill her mother for attempting to escape.
Witness begged for her mother’s life. ALLIEU KONDEWA took her into his room
and raped her all night.

TF2 -189

1&2
3&4

l1hr.

Witness was captured by Kamajors. Witness’ husband was killed by a Kamajor.
Witness was taken to Talia where she was forced to “marry” a Kamajor. Women
from neighbouring villages were also taken to Talia as “wives” for the Kamajors. In
Talia, Witness saw ALLIEU KONDEWA and HINGA NORMAN.

TF2-190

MOININA FOFANA and HINGA NORMAN came to Talia in a helicopter together
with an unknown number of persons and soon thereafter a lot of Kamajors started
coming to Talia. A Death Squad was formed for the security of Base Zero and posted
at the border; they had one gray helux vehicle.

The Death Squad reported to the War Council through a member of the War Council
who was very close to HINGA NORMAN. He provided the Death Squad with food
supplies. Witness was responsible for taking instructions from the base to the various
commanders at the war front.

Witness heard about complaints made against the Death Squad to HINGA
NORMAN.

HINGA NORMAN brought arms and ammunitions to Base Zero for the Kamajors.
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TF2-191

4 hrs.

Witness will give evidence that he was taken prisoner, along with many women and
children, and physically beaten repeatedly for one month by Kamajors because they
accused him of being a collaborator who had mined diamonds for the RUF. Was told
by captors that HN had to be consulted before they could release him.

Witness will testify that he saw three accused collaborators executed and tortured in
1998 by the Kamajors.

Witness was present when the Kamajors looted his house.

TF2-193

1 hr.

Witness will provide evidence as to the command structure of the CDF in terms of
national office as well as local commanders in the Southern and Eastern provinces.

TF2-195

3&4

1hr.

Witness was a Moyamba resident during the Kamajor takeover in the dry season of
1998. Witness was beaten and suffered physical injuries as a result of Kamajors
believing he was a rebel collaborator.

TF2-198

1&2
3&4

lhr.

Witness was a resident of Koribondo on February 13, 1998 when the Kamajors
attacked the town. Following the first attack, Witness fled to Bo where the Kamajors
arrested him as a collaborator and beat him severely. Witness’ brother came to his
defense and was tortured and killed by Kamajors who forced him to witness the
killing. Witness returned to Koribondo and attended a speech at the town barray
delivered by HINGA NORMAN where he took responsibility for the actions in the
town as well as the killings as a collective punishment. Witness saw the houses
which had been burnt by the Kamajors.

TF2-200

4hrs.

Witness says Kamajors would come to the court barray and say they were above the
law and had orders from HINGA NORMAN & ALLIEU KONDEWA. Complaints
about the Kamajors were made to Witness 2-3 days a week. Some were channeled
through the court clerk, or to the court chairman. This happened in 1997, 1998, 1999,
until 2000 when they finally disarmed. A letter of complaint that Kamajors were
harassing civilians, looting property, etc. was directed to HINGA NORMAN.
Kamajors were killing innocent civilians, looting people’s properties, raping women
and young girls, and beating people all over the chiefdom. If reports by Witness,
Kamajors they would say that their actions were instructions directly from ALLIEU
KONDEWA and HINGA NORMAN.
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TF2-201 6 4hrs. Witness will testify that HINGA NORMAN held a meeting in Talia in October 1997
to decide what the command structure should be. In that meeting, HINGA NORMAN
named the posts that were available, and he asked Kamajors to choose. HINGA
NORMAN announced that the war council would be appointed and explained what
their role would be. It was MOININA FOFANA who was directing and
commanding the Death Squad. HINGA NORMAN later gave commands to the
Death Squad, as did MOININA FOFANA.

HINGA NORMAN gave instructions to the commanders not to come back until they
capture Koribondo. In the case of both Koribondu and Tongo, ALLIEU KONDEWA
had been instructed to prepare charms for those attacks. HINGA NORMAN gave
instructions that they should capture Bo and Kenema. Witness will give evidence that
he heard HINGA NORMAN say that they should take police as their enemy.

Witness says that in a war situation someone declared your enemy is like any other
enemy in war. Witness will give evidence that HINGA NORMAN visited Kenema
from 1998 through 2001 at least once every two weeks, sometimes staying for days.

TF2-202 1&2 lhr. Witness saw his brother being tortured and mutilated to death. After the murder of
5 his brother, the Kamajors went to the brother’s house and looted a large sum of
6 money from within.

TF2-204 3&4 1 hr. Witness was captured from Malima Shebureh by kamajors and taken to Malima a
6 few miles from Pujehun. Witness’ parents were killed. She was raped and forced to

“marry” one Mohamed Dabo. Witness had two still births while with Mohamed and
suffered serious complications from the second birth.

TF2-205 3&4 1 hr. Witness was abducted in early 1998, around March and taken to Bauya Junction. She
6 was forced to “marry” one Captain Blood. ALLIEU KONDEWA was in charge of
the camp at Bauya Junction. MOININA FOFANA used to visit the camp from time
to time. Witness reported her abduction to MONINA FOFANA'’s guards but they
said that this was part of the war and so they should bear it.

TF2-206 3&4 1 hr. Witness was captured by the Kamajors in Mokosie village. She was raped and forced
6 to “marry” a Kamajor called Vange. Witness heard that other women were captured
and raped. Witness saw ALLIEU KONDEWA but did not make a report to him as
she was afraid.
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Il

TF2-207 3&4 1 hr. Witness was abducted from Pujehun during Johnny Paul Koroma’s time for being a
6 rebel woman. Witness was raped by two kamajors. She was subsequently forced to
“marry” a kamajor. She had two children with him. She ran away after her kamajor
“husband” died.
TF2-208 3&4 1 hr. Witness was captured by the Kamajors during Johnny Paul Koroma’s time. He
6 mother was killed by the Kamajors. She was raped and forced to “marry” one Kasila.
Other women were captured and taken to Gbap. She heard the Kamajors saying “this
is my woman. I got her from mission.”
TF2-209 3&4 1 hr. Witness was abducted by Kamajors at the time when the AFRC was fighting the
6 CDF from Mattru Jong and taken to Moyawa. She was raped Kuku Sila. Kuku told
her that he was going to take her to his boss ALLIEU KONDEWA in Talia because
she was a rebel. Witness managed to escape when they got to Talia because HINGA
NORMAN arrived 1n a helicopter.
TF2-210 1&2 lhr. Witness was at Bradford Town in Moyamba in late 1998. He watched as his aunt
3&4 was shot and killed by Kamajors and as his property was looted by them.
5
6
TF2-214 1&2 1hr. Witness was a passenger on a bus in Bo District when the bus was stopped by
3&4 Kamajors at a checkpoint. The passengers were taken from the bus and several of
6 them were shot by Kamajors.
TF2-216 1&2 2 hrs. | Witness has information on the killings of suspected rebels in Moyamba. Witness
5 will testify that HINGA NORMAN removed him from his position within the CDF
6 because he refused to kill a woman.
ICR
TF2 -217 3&4 1 hr Witness will testify to the commission of sexual violence by Kamajors in Bonthe
District.
TF2 -218 1&2 1 hr Witness will testify to killing of civilians by Kamajor child soldiers. Witness also has
6 information about HINGA NORMAN’s knowledge of the use of children as fighters
8 by the Kamajors.
TF2-219 6 1 hr Witness has information relative to HN and AK intervening in criminal proceedings
on behalf of Kamajors either arrested or under investigation.
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1 Letter Letter from Regional Secretary (East) and Regional
Co-ordinator (East), dated 22 March 1998.

2 Letter Letter to Hinga Norman from Allieu Kondewa dated
29 June 2000.

3 Note Note book seized from one of the locations used by
Hinga Norman.

4 Map Hand-drawn map with the title "Air Line Direction to

Sierra Leone, Lower Bambara and Dodo Chiefdom,
Kenema District Root "A" (SIC).

5 Map Hand-drawn map with the title "Air Line Direction to
Sierra Leone, Lower Bambra and Dodo Chiefdom,
Kenema District. Root "B" Direction (SIC).

6 Memo CDF Internal Memo from "National Director of War
and Operations, Moinina Fofana to National
Coordinator CDF, dated 19 March 2001.

7 Letter Letter from Wellington, J.O., Permanent Secretary,
Office of the President, to the "Head of CDF”, dated
30 October 2000.

8 Statement Statement by Raffieu Bendu concerning alleged

crimes committed by Kamajors.

9 Statement Statement dated 23 July 1998 by Salaymatu Bendu
concerning alleged crimes committed by Kamajors.

10 Statement Statement dated 23 July 1998 by Turay Mohamed
concerning alleged crimes committed by Kamajors.

11 Statement Statement dated 16 April 1999 by Turay Idrissa
concerning an incident involving alleged crimes
committed by Kamajors.

12 Statement Two pages of a statement by Will Junisa regarding
allegations of crimes committed by Kamajors

13 Statement Statement by Konnie Donald Tom, CDF Chiefdom
Ground Commander, about the alleged attacks by
Kamajors.




14

Statements

Content

Collection of four statements (8 pages in total) made
by Turay Issa; Conteh Boizy; Turay Imurana
(Murana); Kelfala Woodie respectively.

15

Statement

Statement of Bendu Brima alleging attacks by
Kamajors on him and his family in July 1998.

16

List

Distribution list for initiators for July 1998.

17

Letter

Letter written by Charles S.E. Moiwo, National
P.R.O. CDF/SL, to authorities including Kondewa,
dated 13 July 2000.

18

Message

Paraphrase of coded message from District
Administrator CDF Moyamba, dated 12 May 2000,
regarding the capture of Songo area and request for
supplies. Contains handwritten notation from Hinga
Norman that arrangements for supplies should be
made.

19

Letter

Eugene Cowan’s "Petition for Assistance to Retrieve
Land Cruiser Vehicle Registration No. EL 15168
sent to CDS 2 March 1999

20

Letter

Petition sent by TF2-125 to Chief of Defence staff,
dated 28 February 1999. The petition was forwarded
to Deputy Defense Minister Hinga Norman with a 2
page cover letter by OC Medani, Commander for
Chief of Defense Staff, 3 March 1999.

21

Document

Document signed by Mohamed Jalloh titled
“Kamajors Loot Private Dwelling House and shop at
Portee”.

22

Documents

Documents (5 pages in total) related to the beating of
Emmanuel Fillie, British High Commissioner's
Driver, on 5 March 1999 by CDF Combatants.

23

Document

Curriculum Vitae of Samuel Hinga Norman.
Contains biodata and other information about career
of Hinga Norman.

24

Newsletter

Sierra Leonean Newsletter published by the
Movement for Restoration of Democracy in Sierra
Leone (MORDSIL), dated 11 August 1997.
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| Content

25 Letter A letter written by J.S. Keifala, Secretary Eastern
Union, signed both by Keifala and Hinga Norman,
dated 17 March 1999.

26 Radio Message Text of 3 radio messages sent from District Admin,
CDF, Bo June 1999,

27 Situation Report Copy of the text of a radio message (Situation
Report) sent Dist Admin CDF (SL) Headquarters
Pujehun in Zimmi to National Coordinator (Hinga

Norman) in October 1999.

28 Radio Message Copy of the text of a radio message sent out by
National Director of Transport CDF (SL), 23 June
1999.

29 Radio Message Text of a radio message sent from CDF Headquarters

Kenema to the national CDF Headquarters, Freetown
- attention National Director of War, 2 April 1999.

30 Radio Message Text of a radio message sent from CDF Headquarters
Bo - to the National Co-ordinator and info to Moinina
Fofana; dated 19 April 1999.

31 Radio Message Text of a radio message sent by Hinga Norman to
Dist Admin CDF (SL) Bo; dated 15 April 1999
regarding the raising of manpower.

32 Radio Message Text of a radio message sent by Dist Admin Pujehun
CDF (SL) at Kenema sent to Dist. Admin Bo; dated
15 April 1999 asking for urgent provision of 500 men
for operational purposes.

33 Letter Letter written by Allieu Kondewa, sent from Civil
Defence HQ, Tihun Sogbini Chiefdom, Bonthe
District, dated 31 July 1997.

34 Investigation Report An investigation report by 15 ECOMOG Brigade
Kenema authored by Captain A. Abukakar and dated
20 December 1998. The report was forwarded to
Vice President, Republic of Sierra Leone, Kenema
under a cover letter signed by Major A. N. Nwadiaro
on 26 December 1998.
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| Content

Letter addressed to Allieu Kondewa from Sumaila
Turay-Jabbie of CDF, Bumpe Ngao Chiefdom, dated
13 December 1997.

35 Letter

36 Letter Letter titled “From High Priest Dr. Allieu Kondewa
to Deputy Minister of Defences.”

37 Letter Letter sent from "Death Squad Unit, Tisana”, signed
by Bob Tucker and addressed to Dear Chief.

38 Passport Sierra Leone Passport Number S005865, issued in
the name of Samuel Hinga Norman.

39 Memo Memo from the Commander in Chief (SLCDF) to the
Honourable Chief Sam Hinga Norman dated 23
November 1997 titled “enlistment of executive
members of zone II front line, assault rifles and shot-
guns in possession.”

40 Memo Memo from the Secretary General SLCDF, Abu
Konuwa, to Hinga Norman dated 16 November 1997,
titled “Situation Reports as at 16 November 1997,
and the violation of the Conakry Peace Accord by
Both the AFRC and the RUF”.

41 Letter Letter from the Administrative Officer,
South/Western region, Bonthe Moyamba District,
dated 18 November 1997, titled “Administrative and
War Report on the A trip to Mano Dasse.”

42 Letter Letter from Mustapha S. Sankoh, Deputy Director
and Admin Officer War Council, from the SLCDF
South/Western Region, Bonthe Moyamba District
dated 22 November 1997 to the Head Office, Talia
Town Bonthe District, titled “Administrative and
War Report within Bonthe and Moyamba District.”

43 Photograph Photograph of what appears to be a dead body of a
male of African extract found inside a Sierra Leone
Service Passport Number S005865, issued in the
name of Samuel Hinga Norman.

44 Photograph Photograph of King Dr. Allieu Kondewa together
with another person.




45

Photograph

| Content

o

Photograph of what appears to be a child soldier by
the name of Saidu Duaivian.

46

Photograph

Photograph of what appears to be a child soldier by
the name of Joseph Abdulai.

47

Photograph

Photograph of what appears to be a child soldier by
the name of Robert Sevalie.

48

Photograph

Photograph of what appears to be a child soldier by
the name of Musa Share.

49

Photograph

Photograph of what appears to be a child soldier by
the name of Foday Lasana.

50

Letter

Letter from Allieu Kondewa to Chairman of Bo
District CDF dated 4 September 1998.

51

Personal note book

Reports a number of killings committed by kamajors.

Refers to a meeting in Base Zero where Hinga
Norman said that he was to blame for everything that
kamajors are doing.

Refers to a meeting of some executive members of
the CDF where it was discussed that in order to win
the war a human being should be sacrificed.

52

Report

Report of War Council meeting held in Kenema on
the 20 and 21 April 1998 submitted by TF2-068.

53

Letter

Letter from TF2-005 to Hinga Norman dated 20
March 1998.

54

Letter

Letter from the Commander of the Fifth Battalion
Koribondu to the 38 Battallion HQ dated 11 October
1995.

55

Report

Undated report from TF2-073.

56

Letter

Letter from the Permanent Secretary Ministry of
Agriculture & Forestry in Freetown, signed by P.A.
Gaima to the Commissioner of Police in BO, dated
16 March 1998.
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Number

Letter

. ,Cometit

Letter dated 16 March 1998 to the National Director
of Operations Civil Defense Force (CDF) Southern
Province, BO. Copied to the Ecomog Commander
Southern Province Bo, the Chairman of the Civil
Defense Force, Southern Province, Bo, and Mr. M.
B. Kamara Deputy Chief Conservator of Forest,
Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry in Freetown.

58

Letter

Letter from the Permanent Secretary, Ministry of
Agriculture signed to the Deputy Minister of
Defense, Freetown, dated 14 August 1998.

59

Letter

Letter dated 11 August 1998 addressed to the Acting
Chairman NCC/CDF Defence Headquarter’s in
Freetown from the Chief Conservator of Forests in
Freetown.

60

Report

Witness’ report on atrocities committed by Kamajors
implicating Hinga Norman.

61

Report

Report from Hassan Sherrif, commander of the 4th
Batallion CDF, to Deputy Defence Minister, dated 31
October 1998.

62

Letter

Letter from Witness to Officer in charge, Moyamba
Police station, dated 8 March 1999, reporting general
incidents of armed robbery and murders by
unspecified perpetrators.

63

Report

Report submitted by CDF National HQ to Chairman
of national Co-ordinating Committee-CDF for the
attention of President Kabbah.

64

Report

Report addressed to SCSL about atrocities and
human rights violations committed by Co Julius
Squire and other commanders.

65

Letter

Letter of appointment from Hinga Norman to
Witness dated 11 February 1998.

66

Receipt

Receipt dated 3 March 1998 for Le 500,000
presented to the CDF Kamajors from the Bonthe
Community.




67

Letter

Content

Letter of appointment for CDF regional
representatives on the ceasefire monitoring
committee approved by Hinga Norman.

68

Letter

Letter setting out actions of Kamajors in Bonthe
District.

69

Letter

Letter referring to the suspension of some personnel
of the Special Forces High Command on charges of
gross insubordination to the Chairman and mutiny.

70

Letter

Letter from Mohamed Tarawally to Hinga Norman
dated 10 July 1998.

71

Letter

The last page of an apparently 5 page letter written
by Moinina Fofana (sic), Director of War/ Ops, Base
Zero, Sietra Leone request to the addressee for
supplies and ammunition.

72

Letter.

Letter addressed to “Chief Norman” written by Dixon
S. Kosia, Deputy Coordinator, Lugbu CDF, Upper
Saama, Lugbu Chiefdom, Bo District re: request for
arms and ammunitions for laying an ambush on Bo,
Pujehun, and Sumbuya Highways”, dated 29
September 1997.

73

Document

“Travelling Pass” dated 16 December 1996 (sic,
should be 1998) issued by Civil Defence Southern
Region - Bo, 14th Battalion — Koribondo.

74

Letter

Letter written circa June 1998, by “Representatives
of the Bo District Kamajors Southern Province, Bo”.
The letter is addressed to “CDF/SL National Office,
Freetown” through “National Coordinator, Hon, Sam
Hinga Norman, Freetown”.

75

Document

Document titled “Civil Defence Force, Bo, Sierra
Leone, List of Security Personnel Attached to the
National Co-ordinator CDF Sierra Leone, Bo
Headquarters, 12 New Gerihun Road, Bo”.




76

Document

by

|Content

Document titled “CDF / SL Northern Region
Structure ....” showing how many District
Commanders, Battalion Commanders and Company
Commanders exist in each of the Districts of
Bombali, Port Loko, Tonkolili and Koinadagu.

77

Document

Document titled “Bo District Battalion
Commanders”. List of CDF Battalion Commanders
in Bo District.

78

Document

Document titled “Bo District Company
Commanders”. This document contains a list of
Company Commanders in Bo District.

79

Document

Document titled “Moyamba District BNS,
BN/Commanders, Cdoms”. This document contains a
list of 7 CDF Battalions, Battalion Commanders and
respective Chiefdoms in Moyamba District.

80

Document

Document titled “Official Postings” addressed to The
Chairman, Committee for Identification,
Documentation, Recovery and Release of Looted
Properties”.

81

Document

Document titled “Civil Defence Forces Sierra Leone,
Monthly Logistics Supply Returns”. This document
relates to April 2001 and is dated 7 May 2001. It was
“Signed and Collected for Distribution By: Moinina
Fofanah, Director or (sic) War CDF (SL)”.

82

Document

Document dated 23 September 1997 addressed to
Sam H. Norman, Dept. Defence Minister.

83

Letter

A letter consisting of a single sheet dated 15 October
1997 written by Andrew Harding and addressed to
Sam H. Norman, Deputy Defence Minister.

84

Not Used

85

Report

Daily Front Line Report dated 2 October 1997 from
Alpha K. Siaka, Secretary General. The report is
addressed to “S.H. Norman, Deputy Minister of
Defence”.

)
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86 Letter Handwritten letter dated 18 November 2000 from

High Priest Dr. Allieu Kondewa (sic).

87 Documents A set of two documents comprising complaints
against CDF by Madam Miata Fofanah for looting of
her family property.

88 Document An incomplete fax which appears to be the last page

of a complaint lodged against CDF by Joseph Sinnah
for looting his property at 9 Willoughby Lane,
Brookfields, Freetown on 17 July 2000.

89 Documents A set of two documents. The first document is a 3-
page typed document titled “Summary of Decisions
taken at the Workshop on CDF / Community
Relationships — 17 June 1999 and 18 June 1999”.
The second document is titled “seven point
undertaking by Chief Norman — National Co-
Ordinator CDF/SL and Deputy Minister of Defence.”

90 Letter Letter dated 16 August 1999 written by the National
High Priest Dr. Allieu Kunduwa (sic, Kondewa) and
his Deputy Dr. Jibao Amara to Dr. Mosses M.
Hakawa.

91 Not Used

92 Letter Letter dated 20 June 2000 written by the National
High Priest Dr. Allieu Kundowa (sic, Kondewa) to
National Coordinator, Civil Defence Forces (Hinga
Norman).

93 Document Document dated 8 January 2001 and titled “Ruthless
Behaviour of Kamajors in and around Rokel village”
written by Amadu Mannah, Chief Police Officer,
Western “D”’ Division, and addressed to The
Regional Commissioner (West) with a copy to the
CDF representative Joint Coordination Centre (JCC).

94 Letter Letter dated 10 January 2000 from National High
Priest, Dr. Allieu Kundewa (sic, Kondewa) addressed
to The Director of Personal (sic, Personnel) CDF /SL
arguing against the possible disbanding of the
National Task Force Office.
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95 Letter Letter dated 10 January 2000 from National High
Priest, Dr. Allieu Kundawa (sic, Kondewa) addressed
to The National Public Relations Officer CDF / SL
recommending the Mohamed Mansaray and Samuel
Lahat as persons responsible for collecting all
supplies and condiments meant for all CDF / SL
Initiators.

96 Letter Letter dated 6 July 2001 from the CDF Director of
Personnel, Andrew N.K. Harding addressed to The
Director of Logistics CDF, titled: “Reminding you
for Unsettled Outstanding Bills”.

96(A) Document Bill for ID Cards

96(B) List Names of registered CDF children on the C.A.W.
program.

96(C) List List of wounded Kamajors at Brookfields Hotel,
Freetown.

97 Letter Letter dated 24 April 2001 written by the Moinina

Fofanah, National War Office, Bo, addressed to
National Coordinator, Civil Defence Forces (Hinga
Norman).

98 Certificate A “Certificate of Training” issued by The Civil
Defence Force of Sierra Leone to “Francis
Kpanabom 0798”. The certificate is dated 10
February 1998 but bears no signature.

99 Certificate A “Certificate of Training” issued by The Civil
Defence Force of Sierra Leone to “Soloman Maoah,
0799”. The certificate is dated 10 February 1998 but
bears no signature.

100 Document Document titled: “Battle Front Report Pujehun
District, Date: 18 June 1997, Time: 1045 PM”. The
document is signed by Sam Hinga Norman.

101 Document Document titled “Front Line Report, Pujehun
District, dated 19 June 1997.”

102 Document Document titled: “Front Line Reports, Pujehun
District; dated 20 June 1997.”

10
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103 Document Document titled: “Front Line Report, Pujehun
District, 21 June 1997.”

104 Communique Communique issued by the CDF relating to child
soldiers and Communique from meeting of the Joint
Committee on Disarmament Demobilization and
Reintegration, 15 May 2001.

105 Document Document titled: “Report From Front Line, Points to
Ponder”.
106 Document Document titled: “Reports From Front Line,

Covering Period 13 July 1997 — 19 July 1997, Date:
18 July 1997, Attention: COS”

107 Document Document titled: “Minutes of Meeting held between
Chief Norman and the Delegation of Kamajors From
Bo District on the 26 July 1997 at Gendema — Bo
Water Side Mano River Bridge.

108 Letter Letter dated 12 August 1997 written by Hinga
Norman and addressed to The Chief of Staff,
ECOMOG, Monrovia.

109 Document Document dated 27 August 1997 titled “Very Urgent
Front Line Request”. It is written by Hinga Norman
and addressed to The Chief of Staff, ECOMOG,
ECOMOG Headquarters, Monrovia, Liberia. The
document is not signed.

110 Documents A set of two documents, the first of which is a letter
written and signed by Sam Hinga Norman dated 8
September 1997 and addressed to The Commander,
Nigerian Contingent, ECOMOG Headquarters,
Monrovia, Liberia. The second document was written
and signed for by Hon. M.L. Kallon, Chairman, Adm
(Administration Wing). It bears the heading “Sierra
Leone Civil Defence Force, Emergency Front Line
Report From Jendema, Mano River Bridge”.

111 Document Letter written by Sam Hinga Norman, and addressed
to Commander, Nigerian Contingent, ECOMOG,
Monrovia, Liberia; dated 26 September 1997.

11
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112

Documents

A set of documents the first of which is dated 26
September 1997, written and signed by Sam Hinga
Norman, and is addressed to The Chief of Staff,
ECOMOG Headquarters, Monrovia, Liberia. The
second document is list titled: “Civil Defence Forces
Sierra Leone: Requisition for Arms and Ammuntions
(sic, Ammunitions)”.

113

Documents

A set of two documents, the first of which is a letter
written and signed by Sam Hinga Norman dated 17
September 1997 and addressed to The Commander,
Nigerian Contingent, ECOMOG Headquarters,
Monrovia, Liberia. The second document bears the
heading “Sierra Leone Civil Defence Force,
Emergency Front Line Report From Jendema - Mano
River Bridge”.

114

Documents

A set of two documents, the first of which is a letter
written and signed for by Sam Hinga Norman dated
29 September 1997 and addressed to The
Commander, Nigerian Contingent, ECOMOG
Headquarters, Monrovia, Liberia. The second bears
the heading “Sierra Leone Civil Defence Force,
Emergency Front Line Report From Jendema - Mano
River Bridge” (dated 29 September 1997).

115

Document

Document titled “Very Urgent Request for Special
Operations”. It is written and signed for by Sam
Hinga Norman, dated 6 October 1997, and is
addressed to The Commander, Nigerian Contingent,
ECOMOG Headquarters.

116

Document

Document titled “Progress Report / Request”. It’s
written and signed for by Sam Hinga Norman dated 6
October 1997 and is addressed to The Commander,
Nigerian Contingent, ECOMOG Headquarters,
Monrovia, Liberia.

12
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A set of two documents, the first of which is a letter
written and signed for by Sam Hinga Norman dated 3
November 1997 and addressed to The Commander,
Nigerian Contingent, ECOMOG Headquarters,
Monrovia, Liberia. The second document bears the
heading “Sierra Leone Civil Defence Force,
Emergency Front Line Report From Jendema - Mano
River Bridge” (dated 3 November 1997).

118

Documents

A set of two documents, the first of which is a letter
written and signed for by Sam Hinga Norman dated
14 November 1997 and addressed to The
Commander, Nigerian Contingent, ECOMOG
Headquarters, Monrovia, Liberia. The second
document bears the heading “Sierra Leone Civil
Defence Force, Emergency Front Line Report From
Jendema - Mano River Bridge” (dated 21 November
1997).

119

Documents

A set of two documents, the first of which is a letter
written and signed for by Sam Hinga Norman dated 3
November 1997 and addressed to The Commander,
Nigerian Contingent, ECOMOG Headquarters,
Monrovia, Liberia.

120

Documents

A set of two documents, the first of which is a letter
written and signed for by Sam Hinga Norman dated
17 December 1997 and addressed to The
Commander, Nigerian Contingent, ECOMOG,
Monrovia, Liberia. The second document bears the
heading “Sierra Leone Civil Defence Force,
Emergency Front Line Report From Jendema - Mano
River Bridge” (not dated).

121

Letter

A letter of appointment dated 20 February 1998. The
Letter is signed by Sam Hinga Norman and copied to
the War Council.

122

Letter

Letter dated 24 February 1998 from The Director of
War, 17" Battalion Commander- Koribondo at Base
Zero. The letter is signed by Moinina Fofanah and
copied to the Coordinator, The Director of
Intelligence and The Chairman — War Council.

13
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123

Letter

A handwritten letter from the Civil Defence Force,
dated 12 November 1997. The letter is signed by
King Dr Allieu Kondewa and approved by Moinina
Fofanah.

124

Letter

A handwritten letter from the Civil Defence Unit
Madina H/Q dated 16 October 1997. The letter is
passing on information about the arrival of Hinga
Norman at Talia Yawbeko with ammunitions for
operations.

125

Pass

Bonthe District Civil Defence Kamajors HQ, Tihun,
Sogbeni Chiedom pass, dated 14 November 1997.
The pass certifies that the holder is an initiate of King
Dr Allieu Kondewa, the High Priest and requests that
all privileges be accorded the holder.

126

Document

Handwritten document bearing the caption
“Guidelines to operate on after the capture of B”
dated 20 February 1998.

127

Letter

A handwritten letter from Mohamed Sesay, Madina
Town, Bum Chiefdom, dated 13 July 1997.

128

Letter

Letter from Moinina Fofana, Director of War, Civil
Defence Force, Sierra Leone to All Battalion
Commanders CDF SL dated 15 May 1998, signed by
Fofana titled “request for troops” from all CDF
commanders.

129

Letter

Letter from the representatives of the War Council
now resident in Dassamu Village , Bumpeh-Ngao
Chiefdom to Commander for the Special Operation —
Koribondo, dated 18 February 1998.

130

Document

Handwritten pages containing a list of looted items
from Addala — Tikonko.

131

Letter

A handwritten letter from Witness TF2-087, dated 4

May 1999.

14
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132

Letter

Letter from Civil Defence Force Sierra Leone —
Koribondo addressed to the Director of War, Camp
Zero, Gola Forest, Sierra Leone, dated 18 February
1998.

133

Letter

A letter to the Regional Coordinator, CDF Forces
Southern Region, Bo, dated 17 April 1998.

134

Document

A handwritten note dated 15 August 1997.

135

Letter

Letter from the Regional Coordinator CDF/SL Bo,
dated 17 April 1998.

136

Letter

Letter from C.O. Commander Gondama Base to Zone
Commander, dated 12 March 1998.

137

Document

A short handwritten note from C.O. Gbassay
Ansumana, dated 3 November 1998.

138

Letter

Letter to the War Commander dated, 15 January
1998, requesting arms and ammunition.

139

Letter

Letter from the Director of Operations — South to The
Battalion Commanders, dated 4 March 1998, and
copied to The Chairman War Council and The
National Director of Operations.

140

Letter

Letter from Kamajors in Hoya, Kwamebai Krim
Chiefdom, dated 18 August 1997.

141

Letter

Letter from CDF Bagbo Branch-Ngolapon, Southern
Province to an unknown addressee dated 7 August
1997, signed by the General Secretary and Adviser.

142

Letter

A letter from W.S. Kalil of Fulawahun to Yeiwa
Turay of Koribondo, dated 4 March 1998

143

Letter

Letter from The Director of Operations — J. A.S.
Koroma to The Acting Battalion Commander, all in
Bo. Letter is dated 31 August 2000 and is copied to
The National Coordinator CDF/SL The Director of
War CDF/SL and The High Priest Dr Kondewa.

144

Letter

Letter from TF2-011 in Kenema to Commander TF2-
082 dated 19 April 1998.

15




4

Number Itﬂﬁ ' i 'Content' |

145 Pass A Pass from The Battalion Commander CDF/SL 5%
Battalion Headquarters Koribondo to “Those it may
concern at Highway Gates”, dated 23 March 1998.

146 Letter Letter from The Deputy Director of War, to The
Battalion Commander CDF/SL Koribondo, dated 28
February 1998.

147 Letter Letter from the General Spokesman for the CDF/SL
Sumbuya Base, dated 11 March 1998.

148 Letter Handwritten note inviting Commander to a meeting
with Sam Hinga Norman during an impending visit
to Bo.

149 Letter Letter from the Chairman War Council, Bo to the
Commander 17th Battalion, dated 4 March 1998.

150 Letter Letter from the Deputy Coordinator CDF/SL
Sumbuya (Bum Branch) Base, dated 30 May 1998.

151 Letter Letter from the Base Commander Sierra Leone CDF
Bun Chiefdom Bonthe District Torma Base.

152 Letter Letter of appointment from The National Coordinator
Civil Defence Forces HQ in Base Zero, dated 11
February 1998.

153 Distribution List A list showing distribution of logistics to CDF
personnel.
154 Distribution List A list showing distribution of logistics to CDF

commanders for the month of September 1998.

155 Letter Letter from the Madam Munda Fortune Kasilla II
Battalion Bo to The Deputy Minister of Defence
(National Coordinator-CDF) dated 27 September
1998.

156 Letter Letter of Appointment from The High Priest of The
Civil Defence Forces Sierra Leone to Mr Mualim
Allie Sesay, dated 4 November 1998.

16



| Content

157 Letter Letter of Recommendation from The High Priest of
The Civil Defence Forces Sierra Leone to The
National Coordinator in respect of Mualim Allie
Sesay, dated 26 July 2000.

158 Letter Letter of “Recommendation” from The High Priest
of The Civil Defence Forces Sierra Leone to The
National Public Relations Officer (PRO) in respect of
Dr Mohamed Mansaray (Initiator) and Mr Samuel
Lahai (Secretary), dated 10 January 2000.

159 Letter Letter of “Recommendation” from The High Priest of
The Civil Defence Forces Sierra Leone to The
National Public Relations Officer (PRO) in respect of
Dr Mohamed Mansaray (Initiator) and Mr Samuel
Lahai (Secretary), dated 13 January 2000.

160 Declaration Declaration of commitment signed by Samuel Hinga
Norman, to the Release of Child Combatants and
Child Abductees by various Factions, March 2000.

161 Calendar CDF Calendar for the year 2001 depicting photos of
senior figures of the CDF.
162 Report by the Regional | Report on unacceptable behaviour of CDF in the
Reconciliation Southern Region, August 2000.
Committee (RRC)

Southern Region

163 Letter Letter to the Commissioner of Police, Sierra Leone
Police Force East, Kenema referring to a “list of
suspects in Kenema Prison accused of Junta
collaboration”, dated 13 July 1998.

164 Letter Letter of Petition against termination from office,
dated 1 July 2000.

165 United Nations Sierra Leone Humanitarian Situation Report, 23 June
Document 1997

166 United Nations Sierra Leone Humanitarian Situation Report, 14 July
Document 1997

167 United Nations Sierra Leone Humanitarian Situation Report, 31
Document March 1998

17
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168 United Nations Sierra Leone Humanitarian Situation Report, 15 June
Document 1998
169 United Nations Sierra Leone Humanitarian Situation Report, 30 April
Document 1999
170 United Nations Sierra Leone Humanitarian Situation Report, 9
Document October 1999
171 United Nations Sierra Leone Humanitarian Situation Report, 20
Document November 1999
172 United Nations Sierra Leone Humanitarian Situation Report, 7
Document August 2000
173 United Nations Report of the UN Secretary General on the Situation
Document in Sierra Leone, 21 November 1995 (S/1995/975)
174 United Nations Second Report of the UN Secretary General on the
Document Situation in Sierra Leone, 5 December 1997
(S/1997/958)
175 United Nations Third Report of the UN Secretary General on the
Document Situation in Sierra Leone, 5 February 1998
(S/1998/103)
176 United Nations Fifth Report of the UN Secretary General on the
Document Situation in Sierra Leone, 9 June 1998 (S/1998/486)
177 United Nations First Progress Report of the UN Secretary General on
Document the Situation in Sierra Leone, 12 August 1998
(S/1998/750)
178 United Nations Second Progress Report of the UN Secretary General
Document on the Situation in Sierra Leone, 16 October 1998
(S/1998/960)
179 United Nations Third Progress Report of the UN Secretary General
Document on the Situation in Sierra Leone, 16 December 1998
(S/1998/1176)
180 United Nations Fifth Report of the UN Secretary General on the
Document Situation in Sierra Leone, 4 March 1999
(S/1999/237)
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181 United Nations Sixth Report of the UN Secretary General on the
Document Situation in Sierra Leone, 4 June 1999 (S/1999/645)
182 United Nations Seventh Report of the UN Secretary General on the
Document Situation in Sierra Leone, 30 July 1999 (S/1999/836)
183 United Nations Security Council Resolution 1346 (30 March 2001)
Document
184 United Nations Security Council Resolution 1220 (12 January 1999)
Document
185 United Nations Security Council Resolution 1270 (22 October 1999)
Document
186 United Nations Security Council Resolution 1181 (13 July 1998)
Document
187 United Nations Security Council Resolution 1132 (8 October 1997)
Document
188 United Nations UNICEF Press Release, “Stop Using Child Soldiers,
Document Sierra Leone Told,” 19 June 1997
189 United Nations UNICEF Monthly Report, “Events Pertaining to
Document Children,” 31 July 1999
190 United Nations UNOMSIL - Human Rights Assessment Mission to
Document Freetown 25 January and 1 to 4 February 1999,
Findings and Recommendations.
191 Accord The Abidjan Peace Accord, 30 November 1996, The
Peace Agreement between the Government of the
Republic of Sierra Leone and the Revolutionary
United Front of Sierra Leone (RUF/SL)
192 Accord The Conakry Accord: 23 October 1997 - ECOWAS
Six-Month Peace Plan For Sierra Leone
23 October 1997 - 22 April 1998
193 Ceasefire Agreement Ceasefire Agreement Between Government and the
Revolutionary United Front, 18 May 1999
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194 Accord The Peace Agreement Between the Government of
Sierra Leone and the Revolutionary United Front of
Sierra Leone (RUF/SL) “The Lome Peace Accord” 7
July 1999
195 Map Sierra Leone, Scale 1:350,000
196 Record of States Party | ICRC, States party to the Geneva Conventions of 12
to Geneva Conventions | August 1949 and their Additional Protocols of 8 June
1977
197 Treaty Geneva Conventions of 12 August 1949 and their
Additional Protocols of 8 June 1977.
198 Report of Non- Human Rights Watch, “Getting Away with Murder,
Governmental Mutilation and Rape” Vol. 11, No. 3 (A) June 1999.
Organization
199 Report of Non- Human Rights Watch, “Sowing Terror, Atrocities
Governmental against civilians in Sierra Leone,” Vol. 10, No. 3 (A)
Organization July 1998.
200 Report of Non- Human Rights Watch, “We’ll kill you if you Cry,
Governmental Sexual violence in the Sierra Leone Conflict” Vol. 15
Organization No. 1 (A), January 2003.
201 Report of Non- Amnesty International, “Sierra Leone 1998 — a year
Governmental of atrocities against civilians”.
Organization
202 Report of Non- Amnesty International, “Sierra Leone — Childhood -
Governmental a casualty of conflict,” AFR 51/69/00, 31 August
Organization 2000.
203 Report of Non- Amnesty International Annual Report 1999, “Al
Governmental Report 1999: Sierra Leone”.
Organization
204 Report of Non- Human Rights Practices for 1998, “Sierra Leone
Governmental Country Report”, released by the Bureau of
Organization Democracy, Human Rights, and Labor US Dept of

State Bureau of Democracy, February 1999.

20




| Content

A58k

Report of Non- Amnesty International “Annual Report 2000, Sierra
Governmental Leone”.
Organization

206 Report of Non- Amnesty International Press Release, “Sierra Leone:
Governmental Action Needed to End use of Child Combatants”, 31
Organization August 2000.

207 Report of Non- Human Rights Watch, “World Report 1999: Sierra
Governmental Leone, Human Rights Developments”.
Organization

208 Report of Non- Human Rights Watch Report 2001: Sierra Leone,
Governmental “Sierra Leone: Most Serious Attacks in Months.
Organization Human Rights Watch Interviews: Victims and

Witnesses,” 24 July 2001.

209 Report of Non- Human Rights Watch, “Recent Abuses Documented
Governmental by Human Rights Watch,” 30 November 2000.
Organization

210 Report of Non- Human Rights Watch, “Sierra Leone Government
Governmental Bombing Causes Civilian Deaths,” 12 July 2000.
Organization

211 Report of Non- International Crisis Group Africa Report No. 28
Governmental “Sierra Leone: Time for a New Military & Political
Organization Strategy,” 11 April 2001.

212 Report of Non- International Crisis Group Sierra Leone Project,
Governmental “Sierra Leone Situation Analysis,” 9 February 1998.
Organization

213 Report of Non- Physicians for Human Rights “War-Related Sexual
Governmental Violence in Sierra Leone,” published 2002 ISBN: 1-
Organization 879707-37-3.

214 Report of Non- Mazurana, Dyan and Khristopher Carlson, “From
Governmental Combat to Community: Women and Girls of Sierra
Organization Leone” January, 2004.

215 Report of Non- No Peace Without Justice, “Sierra Leone Conflict
Governmental Mapping Program” Draft Copy, 9 March 2004
Organization (reference to excerpt preface, chapters 1-3, 5).
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216 Speech Address by Major Johnny Paul Koroma, Head of
State and Chairman of the Armed Forces
Revolutionary Council, Freetown, 28 May 1997.

217 Speech Address by Major Johnny Paul Koroma, Head of
State and Chairman of the Armed Forces
Revolutionary Council, Freetown, 1 June 1997

218 Press Release - Radio CDF Statement of FM 98.1, 22 December 1997 from
Broadcast Statement the movement for the restoration of democracy,
MRD, civil defence secretariat, Freetown.

219 Press Release Kamajor Press Release issued by Samuel Hinga
Norman, 23 December 1997

220 Interview Summary of Conversations Held with Civil Defence
Force Leader Sam Hinga Norman, 10 January 1998
by Alfred Sam Foray

221 Statement Ministry of Information and Broadcasting,

“Government Statement”, 24 May 2000.

222 News Report Inter Press Service, “Children — Sierra Leone: Militia
Admits Recruiting Child Soldiers,” Lansana Fofana,
29 June 1998.

223 News Report BBC News, “Sierra Leone diamond town besieged”,
20 November 1997.

224 News Report BBC News, “Sierra Leone clashes with Kamajor
militia”, 17 December 1997.

225 News Report BBC News, “Despatches” by Mark Doyle, 18
January 1998.

226 News Report BBC News, “Sierra Leone militias capture two

cities”, 15 February 1998.

227 News Report BBC News, “Unicef calls for the demobilisation of
child soldiers”, 2 October 1998.

228 News Report BBC News, “Traditional fighters clash with rebels in
Sierra Leone”, 6 October 1998.
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229 News Report BBC News, “Sierra Leone defence forces given
arms”, 19 December 1998.

230 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 20 June 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

231 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 2 September 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

232 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 7 September 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

233 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 2 November 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

234 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 4 November 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

235 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 14 November 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

236 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 17 November 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

237 News Report Atrticle from SL News Archives, 20 November 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

238 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 4 December 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

239 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 12 December 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

240 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 23 December 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

241 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 24 December 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

242 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 30 December 1997,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

243 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 1 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web
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244 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 2 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

245 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 8 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

246 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 13 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

247 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 16 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

248 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 17 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

249 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 18 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

250 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 19 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

251 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 20 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

252 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 21 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

253 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 26 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

254 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 29 January 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

255 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 8 February 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

256 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 13 February 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

257 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 15 February 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

258 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 6 March 1998,

published on the Sierra Leone Web
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259 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 13 April 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

260 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 29 June 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

261 News Report Article from SL News Archives, 15 September 1998,
published on the Sierra Leone Web

262 News Report Newswave, “To Die or To Live? The Verdict on
Sierra Leone’s plotters”, October 1998.
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Letter
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Letter from Regional Secretary (East) and Regional
Co-ordinator (East), dated 22 March 1998.
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Letter to Hinga Norman from Allieu Kondewa dated
29 June 2000.
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Number G

3 Note book seized from one of the locations used by

Hinga Norman.




29N

SNUNAT

- ) \
DDLU OLYLGLLL ST D A-\/i
!
|

-

R \ .- =T - - -
_(‘ w e/ W2 77T B & NN

M Q/Af,«.(cw—-’ n Lo

L

| f!;
| PRI S |
:l QW Lk B ot “
'E : Badetin g @i Tatea Kokoin

? ! §eleonel

I' H Lo . el i
P | "'/72 — WMok ' '
flaes |
‘ 1

00000650

Kwdw g







"B0o0

N
L

PR

P ‘\;'
L o e R
Y 2 U U U Y s 2 Tsiosr oz ’

o .
Al ud v &‘—*7%»&“

foce ey
gp;?m%w cdecal

(Tactals llfead




¥
§
00000653 4
é'?f;
|

|
i
|
il
i
L

|

*’Waaaaaaaaaaeeeeeegz1r¢w7

ettt L LA W 2
*%§§S§i§ﬁﬁiiﬁ§§§5555§i§zgw

.l o, e F*- Y

.

Aol




2 \,\)ﬁ

i
il

|ir

:
\

/

7
'~
&

—
s,
/i
; ’JI
_. a.
Vof am !
S

“3 >
&
\ @

it

o~
A.\?‘T:n Q

S—— .

J 12

¢

vov

v

Coenp Clalie s
R

Q‘ﬂ“*;qffs&f XBOOK
y  Wlas e DPD G doery

) Tte T~ HHe < DF

00000654

|




I — S
S SERINNN UGN S5-I SRR S s AT SO B BRI S

LA

e

St A L AP Y P s .

00000655

R I T T S PR

Lyr Yooy




i
it I
14

{
P
I
I

(P ITOT YT T L

. \“‘ffflfﬂfﬁf/ﬂﬂff/‘)‘/s § 5 < 5 5

e Corrent s K
kit U hepre

o cartcat [ Terioos LZ

—_— f’emp,«_mf-»&- Cervies
— v~ ﬂ'ﬁ(z,

%mwwm . 1
|

00000656




|
R A IO
'.

£

| ..m \\\}\\\\\\\\\ Y

! r 8]
i |
g '
i

! i

)

i

h

. |

¥
4




h

-~ —

""‘L

TR
WTAM alZ,

§, f;/ f, €, & & €

B

g & €

S S

o

E 6 R

e p———

= e e
e DU U WSS SRl GRS e r . : -




o Tamcy - W - pomm—

o - pmerr e

f i TR S . B 3 . e . T TR
\ e e R TR T

[l 7"
/

-

U

-

XN

00000659

RN

=/

L

s

V!

'
e e e S et




1
i
1

-
!
<

Z
,“m /.M

TS

e




00000661

2t ag

A

ol

A

SANN

ey




o ) A0

~ Y

. Q\‘a‘i\

00000662




‘ ST

‘\"‘ir (LI LN L A
\1&4&_\&\\\\\\\\\

RN TIRS

Al




B 5(0\ <;U

2 \\‘h\\\\\\\\\\\::

‘W,»nr,uu?, R T TN
ki

<L
000006628




e Y i e gt wA

e 0 i St 5 it USROS SN BN BB AN Ut i -~

00000552

I

2

N\




“ 'i W‘-\W&m\m o~

5/

)
14 060000664 i




Ablg




Aol

o>

&

Wil

00000665

7

F

b




3bl 3

e

00000567

/

&
)

rEa

i i

SN

LI S

S

R - .-

~ ‘y i
L
¥ :
-~ )




ALY

/’.JS: N i\
[

S~
‘--

o
" i *
VNS S

S

PP

———

i

‘ AR Y

PR )
i ‘ 3 5 5/ =/ s 57 &
LN, NS T T VARV AT, b

00000668




Mol9

\I,',Il"l

S ST S A St . br———r—

N ]
’7

NANNNNN

00000669

ATTTEIRS

gom




= JITT T
T§55

Abow

o PO

bPeeeegyy

4 R %“ - owl

#




Aok




M J}'\/&Q B - . ”1 ’

R
372 /8 Ix rsorsoraga O A N N N N /4 ’*’/’:‘Tﬁ"’. M,.
k . 7o N

Ab A




AR IS RSN 24 i Ly i A O ﬁ

\J‘

"

At

4“*“'“‘

{
)
A
h
R

i = M unvama s

o

-

~ Te LU s Cro ";4'7(4
T AT+ i oy ow £




At

dealldre o ? Jé( /@(/?,1,9 ‘Jez‘ | |
L rn SrL M , F ;
: é a“‘“ gan.‘r %‘,‘ g('

>

‘%’7” Fe ke, ,,; N
ﬁo»o Aer Cooper ; u/y i

I
é;\
R
N
)
N
5

00000674
A

I

; o \

H It
JW{‘*“I?F““%—& b \"

‘\g R H S Ta e s gy
.- \;‘







Ao kb

A PRORAINNODON

M :\“5‘\ \\\
'-Iili----ili,,‘ .

E’DD&FJE/FJ5:/5);1545/3/54@":"5\%

66000675 o

00000676




A

. ‘ . ‘
]

RN vr;' i v '} N N

AN
e /5 =2~ o@‘ . |

Kprn b @it |

; :
Fo o tnamsse
| - waec,ouwz_ i
5 Y i ThelOMe sk ave e |

avod CRv

00000677
3

3

i

mtm

- e . _

- i e M N
B - 5 TN Pt e S i+ e S . wx o e e am e mee v s
L =1

Gof £ Covn bleace |
ARt Aovioco %/2-4?‘«6 |
N Al




( i

b

00000678

TN \‘m\ﬁﬂh‘?ﬂﬁl

i\x\




A4

e,

720 N NI PPITTT O

PRES SR B RS B Y Vs owd wd Wl ovd vord s ) )

R beit Lratiin 2 )
¢

- e i A “

W
e e e 3 -
RN G v LT N \dl 7=

e e cownTC

R e o g+
- e

ooy |

4) SCrWJ )

———

62900000




— 2620

“% e eearisthin.
l----Ii-------- \m
ﬁ; .-,,-, YT T VIR VIR VAR VAR VAR VAN A VA SN N v e B

: 3

(000000680




|

o

'; MRS

P>
%
i
i

P
S A ] g d ) e i -
- a ’







AL%

AU

AN AN AN O I P

00000683

/

[ & -

RSN

- ‘-




A

e — — TR

L—

DO

S

00000684

Do

= = e o T a2 T T e
e l".'l'.lll--.‘l"ll'lll“ BTl

R SRR AR VRSN SR A P O M e o




00000685

(717 ¢

o

L

re e

\‘? '7'1

(207 02 0= €2 €2 17 17 ¢




00000685

Ab Ak




Yo}
l

Qe

SRR AN AN G AR A O (NN PN S =
kAo ./

00000687
o

v

\t\

o

v o,
I I A AR

11




A28

[

\:

N
i‘im

i

Al

¥ 1 |
voER

W

A

2
00000688

-

Povy

ERNANEEEN
§ o

Do)

<P

(N
R R
L el

° TS PRI RN bWy




%39

sowd €d @) d) @) ih id ik i i e) 4l i 4l A 78 ‘s d g,

S50/ 447 Feescl

68300000




T T T I |
N A R A A AR TR TR TP TSN
B |




Aol

Wwi

i il d i odd oidoiaodxocs i

SRR

N e ad addd i i i 4

HAafie s

e oy e

N

] N

seleitin g pacceio )

e e

< - I TG AR Vo s cme g~ b4,
v’/&ﬂa/ PV A NN et N 1y
E l‘../ .

lﬁ%ﬂﬂﬂli‘ﬂ.ﬂllt|‘ A.ni

16300000




TSR
= LT TR )
piT 2reeELecrrores s g

e« i
S s st - vt

e ,_ S ._. 4 i = = '.‘._‘“ — -' [ ;!" - -»., : —= '..‘_ —t = i

S R

o :\,i_

B e T

N
o |l

00000692

A0 o




R Y S
R ot oy

TRE S M e

T R A - 4t | eI A D 10 <o
et L e
= ———

66300000




_;ii-.ii;;i.—.a.—‘.;—.iii \-n

— A,AyAag .‘
.'...-P‘L,Ja.l“duu'«'z'//*“" ’ \

00000694

o



00000695

o J

—— kh,-,””""" l !
SRR R

L)




_ — 3ioib

. \\mx OO R

IIIIIIIIIII-II Ih. \
LYV VAR VAN I W VI JI Y w

Wé 00000698
|




e TR T e !_lnﬂcl.gz.mul/

e -

e e - T e

fr ‘
i

)

\!5;\\&\\\\‘\\

(o 02 €2 02 (2 (2 (5 (&2 (57 (% (2 (2 (2 (F (> (> (> (%7

Yok

8 W o orr
~




AUt

R

Lo
——
ooy

.
~r i
iy




- e .

s SO
- W AP, oy e

]
¥ §
o ’ > N
1 i ! |
! i
. I
E
) [ [
f
:Q, \', ®ore re r;

0 re r& ra

or

S e

&
A E G N T AP € > po

h
b
B
1

‘[,

A9




AhHU

<l

m
ol
)
A

00000700




<y
R AR ()Op(’r'(‘r""'”'nr rs > > re or

“N“\M\\

5
l
2

g/

|




2

A6

T

EERENEE
00000702

OSSN

;iiii

. , E

C Py

p—

R N i — ST T
e P S R—

. = - e




S

S by :
s el 4

S T e S
L PP [ %

00000703

o e o :l..Lan("lthﬂ1r}'llll‘ = ’l;’lc'lllu e S — T
— .
N

[
-
»l

]

=

-

r

f ]
rers o606 SN (O SRR TR

rA

NN

L

L

R A

/4

e

il

Dy

=

et

e

< otare




oGf

YRR

..

Tty

-
o)
£~
>
)
amsins)
o)
o
RISy gty acp M Lg‘tﬂmnz% ﬁ

Dnga




AN SN

N5

3§




Abbl

e
o]
i~
<
o)
el
<D
<

——

oo wasls satt BRI -«

oy

==




00000707

P e At e

o o - L0 T e <o WM b B GO O 1% 4 o - A o SR ot e e S

S7) ¢ o2 i i htomatind

T &!2 “’I&“

T Ty e

-3 ?ﬂg

2 0i 030,05

Il

g

R

xe

\\\\\x\\x

fa 4 r» (2 72 €9 O € s @) €2 or o e re .

l‘/ /

A




Ah¥

| Q'

00000708

lllllll]i




st amend S

o W TT Gl e w2 Y e

=g
—
-
e
oo
<P
<
)

\




i'rv‘ i

/. 23l Dec Rur Allaect et & Crovi

Cotlslled area — de)- e ¢ 2P

I

o @M <R mf,h cafE
srrionl abk e Bealld. YR,
ChR esfrded vl sk Drg
Reel weas A‘OW

Il 20 «* Jan Ruk vitw P §
| P feace Ll as gé"« c:m "

| Wewhk 1w SHe éq

| SLp <+ Eco (Gumw >

00000719

RN
e

K

e




Aol )

B . OIS re—— 0 o8- ATl L2 e S s ot e = 1
o .alairt A PO VRS Ak A e A S TN Mt - SR

S8

r»

!§§_

r*

oo

2

s

NN

00000711




i

3 - S s
- R i
SIS [N e R

— Wb 2

g e e T T T e

o - s T, T, S, e~ o~ .o,
J"'."F'/i'/FJ‘J'J‘J’/)/U./' v o >
)
2
T

L AL P A R S

S

p - v 5
-—-—-—____* 14 . ex
T . " - N

S LT T — — = P I e i - i h )

00000712 |
5 Chotes (factits £ ~Santes
= |

20¢ . Comihoeck ¢;m927

o




Hob 5

- : T e ——
et e R o R R e e e
Y e i ‘gffa-.%s. N
N atss SENE U ARRA

00000713

1Y

[

(=3

g €

=

i

& \\

€

LS &

——

V4




- ¥
"""

3ol




——— s R R PR o B s o OB e e TR

T ey —
i W T S S RTII SRS e , ai_ee, wpen wapmn

TR e MR . A ) i

S e . .

A et v e s o

R i .

ANV

RAAN

N

00000715

AAN

e

e

NN

€

‘
-

- -

T ol T = T e e oo Py - e




Yobk

00000716

.
-
-
o
.
- .
~
N '
N
™
——— =
"~ = . e
- yr . > —
T ower g e

il%:!!gsn;m.’im& .Ww.,




B it e et e e e m—— . - - I

B [ i |
w—

— e T S T T ey ey ey gy I&?l‘ :

W TV - R o i .

\ ! ~t ,« 4 4*_
\ - P , an
\ 44 1 ' ; !
= g ~
, e
\ - ~ > - = . NG
i \ = . F L
% - | TR :
' v
! oy 4 A - - R <o -h/
\ “ B B ® ~ ' CoNyL < o
v : - ! ; (e (ame) N -
. - SRR =
e | : —
\ - . - . i . VT, | o
: ] _
\ B - s ) - . o \L
\ 3 “ Lo - ; TSN
\‘ ) B = , , ¥ T~

e

e . ..i.....n.....l
e e e e e S SO SN RS Sre R ¥ o D ek AR PO RN SN WIS
o SR RSN e s - . .




3bb$~

EEFETrryo= —eey

. e . ~ _ B aprer—— : — o *

o " . T k .
i RRITE g R - . |

. &,
e - S TN

e A i g D - = = R AEEE— 5.
A r Caum o = = T T T B -,
S Tweia mmsme o T S A R : €« g

R i

N T

T T p— >

o ey




Jobi

00000713

s T -

(-2 SR DO DA DA

\N\\‘&\\L&W\\ 0

—

ettty e A R

8 ——

[P o wa S

L

-
i
i
i
]
i
&
iy
it
¥

e - ———————— v v




3

=

/.44

[
s
s
e
L
9%
U
54
[P
oo
‘f
oo
o
w
P
PE
4‘
a’i\

2000

i ! C C
N j’fb (/A»/ ﬂ

| 5 000
l / 00720
e

x (o
W B E:IA/LL/VLM
MNo Zx\/l‘:—?j;’:‘ﬁ




s S LMD Vet o

%Eﬁ-!&‘?is i 0G0 P

T i - o

o e S oo W i o

ity 4105 9 tstioi - > 7 T SRR B WS BART LD Wl

00000721

1B

o Rpmi e R L BRI =

-

N

Y

(z €3 (% (B 1 (% (P

& (&

3

AMAMAMANN

4

~ e .




f——a. - !
66?471' Cont /st e r e/ Cend [ous
N fwj)’/b’ - CusTrius

‘ W iisfe fale
;,";_i Lo _EF Z:/ZZ %« éi%mw
i - e

é&fr/ﬂr 4% oz A %
A s Bows (7 nnes77es
of o Gy G of Rrenany
2\090.‘

-/44/ P




| 00000723

'{/p rs» »
= 72 e r re rs rsr> re [* 52 g2 [z 12 = rev

h ‘\\\xm\\\\\\n\“\ ’

?







Y79

S \\\\\\\ﬁi\\\\\\\\\\

{é TR T 11)1130‘

e md.nml p‘\"‘&dl\\ . \\; ““ e
L o el i 2
§
¢

S A b 0 e A O

ST i g

e

e -

5. %]

;
%
N



‘[

00000726




5%

ZANIMIITERRIRNT S,
A I LI T BT BV BT IS By BT R ) BV ) B B B BT BT T 3$. &

He. . 2. op

@F;”_(_ m 4_// e M#:m.
it e

% 4
w2

...

L R

|

——

@) Lodlfstecs
:ﬁgﬁi} LR

2 B

9 Mol b ot

| & %%%ﬁj:;A¥%'%h Fnssiic

—

T oy A “"t‘“‘ﬁﬁ \s\'.

A

: 52200000

$
¢ ¥




LL bbb

L

L%

00000728

s 25 RN TR T Y g n ~ s il i o -
e e e e e e R, et AT eI

" ——— e

B O O O N T . ol Y




A——

£
S
-

.o b

o0 WIS

o

S LA ATV I T B B R Y - |

" / :
R
S 5.y

¥

‘

¢

{

o

e

¢
~
{~

.
)
r, ! l
N R ;oA =
R et AT

Oy
~ .

62200000 |




3bgo

00000720 |




A%

e

RO W L PPN 9 . s,

:
.
B
B
.
X

Y1

-
AR

PO O0G0E 2o N &
“aw | F 3




AR

L_d

00000732

s e oo o

Al L

PRI

———— . o ‘l
———— - i i atstsshing

""i

v

—




2Lk

4
i
<

ARAARN

SN

(N 4

A \SUXY







3615

{ 00000735

b

C

§

! |
! t

|

!

.
4

Sy

-

“\ZANNNNNA

ﬁgnrér!rlr!r’féffb””b"lf!,?[are-.——

>




AR




HbvF

A s e+t s S T T R S R S, S I S e

e o i <

[T ST TR
t‘ SR 2 e i_.xfyéii%rirﬁiis.lllllllgﬂu'...' 4//%‘

PHMELS B v bt Gl b ot o <o ey e

,_

N

-7
: &
= ¥
= - . \_.
= 7
y
-7




Ak

00000738

-
(o ooy
20 St vt

i




00000739

= S s e =k e

T,

[P

N i

FC T

N

Q\M :

A NSO







]

Y T Y NN (»

A A

G W

E B e

&




00000742




; — M
: o

z

-~ \\\\\\\\M\\\\i\‘i\i\\\\}\

4

i
- -




ANSNNSSSSNSSS ’W

> b kb b Y

-

H 00000744




00000745




1

000007486




00000747

C 1

‘7;-11,‘-\..‘».,.~ |

’ e } 3
R ’W/%’ N
j R !

"’Vﬂ? ‘_>—\n/7,, R éﬁ

E 3

B s e ”22’7 -

. Ng.»/;y-, 777

l
~'M»’T,,;-7T'A7'(
AR

i gy, .

sy o

L AR TEICE

\\\‘\\\V\\\\L\\\\\\\\\ '

..... -'I/

S S

| G




. Bl

e

L
'

S A -

00000748




/':’(I ~, 1/, 4

W ' R

!
A :
’1’3’\",/4_5 FANN :
A /4 .
] ¢ Va7 S ¥
&2 e




o

00000759

5

e — e

- o g
B A it o
pavm e n g L St PO N P




ok

s 8

.
.

B SR N

_\‘\\\_.\\\\'\‘\&

NN R

}
i

2

e em .

15400000




J:‘-:_'( " —sRRETe= R _—
k- w@iiii--ii-----iiil

P 2 S
‘,.‘ﬂ. JEEEERLELES CF B R ooE e
i~

¢ |

00000752




ey

00000753

T e ey e

N

'

. b e il

S8

'

|
{

S S

U A 3 o




S NP

e g et

oy Uy o ]

00000754




/, \\\\\\\\\‘“\\\\\\‘\\\

\.

S N SRR

3

S:.\R“ ¥

20 /55

ol 7 jc&% %/%

“HoMm - 5

Sl EREANG Sn o

AR .

e e e e o e e T

5400000 i




Hdob

1

_Wj‘ 00000758 : ;

G TVeCEEEREEERRE R L L ER EET AN
n 3 |
|

T o o e e =

A
1’




5,

o,

>

3
H

4{ ]

45
e

|
|
|
I

L
$
*

5o
{
i

i
]
J

i
I
[

1
L

- -

P Ll :

£6L00000

/. ZBRRASSSS S SSSSSSSSSON
STy 4‘:]:)”:“’.“‘:’}*

C




ul-i------------ ! /.R
_‘S'evasg, FEEELERREEELESESEFSK

i "
i} :
! A
— /""/"L\—‘v i 4
il
21 00000758 - g
1 1

e



579

u

4

I B O

s

y

e




>

60000769

-t

¥
i /\QL P DR A A R A R R R IR SV T R

LR L sfin-‘---’ii--ﬁiﬂ‘--- \

L R I

oEile

S8
)
SSE AN



00000761

B}

EERENENEIE SERC L R S S it SN W ¥ o




Sha

A

00000762




Ih3

Ml s e edteemr —— - =t il SH o ST tieentO A Famt> s SOOI € ¢ v 0 g

oMy

¢

!
Y.

.

D

MAOSN

A e e e o .

OB

RIS ‘."\"‘\“ -" R . om e e




Ny

.)ll.----------nﬁii
e b EEEEES L LSS S 5 8

00000764




3hS

00000765

1 A L R o . Bk - = A ———— - 2 e o = ot et e P

wa LR PN o we b /-’//ﬂ ,

]

iy

s
td

S SNt

/4

v

b
N

5o AP S




3 Hb




00000767

L .

‘7,!]“ [ oo

. A

VoY




3hE

L

'f:§§ l....-.ﬁ--ﬂnﬁﬁﬁﬂ
S e 3 BEBEEEELEL LB ETE

e OV

00000768




00000769

,

‘

{

t !
H

i

ft ’

1‘; . ; » .

! ..ot |

T AR




— 3%

ne

j‘? § O FE - | ‘AA

e ' : '
T XL CESEELELEEEELE LR




s o

00000771




A5

LA

s

SIS
_ B

P T T T pe————
5

=y~
5

T

raf

00000779




00000773

/t'npg’.yy.-,,,,

P




|

%;@1

@4
|
i\ ‘]
‘t\
\l
!
r! N
(]
_'
i ,
i
¥ |

g ey

\;\g*&e&sssagggggn
ll--ﬁ--ﬁﬁ----nﬁ--'-m,_
55!,2',2-‘,3,1,5.821,-;255“ ..

00000774




3309

B ! 3N i e
/C»
=
75
2.
/
i ) |
~ Yoy Chloul _
/4 i
(= /“LJ ;
/ / / ”‘,
- /)
L J%CIL\,;;
/

GLL00000




IR




L4 r L -

rrrrr
R . . _ N




338

A

-y

»
—

NN,

SN

NN

NN

ZQEE!EEEEE

Fond : =
—

:raqiii----i----mn-.n
»
<«

5
; g .
ol {

2

00000775




00000779

-

P

|

“\\&\x&&&};\\\\\\\\ ’

W




2330

i

fmrremm—— YD

i L - = /(
3 \\ ;26555522;‘%;’;4;4;4;-5'--’4—455,

0000075,




S Y
PPNy
< /727£ vy, S5 —
j,;z/@\j/;[@ d[)””hzl?r}c‘: //7/‘
9\“3\//;7?%/

C
STIY 3 xu ALY, 2/((?

2?Wﬁb
w77 3% —

B - et R
e o - ~ s .

(s}
=

(swev]

>

v . <
77‘?/574;/734 '2 —_/}77 9 /157?/7 —_— g ]
oo

: /7»7%77 Iy F&

posste
o ol
a')mxj\/i
1 7777 /7? B2V %

‘ 27 -
| [ohe
|

N 7«[\/777’) IVJ "
!v

W—J 79} 51%‘-@1.7}\ _
‘l 5

Gui prrny b G545 =
A gread o
gl ”””) V) N (3

; / 13207

'r»;\p wﬁm/ Jred = Zv«uzf?ﬂ WT

A v 477}7[3\/ (\7

v wmﬂj?]/\// : 7@7 g
L ( i
LDO/ [}’) » ;

\\\3\\3\ SNNNNN NN \\\\\\







iy i Pl [

#
eyve I
A ilf ——— e T -

S

— T

GOGH0783

A

=
bt

i
a




A}l

A

00000784

BNREEEES e a——— A
-
L Rerdad

i
|
3




3335




L B

I 00000786

; :sa!iiiﬁ------------—i '/«
ﬁ?elﬁ&&!lfczczccoccgzzﬁ \




37 2)

4’ \\\\\\\\\\m\\\\\\\

T PP 1

-’

/”//' %/ /Mq» \\meﬂ %

,Sz.l ) o —

!It'} @uw 7 #147 By ‘)/%/
l |
§ |

(8200000 o




I R

e T e I A

,\
AR AR T

treereerec

.%’17}7 ~
!1-17 L»—)«L,M
L2 F YL A '

e o Il ” b s i ;
e ST e s ()

Y2pr7 Lo
/}l-:zw;
7?,7’
717‘{7’;""’4 by’r/ +
’ZC@C' /
-
71277:’77‘ bt 1295 7 17p o by 2 1\9/4
Z;mr?/ R dat s ’&"i ;/_/_,

Vdsied W/M;Jp Rl

?/ )/"‘):?} ?'?“f‘”?

T :} 7
1? Y oF /"7,74.—,\,,1}(7’

W.'},J_,7?$ —
vigp s sl
AT 7719‘%1.//
’\47‘?1]‘1} > S

VI Ly PR AV

00000788

>3 717.]’1’71 :’j'j)l {‘ T )'2:](, 22—
S ‘_S—/ ]7] _74

?1/'2")7‘77‘“ 773’“4 \’)(-) y/‘7/7< /&ﬂ 4)')4/77?7 7;,—\7,, 7’/,’/

F72741 — 77w2/71%xt,g] @
oy s

-‘ )/f[/ N T *s%? —* ym_ '

5 ﬂ 377} 9[/7 3*’

heain g pO 2T oD 29

T )7;‘7; —»\Z/’) ISR by c> e v(w?,« .
. / - (“)ﬁ?"n2277

e ) )

(s

‘:)_;)_,‘\/ ?/7 /?7 W\fj\ -;[? o2 )?,H'/ (J};

——————

~g 7 ] {
7//‘/ )27//" T+
L

pm—
3/7/77,? ~L_7‘7_711"37 '—) ﬁ“"/ ZK/ (‘7//7L

rem e ) 27 707 - 7+/

,/4/ [ Y e
BEStactaL/ */7 ,,;/r))f'v bvﬂry/;v/ - %m
g 3Rl (o7 Lv”—r/ [, 2o A0 )_(-v‘z 7J) y,mW7/7 —




"’?Wﬂ’%&fﬂwy TR T 2w 2ery

k.;

Fearaf o

s > -—éﬂ-,c_,/ R N 5 (A
=7 :"j;jﬁ L/V) et wn?z ,«;«/ J
//’/74—02/"‘[5)1/2/ -._»-7»-;,,7 o7 T o e
> am"m?\ }»777 o
/73/ 1

Y//?“ ,'7;7( 21~ zﬁvcyﬂ ~ Lo ) :ﬂ)T
f7 751 > 2P0 e

et .
vavué;ﬂfﬂjf\ faj; ER Jyﬂi mi:;r
/7S T el %/@

o,y 2 00000789

4_’/?3/21,7 _/7;72,7 j,/ﬂa;/? /’41/§Z
‘f.‘a77/77 42/ij ‘1;7)»,(, 7)/)]«7—.(

gy D20 7 >/‘JW 73), %)
J o Sevmwesadg o
m{?{% ,)}77, ?7 77/5:—;77 ’)7;\//

;;7 ;/; T Ty ELAR Crﬁ/f// . .. o~
P T Doz 2 v R AN i
J ),x R 55\ ??/7 > YT %/

— =3/ (,[Q_(/,/
/M——-‘;’;— /

W_'Z\ ?’7\4/7 g2 /" —/‘ \LD’HV}/ @

j!77L
N / /’77 )%/ /7“3’\7”7?;"7
g v g g [0
é:g.1‘2A

Kis 7y ZDt/wﬂﬁ/ 9k

%7 TIIE A S Ao ) o1 Zn/m?m Ln
' b4 1

A~ TS oo

e

Bj,,ﬂl/ - ?7%479‘;):2»»9\ “MQ)F‘,\

LR TR U N T

"""""""

’rvv..

\\\\\\\\\\\\V\\\\\\\&

Vvl ‘w‘““/f 95
N ) -

- <

/




2




1

y oo
W
|

-
S U IR N




sEAt

66400000

2223333438887 g T

D T
e _ - : — = % 4
= = man =T = = e 3 A




L 00000793

'fzf,’

| ;‘;

11 R » r&
\\\\3\\\\“\\\\\\\\\\\

|
|

L R e o




00000794




¥ i)

[




00000796 |
; ,.




97

-‘\ v e
24 4 2z s
G i G 2 Z 2 2 4 a4 L

Al Ut 4 4] g

) M /\{ZLJ;~ s Lﬂv%Q/ /j}zagm(‘@/ﬁ/%) ’

S e e g Ty

-
'

'hﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁn

/\/{m&_@yﬁ- et /’W/Mtv/?égg/_; ]

YA

£6400000




TR

100000798

1




3 HG

(‘\

A 3
&

4 2
*“ : E
“ : =

NN\N

-

SN

3

0
.

7

~anry

s/

)
i
]E
|







335 |




FHH

‘Number Item Content

4 Map Hand-drawn map with the title "Air Line Direction to
Sierra Leone, Lower Bambara and Dodo Chiefdom,
Kenema District Root "A" (SIC).
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5 Map Hand-drawn map with the title "Air Line Direction to

Sierra Leone, Lower Bambra and Dodo Chiefdom,
Kenema District. Root "B" Direction (SIC).
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6

Memo

CDF Internal Memo from "National Director of War
and Operations, Moinina Fofana to National
Coordinator CDF, dated 19 March 2001.




A1)

FROM: The National Director of War and Operations,
Civil Defence Forces (3LJ
42 Mahei Boima Road - Bo.

™ The National Coordinator C.D.F. {SL) 00000804

C/o Ministry of Defence,
State Avenue - Freetown.

SUB: APPOINTMENT
19th March, 2001,
I wish tc write on the above topic and te inform you that I have

appointed Mr. Hassan H. Feika as General Battalion Commander, for
Pujehun District.

By copy of this letter, all Paramount Chiefs in Pujehun District and
C.D.F. (SL) Administrator for Pujenun Distrist are informed
accordingly.

- All Paramount Chiefs - Pujehun District.

District Admin. - Fujehun District

- Director Personiel - Freetown

.
*

- " Lagistics - "

- N.P.R.C. - Freetown
- Directer of Intelligence u//

-~ Director of Welfare
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7

Letter

Letter from Wellington, J.O., Permanent Secretary,
Office of the President, to the "Head of CDF”, dated
30 October 2000.

X



Tel: 228710/229799

Raf:

MPA/SN3

Thet

el ve

Ministry of Presideuntial idadas,

State House
T'reetown
Sierra Leone

S0M Oclobher 2000
T " R RNV AR IVENIN

GOVERNMENT OF SIERRA LINONE Qe R

Q RS AR
O/%/CQ O/ Z/L(?/ / ”(Z:j[,JCJ/'LZ Sl e j\ \4(_1 } G

/7’///7 /[/ pﬂ@

fead of the CDIF

/o Mmlsmf ol Defence

00000807

Stater Terrace
IFreetown

Dear Sir

refer

RE: STATE SECURITY CONCERNS

[ write under the instructions of the Minister of State, Presidential AlTairs to

to the above subject and to subpend extracts of a letter rom the Chiel ol Civil

Alffairs, United Nations Mission in Sierra Leone (UNAMSIL) as follows:

“In both the Secretary General of the United Nations’ latest report on Sierra lLeone
and the Security Council’s resolution 1321 (2000), it was decided, amongst otliers:

- to assist in coordination with the Government of Sierra Leone, through the presence
of UNAMSIL and within the framework of its mandate, the efforts of the
Government to extend state authority, restore law and order and further stabilise the

' situation throughout the country;

- within its capabilities and areas of deployment, to afford protection to civilians under

threat of physical violence.

In the discharge of its mandate, UNAMSIL has been made aware of reports of
misconduct, some severe from CDF and SLA. These misconducts inciude incidents of rape,
looting, arbitrary detentions, summary execution, extortion of money and personal
belongings, theft of vehicles and the continued recruitment of children for the purpose of
fighting.

To further assist the Government of Sierra Leone to restore flaw and order and

promote respect of human rights by all, 4. mlsconduct comynittee has been established within
LA

UNAMSIL, The conunittee would very much appreciate mesting with vour representation or,
——
if you deem it necessary, with your honourable self to discuss the above nmientioned allegations

and examine ways to improve internal disciplinary measures of the SLA and CDF.”
W"
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In the circumstance, [lis Excelicncy the President of the RLPU ic of Sierry
Leone has advised that an urgent ieeting be held wi Thursda T R Gven ber, 200( at
. . . W
10 a.m. at the Lodge, Hill Station to discuss the issues raised.

Please endeavour to attend and on time.

Yo uyﬁ/fﬁitl}i.ldl\_/
o

,.ONQH‘

PERMANENT SECRETARY

Ce: The Minister of State, Presidential Affairs
The Secretary to the President
The Secretary to the Vice President
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8

Statement

Statement by Raffieu Bendu conceming alleged
crimes committed by Kamajors.
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{9

Statement

Statement dated 23 July 1998 by Salaymatu Bendu
concerning alleged crimes committed by Kamajors.
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10

Statement

Statement dated 23 July 1998 by Turay Mohamed
concerning alleged crimes committed by Kamajors.




SR
. A ) .

(}/» L | A el A g "/{/VJ\-OM ?{” M«i’ " = /g{&% AT

%. //Cf/? “_{:’.:chtf ) ,’. PR S /V‘”GL/IWI LT .

Dupins1s

. ’ . 4 / 5 c ’
/ZM“{A/L— A Mz@”’*f st T TR R O Coee 7 \/L_S/l,é

Ve

7 =
e Ji Q ~F A AT N PR

o

. / — - s
A cg Al L, A AT T

. “ S, ) s
m‘(:\/‘é/"\:;@“{; . '-g‘ ’/"./*:ﬂ/l/e"w/ V\:"'{: %_L/\/L(‘% (\-/O o ‘/‘M
‘ . . 1 ) v .
“V/(’Wz“ vz oA / \i’ A ool WV\_.@&Q——D
’
PRSP Ma) ( /Ca/g \/:/ /KA;“N?
— - ‘ 2 A : - P
él‘ G slecdoii ol UG e onalele e ce
Q/é ANTTTAARL A ;‘ﬁwy\m/ H /ég/ﬁgy{_ TN {“';f‘jc«/?:' Nfo\/éd_égu\,q,
.LV’T.”_/V\/&/L/VE_ /S/—O ORI Sy g &
Mﬁ ' AATE N L ﬂcf?/t_/i;( :(_ A./v\, /Q/x.e/\/\_j' &u\}/ﬁv\/&
W\O{/T./I/——L;JM/L - ;f\/t/ /<(M"‘_’:m fq/é ’%47/‘1»0 ‘/H(/,—Z JVL/\_&’
/X ﬁ@,\/v (/(,() C‘-U“;.;’{;\LZ/ il /(_/\/\/4/’— -4"’VV‘\—QEL A [?I/_%C
\ i Z/ I T e /m Ok/‘é - é{
/(}/C—i/b\/é— | \q A?:{\L‘/\J ; C/C~ j xz‘;ﬁ/ /é‘ —Z /ULQ, ﬂ\z&
(el Ao Lo
Ao L P 7
/ 3 T//L?ﬁ/\_i_,‘ /é/ \;5/ /‘/‘*/&‘
! 2 I A L ) B .
z&ck/(j 4_/—]0 A S %\, . A i/ —u‘-—aé% B il A

7’Z/LNWC_0</1 ;‘;ﬁ 9‘ / 3 & ; “Q /,M, e /Z-AS/f”?
- v 7
/LM\—\}— e e A s Vi .Q/Q—VQ ‘%/;L ' ) é}/{:{/
; - P .
J i ef for Ly ome T S,
; 7
0 ,
. C ‘ /
AP /s‘i%M:,«ﬂf {’/u»e/,“é{/m e W ,
% PSS ?@ﬁw% 12 ihi o d B
JE
"»".:)\4 ousp /A’()_ ]
- ; »c/t o ‘;—Jlf\_/”t /f{\b\;\/ Aol /d L f\j
Vel et /,77«.1/;( @LL’&C/ r eI 4

o ® dl (A . / Q/t_ . v
AN = W e E A el Ay R S e
A0 . 7
ISP

N [P A B & Uy N ) o B

i . g : LE e
Vﬁg, ) ) J.C%‘«’ ol AP /L\J—%\/L,c/ﬁ\, (Wg{\/

T s e S e 26
b QX..’L

</’<®“M"j”€"%3 o ‘ F =D 72 s /g*‘z/“u-”/é‘/\fll /';i%

A 4 : g
ﬂ %b,urz::\_i/\/ﬁ 7

v 7o a
{ e i LT
ro = =

/ot 2 Nv\«béc/l/b -
' ‘ 4 W"T oo . e
AT uf—g,g_c < - /x%\/i,‘/./— /Q)C Z —L’/f‘i Sl A F/L-Qﬂ VO e i‘v
7 ;

V ( ry . P Mvo O 7 A~ 7/ -

o]
LR :j Pf"h v, p e ) ™



373

r"’/"i’ua é—'u/f, b) ANT S 4’} MV&V <o /747. e "7; St ’
o) ,ﬂ/&ﬂv/w#\ﬁ Wl Flz 7’/% L /‘N\'ZO w\ﬂ@ [k—‘i/v»\«

L/&‘ukAj é.\/L /ﬁ\,L @C AL AN t(y(, %«.,\‘ > /}L,LJEL AL s Y

Z“QZL% **e/“‘j“ /\X/CL @vvt&\ ; »VVL /Lcu;ﬂva/CZ. e

/‘/\,év/\,k—oj{— ‘C(/WW\? /CT% /< % m QQixg\
/C/ /LC/\/C/K//@‘?\— 4_5:? A Aall A Ao § OW‘LVL,Q ,
&Rn/fs Z —< /w7¢ Ce_ AML IO TV LTl

/Zj' q// ”_') ~) A./VQ//ML /"‘/"\”"/tw/'t J"/L_/Q/gl // "C
G A=A J Tt ﬁﬂ\f /“/K"(’ T - ‘ -:«(,}» A&g}w\_

D D et e the
, ]/7‘/>—w %jx, /ch/v—uz,w /M'V\_,

C1 3,45& e -
! 'JLO& s e A e b /,{ e v(ﬁ‘/&/\,

AT PE 3’47/
,&‘mK VNA/(L ‘\\J( P RS\ i O IR e :Ok /&(A )(V‘/L&—C/K %&gb@'\/\/ﬁ" .
N

&W /AQA,«_,O{/‘\/\/T O~ /l\ﬂb\_}/e/uuc/\ ) /J //;/'_L*w D /C,?
£ JOD A ees Al T e T

MW%
oo~ 'va - 7%5,7&&0& UL*pr—vw M b e e AT Ths

Q,\_,Q/V /Wv ?CQ/CAWCL‘ ‘v /f’zJ wa,\ ,&/C/é Ji.O‘"”%},

/ /f\_/MC/ f/..&/\/ /\.A/Q,Q_ A /ZZ\_Q ‘A-/”"V‘/\LQ_/

1

l

%L,/ﬁul/ /L&%—f L. o /Jvk A WA /Z%;«;Cz
by ;—?["L?‘i W(/(,z_% 744“ —H T C/(/UM

PR e S

LA ST

/W / ‘ ;;u ) -
‘ S i x/ZM VPV;\ /Wum,@z_ j’wf

z{, AT i P gf’u o b
/A‘—-Q— MW\/ 4(/& /&ﬂ‘(’& ["\[/ /ga/vlcv\w S (/*’Q_ C«,\Jg‘ -
C/C/(/Lw AT “U”@“’“”” e /2 e A S

UA'{/‘;’ T @/é ”Mz?f e ‘\. / ;[‘/:f—y\ A %7?71;!’_’7‘
Y
ey sy low s ot Sl Dy \J@_UJL\/C

/i/yv Py W{‘/ »§ ATy AR e g S Qﬂ&f* Al {L‘LQ_

C}Z{ Y ,_,/4!/‘“ ’W/L%l /}lﬂ ’ w\«@ /CL’Q/ i %w«a/& -
NS U bbb e ot

/JM¢({:Z/Q ol L /3 /le/cf‘ Ce . o lefl — M&

23/‘ ’7 o i(\_.f.,A_, ) 4—2/(4 /é‘\f/@ M /‘Léﬁ“— 1/(_/L,¢ —g /a_,._‘~</<_
/ Akfa/v::&/a/ a,o /Z‘/‘J’*— Sl A {i"' Lo Bage e JSVRQ C’B
M /é_/e/‘,\dﬂ G L;’ «:;L/CQ/Q :

74 ﬂm L2 _&-(/ng /f -
AN Gy To o, ’(,
/ VV7

/



[ 2) S ok

//A_/:— /’%L'L/'é’ AA \fJA/u;M /C’]L-— C’;X.. T ALk AL {)"L /‘wa\y’(_‘ .

/wwx L e ?—u'u . /i-/u;m_ S P
/L> — Nt ,&-— VCw)Z_, /’\/C-v—// S A i <4

Z} R - . PIP _/v_j

,;/\&vtf_/\, ) \_ﬁ AT D v /k_v\\_wé_&‘ P /O AN —{/\/“ ) 77 /‘;Z, ,
L A /gv{/f;»-‘/c/\/\. ’/ZM/ ’ 4 Q

B 7 -\_)Z_A«_, T e T ﬂ/\& '
/LCW»—)O Ao %mfm/'% 671‘ /\L_/ AEM;Z
[ o
&iwuuut uo ,v_vw w“‘i/é‘we_/\//vq,,/ o~
O o AR /éu/ A /\X,K,V(_/L )fJMMC
,?A/ c/\.p» Oﬁo\/} K e S st&f i “~

| e 1 3 v TV Tt g b
A A g 2 o A3 vu{, ,/L;”uré 1’“}

. ) o .
/‘&/Q/F‘LC_ /*‘()-/1#(/t } /")“O 4“4—”' //—-r_/e_«,\ L i e L . I
PEITSR SN = A A T e sl
SR — 6wwm;€;¢

A e -1
\//m/mk/\x_;«, Mhﬁ/; 4,4/ . /g/é(]ﬁt*cﬁ . (j

.

Lot | .
‘/LJZI‘Q*‘L. /\f& & /""M B R S IS N / a & J_/',Olf; P
e

Q/ xL/\g M JQ/VW\_OV\/\S C;\/(/w_‘ /‘/D Qé/\,p /’_LM;_ M

7
,{CZQQ/‘% A T e (/_-O“ «j /J&J’ AL J\._ /&MQ /%4(/()\
/A y /
/{,Jr;@ /{JM&W o ‘%;"(__— [ g,:*edt_,o\,(— e /‘-/L/QL"‘\”_ /Zi-u, R

14
B/C’(-‘ S nd L P B ﬂx‘/ Lq,k\}/@('/é A A C«.l/ = CA,A Lo~ j
. s / ¢ )
‘g ¢ ﬁ e LR el Aty PO S B LAL.JZ._-/‘, /\‘.'/o
—~C L

Tos oo e e AR s/&%f o begpsect plan
/4,07, l‘ KLé/@ﬂiwa B (L T /‘—Q/Q/QM/L&‘L_
y?g»\/f/——gﬁm/ PR /AAWZ/\, /f(k/v- /;;- 3:4%«,064,\/

/

PR T /W\«G/xi\_:/ - V&sz’"& AL 'ZQ‘N. 2 O&M;;’j.
v

Tleia S cai A z /,/i/(/ T . i% }}%%% 1 7

FLiarTlovama




1393

20000818




Number

tem

.Content -

11

Statement

Statement dated 16 April 1999 by Turay Idrissa
concerning an incident involving alleged crimes
committed by Kamajors.
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12

Statement

Two pages of a statement by Will Junisa regarding
allegations of crimes committed by Kamajors
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13

Statement

Statement by Konnie Donald Tom, CDF Chiefdom
Ground Commander, about the alleged attacks by
Kamajors.




-a

,/u’/—% ME . DondALD 757 1L0 N NAE

£ - P 0o AL (s
NN AESS] /\//'..‘,"7\/1-;7 TernicTront, S Fi= e

e

! 1
@ fé o ,éf*/"“ Z ’>/,7/)/
LRete Greond T &0
cTiont s Con

pee s Il

D R e S

e Lo _/""’/‘

T e
' gien Sactiec Lg g &0

F' 4 A Ca g

AR I SO
\l /(,f(/zﬂ /(/t/(/ % ,e-,» /

Frrt s sl (/

/ s ra

. o

Eey -

U/ [ /)/7/1/ (,/\efu_v b‘-”:’
yirss gpcéwﬂy/b /G yya,_wyo/
P 3 4L hJ"&{:W

poponsLs

/),F C;,L//é"/:l\:’w éf@of.:,\/) @ Pt i

‘ ”75/{\"6&:& L

.

. o e

S DE RV T R
oy 0

y

1 ”/,f e C%,%w et

R S ] J:” A,/M}
~
o 4/;/,

ﬁ/ -

ook

\';'4«_




Gttt

fl/‘;/uvf) /,_/QC/‘, AT
e éf

Yy /
ASLLE . f _v;'/é.{

’-‘Jl(/

/*,r gm /na




e

Stimi Dy 07O Er I8,/ f"‘?;z“

WM £ /W ot /u: g /ﬁ;y/_,,.:'-—
: ar "7 gl e

. 2
24 P

.o e gL
LA i (e e Spe AT & / /

E:
P L2 il




4 A
Sty O AT ey
/ // # oy
/Khﬂ«ra/‘/‘w [ et
-2 ITITTY .

"/“JSLMI\J




Number Item . | Content

e R

14 Statements Collection of four statements (8 pages in total) made
by Turay Issa; Conteh Boizy; Turay Imurana
(Murana); Kelfala Woodie respectively.
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Statement

Statement of Bendu Brima alleging attacks by
Kamajors on him and his family in July 1998.
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List

Canfent

Distribution list for initiators for July 1998.
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pey -*’fj
e DISTRIBUTION LIST FOR INITIATORS (CDF/SL FOR G {3 %§ %i {’% &‘ i} %
THE MONTH OF
NO. | DISTRICT NAME OF INITIATOR QTY. OF CASH FOR DATE RECEIVED | SIGNED
RICE CONDIMENTS
(BAGS)

1 Bo Dr. Alieu Kondewa 10 Lel00,000
High Priest

2 Bo Dr. Jibao 9 80000
Deputy High Priest

3 Kenema Kamoh Brima Bangura 8 80000

4 Bo Madam Munda Fortune 7 60000

5 Bo Janig Lahai Bangura 7 60000

6 Kenema Yankuba Vandi 7 60,000
(Sacramento)

7. Kenema Lahai Massaquoi 5 50,000

8. Kenema Kamoh Muniru Sandy 6 60,000

9. " Kamoh M. Kelfala 5 50,000

10. " Kamoh Alieu Sesay 5 50,000

11. " Kamoh Alieu Kowah 4 40,000

12. Bo Dauda koroma 5 50,000 )

13. Kenema Fodei Karamoh Koroma 5 50,000

{4 Bo Kamoh B. Lukullay 5 50,000

|5 Bo Sheku Kailie Bombowai 5 50,000

16 Bo Kamoeh Mustapha Idriss 5 50,000




399

NG HSTRICT NAME OF INITIATOR QUY . OF CASH TFOR DATE RECEWEL SIGNED
RICE CONDIEMNTS
(BAGS)
17 Ho Mohamed 8. Sherif? 2 20,000
For Family
TOTAL 100 Lel.000.000
REMARKS: This is to certify that we the above signed Initiators have received in full our allocated supply for the month of Neala 1998

from our respective District Administrators and therefore append our signatures or Right Thumb Prints.

Delivered by

Francis M. Lume

National Logistics Officer - CDF

o - .
Witnessed by:s\&:l:ﬁw! R CEE NG T Approved by:

Charles S.E. Moiwo

National P.R.O. - CDF/SL

s ek 4G
P S

National Coordinator/CDF *

apnpegn

Director General of Defence
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17 Letter Letter written by Charles S.E. Moiwo, National

P.R.O. CDF/SL, to authorities including Kondewa,
dated 13 July 2000.
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From:. The N.P.R.O, CDF/SL

To:  Th& District Admin. - Kosseh Hindowa "
High Priest CDF/SL - Dr. Alieu Kondowa 0 O O O O 8 J ﬂ
Director of Transport - Joseph Fefegula

13" July, 2000
Dear Sir,

This is to inform you that we saw a letter from Rtd. CPO M.S. Dumbuya
poportedly written by Mamah Munda Fortune to him informing him about the seizure of
ECO 106 at Mandu by Kamajors denied her involvement in it (Mama Munda)

The high command of the CDF/SL and the Chief of Defence Staff Sierra Leone
Army met with the Vice President and a decision was reached that the CDF should send a
team of investigators to Bo to effect the following:-

(1)  To arrest the vehicle and it driver back to the Defence Headquarters
(DHQ) '

(2)  To invite Madam Munda Fortune to Freetown for further investigation.
3) You were also asked to investigate the actiwe of the driver of the said
vehicle and report to us.

(4)  In this regard you are asked to travel to Freetown with the team of
investigators to submit your report to the CDF/ SL High Command for
onward submission to Highhauthorities,

(5)  In the light of the above you are kindly asked to co-operate with the team
from DHQ accordingly.

Yout usual co-operation is highly solicited to reach the truth of this matter.

cc.  Vice President
“ Deputy Minister of Defence
“ Chief of Defence Staff { —
* Rtd C.P.O. M.S. Dumbuya
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Message

Paraphrase of coded message from District
Administrator CDF Moyamba, dated 12 May 2000,
regarding the capture of Songo area and request for
supplies. Contains handwritten notation from Hinga
Norman that arrangements for supplies should be
made.




GOBGOST! g

. //;
PARAPHRASE OF CODED MI:SSAGh 15T
‘ 1 *15",,/:’ 3 o o ‘/ .
FROM: DISTRICT ADMIN. C.D.F. MOYAMBA INFO:
TO: NATIONAL CO-ORDINATOR CDF/SL DATE RECEIVED: 12/5/2000
MIN. OF DEFENCE TIME RECEIVED: 0855 HRS

DATE DESPATCHED: 11/5/2000
TIME DESPATCHED: 1855 HRS.

’ P

\/

_

.«.4?‘ &cﬂ

CDF. OF 11/5/2000 () A COMBINED TEAM OF FIVE HUNDRED BO/MOYAMBA
KAMAJORS HAVE CAPTURED SONGO AREA THIS AM. () SAME WILL
ADVANCE ON MAKOLOH/FREETOWN HIGHWAY NEXT AM. ON THE RIGHT
FLANK FROM FREETOWN () LOGISTICS ARE URGENTLY NEEDED ()

PLEASE AIRLIFT THE FOLLOWING URGENTLY () FIFTY PACKETS TEN

BOXES SHOT-GUN CATRIDGES AND SEVEN THOUSAND ROUNDS NATO

AND TWO HUNDRED GALLONS OF DIESEL, FIFTY GALLONS PETROL, TWO
HUNDRED AND FIFTY BAGS OF RICE, AND ASSORTED DRUGS () ABOVE

LOGISTICS ALREADY WILL SEE US THROUGH TO FREETOWN (.) REGARDS
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Letter

Eugene Cowan’s "Petition for Assistance to Retrieve
Land Cruiser Vehicle Registration No. EL 15168”
sent to CDS 2 March 1999
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rhampion wund rompany Ltd
L4L9 siaka qtevens atreet
rreetown

aierra Leone
2nd March, 1999

To: The C,D.S
pefence Head nuarter
cockrill

rreetown

Sierra leone

near ecir

vy
4

PETTTION FOF ABZTSTAN
b

CEOTO BETREIVE LAND CRUSIHER VEMICLE
AEGISTRATION NO, 21 151

b - CCLOUR BIUE

with all due respect, I humbly submit to you a letter of
petition as refered to above.

8nthe 11th January, 1999, the above saié?vehicle was taken
g% Youyl ruilding nround by a xamaJjor wﬁose name is

Allieu tarawally who T made to understand is the Kamajor
Task rorce rommander. He first took this vehicle to
prookfields Hotel grounds where he is still steying , but
had since then changed the location of the vehicle.

we have met him personslly with 211 relevant documents to
substantiate our claim but to no avail and had even gone

to the extent to compenciate him for securing the vehicle
we 8t11l cannot get his cooperation.

In this regards cir, we are left with no other alternatime
than to forward his complain to higer authority.

vinally «ir, we kindly seek your utmost and timely
assistaince in other for us to retrive our vehicle,

Thanks for your cooperation in advance.

CC:

F.C
Force pProvo Mashall EUGENE COWAN
C.D.F '

H80b
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Letter

Petition sent by TF2-125 to Chief of Defence staff,
dated 28 February 1999. The petition was forwarded
to Deputy Defense Minister Hinga Norman with a 2
page cover letter by OC Medani, Commander for
Chief of Defense Staff, 3 March 1999.
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L SQERE.EEE\?ENS _ Mrs. Annie Campbel!
G 12A Upper Tengbeh Town
5 e r—— Freetown
i <3 - o [ [
g.z: ;:)AT YRR :ﬂ 28" February. 1999

The Chief of Defence Staff

Sierra LLeone Armed Forces _ O O O 0 0 8 7 8

Cockeriil
Frectown

Dear Sir,

REPORT OF LOTTING, MOLESTATION, AND GUNPOINT

On Friday, 26" February, 99 at 2 P.M., seven men came with a white van marked CDU
14 [BM Koribondu. At my compound gate they forced to open and came in saying our
buss sends us Hinga Norman to demand Mr. Claude Campbell’s Vehicles and should
handed to ECOMOG officials. When asked why? One of them shouted saying, “break
her feet then she will understand.” 1 was put under gunpoint with my ward Musa kargbo
and my sister Lucian Johnson. They demanded the vehicle key from us and took the
metallic blue Benz 300D V boot with registration number WU 33619. They 100k two
motor car batteries. one tapolin, some money, 10 gallons diesel, 5 spare tires, and tools
from all the five cars including the jerks. speakers from the white trackers 4 in number - 2
big and 2 small one new car battery and went away. One Tamba drove the car from
Brookfields Hotel. The matter was then reported to the nearest ECOMOG Otficers
checkpoint.

On Saturday. 10.30 a.m., another group came they were 10 in number with a CDF white
van and tld me they have got the repon so 1 should explain,.I did explamn and they askea
me W meet them at Brookfields hotel in half an hours time so [ went again 1o the
ECOMOG Officers at the check point and re-reported the matter. The ECOMOCG Oftficer
accompanied us 1o the Brookfields hotel and investigated but the hoss at rhe Kamajors
camp at Brookfields hotel told us that they did not sent any one on such vperation,

On our way we saw one of the men who came to our house in the morning and the
ECOMOG Officers interrogated him and he confessed that he only came with the boss
one Commander Alie who is now at a meeting but told us to go at 4 p.m. where
commander Ali will be available. He will be able to explain well. So we returned with
the ECOMOG Officers.

Before the 4 p.m. appointment they came back to the house in my absence and forced
their way through and met Lucian Johnson and took one white tracker jeep away and they
told Lucian to tell me about the keys for the other vehicles if not they will kill all of us.



Again at about 6,30 p.m., they came with one Sierra Leone Police jeep (blue) they were
ten in number with a middle age man. This man asked for the owner oi'the house and
about the vehicles. [ narrated everything to him that transpired between the previous
CDU groups and me. He told me they were investigating and he will relay all to the
higher authorities and he will bring back the answer to me. One of them told me that,
their boss has no vehicle if 1 could give one to them and he also asked mc about the
ducumnents of the vefucles. | told themn that I have sent them to be photo copied. He
advised me not 10 allow any body to demand anything here again. He promused to bring
security w me. Jhey inspected the other 3 vehicles and asked for the tyres and baneres.
I told them that the previous CDU have taken everything. They came with two
ECOMOG Officers. The ECOMOG Officers asked whether I have documents because
the white tracker 1s at Brookfields hotel and the metallic blue Benz is at Cockenl so that
they will claim the vehicles. They went away promising fo. come back on Sunday

afternoon with a word from their boss. 'J. O O O 0 O 8 / 9

At 6.45 a.m., on Sunday 28" February 199Y. I was asleep when a heavy noise woke me
up. I was kamajors at my two gates shouting for me to open or else they will kill us so |
sent for the gate key and my ward opened the gate and they rushed into my compound
surrounded the entire house. Some of them went upstairs, and they deployed themselves
all over the house inside the room. Kitchen ete threatening that I was keeping meetings
here as they were informed. | then responded that it is a black lie. as I am not even
interested about those things for we are refigious people and my husband s 1n problem
and sick and it is only three of us staying here so he said they will coinz 10: nie 1o pa s
explain and they want to stay here and they must see that they remove us nete ana kil
me. So they took my money for cement Le43,000, my sisters Le5,000. computers. fax
machines. Lype writer in its case, perfumes, electric tea kettle, jewlleries, watches.
spectacles. satellite parts from the satellite dish. shoes, vono mattress. and so masy other
items which | cannot name until such time and threatened to come back tor the vehicles.
One of them declared that it is wrong for the others to loot because they are sent to search
for ammunition and they threatened to put the house into flames it we don t leave the
house and they went at about 8.05 a.m. — I again reported at the ECOMOUG checkpomt
and they said fhey saw them but lied that they are commg here.

At the prescm time 1 feel threatened and unsafe and I humble request security in view of
the incessant threat of being shot by the kamajors and also to use your good otfices o
retricve my properties which have been looted fromfmy house.,

Yours faithfully,

A Caveephell

Mrs. Annie Campbell

Cec:
ECOMOG Commander
ECOMOG Freetown Garrison Commander

3909



- RESTRICTED

Armed Forces of the Republic of Sierra Leone
Cockerill North

Wilkinson Road
Freetown
DHQ/SL/107/2/A Tel: 230124
See Distribution Og March 1999

ALLEGATION OF LOOTING AND MOLESTATION
AT GUN POINT BY KAMAJORS

1. I am directed to forward to you for necessary action the attached petition from
Mrs Annie Campbell alleging repeated raid on her house, illegal confiscation of her
property and constant threat to her life and that of her family by individuals claiming
to be Kamajors. The CDS requesty that necessary investigation be carried out to
identify and punish the individuals concerned and measures put in place to forestall
further occurrence.

2. Above for information and further action please.

. /@W

OC MEDANI

Commander

for Chief of Defense Staff
Encl:

1. Copy of Mrs Annie Campbell petition
Distribution:

External
Action:

.. e
Hon Deputy Minister of Defense V”'

Information:
His Excellency, President, Commander-in-Chief

1
RESTRICTED

SE{el
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RESTRICTED

Vice President

National Security Adviser 0 O {) Q 0 8 7 Y

Deputy Inspector —General of Police

Internal:
Information:
File

2
RESTRICTED
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Document

Document signed by Mohamed Jalloh titled
“Kamajors Loot Private Dwelling House and shop at
Portee”.




'

KAMAZORS LOGT PRIVATE DWOLLING HOUSE AND SHOP AT
PORIEE, FREETOWN

On Vriday 15/10/99, three cars toadad with Famajors arived ot our shop at
RNo 70 Bai Bureh Road, Povtee, Wellington. They were led by their Contmande
one THOMAS DAVID LAMNGBA. They went out with the pretext that they weie
cleaning the city. Afler that. they told the Shop boy that they were going to occupy
the said premises, but that they shanld leave avithin 24 houwrs.

On Susday 177100799, they came wilh a retnforecd team o occupy the place.

They arrived in three vehicles: (1) Tovota Thilux (White) No.AACI30. (2) Landrover

Discovery and the said vehicle of then Leader THOMAS LANGBA a Peugeot
Familiar Car marked CDE bul they were resisted. Before feaving. they told us that
would come back on Monday.

The matler was then reported to the Kissy Dolice Station and the boys were
riven Medical Forms to report on the following day, which was on Monday.

On Monday the 18™ October. 1999, at about 1.30p.au. one Long DAF Truck
Reg. MNo.LLCO106, and one Land Cruiser CDF belonging to TUOMAS  DAVID
LANGBA arrived at the scene. Without asking anybody, they started  the looting
spree. They looted everything in the house and the shop, including a store rented to
one Nigerian businessman. Also, they robbed ftom lhr' Daily Cash Drawer the swin of
Le28,000,000/00. (Thirty-eight Million Leones), U.S.$16, 200 (Sixteen Theusand,
Two Hundred U5, Dollars) and Two Hundred dlld Fifty Thousand Guinea Frane
(13F250.000).

Aauther Shop Atendant MOTAMED JALLOH who recently acrived from
Guinea to seek a Visa to the ULGAL was seriously beatens He was strock with a sivk
on his nose ad side. e alsy had his wallet siatched Gom his pocket which confaned
VIS.S1.500 (One Thousand, Five Hundred US Dollars), Thirty Thouvsand Crimean
Franea, G 30000, Ten Thonsand Leonss (Lel0000) e Toat hit Wiist Svatch, his
deltesen his Slippers wwas taken by the Ramajors,

When he attempled (o get back his wallet, they dinggod Dim to the totlel ad
Beat him mercilessly, One of the Kanajor Conmanders said “Let us il biog this
hay is resisting us".

The maiter is still boing Tooked into by the Police while moses we sndepany
{o bocate, identity and prosecute the culpeits, Aboady some of the Famajors hase
Leen artested with sumie of the Tooted iiems in their custody,

Signed:
l\l()lIAMP D JALLOH
House Owner

3812
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Documents

Documents (5 pages in total) related to the beating of
Emmanuel] Fillie, British High Commissioner's
Driver, on 5 March 1999 by CDF Combatants.
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CIVIL DIFEMCE FORCIES COF SIsRiiA LIOHL

Lo SLLIGENCE 3RANCH 00000881

c/o Ministry of Defence
State Avenue,
Freetovn.

Sth tiarch, 1999,

FROM: DIRECYOR OF IMIZLLIGEICE COF(sL)
TU: THE NTLon L PRe CDE (SL)

AET: BEMTING O TR, SrpianUsL (ORTVER AT BRITISH
ALSE COHﬂlSdLON) 2Y C.0.0, COMBATANTS

On Fridav, 5th March, 1999, at about /.50 p. m., three Kamajors lLead

by Alpha H, Coker (alias Blood) arrested Ir, Emmanuel and his children
for breaking curfew at New England. In the oprocess, lir., Zmmanuel was
assaulted while ne was tryins to probect 213 children from harrassment.
Mr. Immanuel was however prcought to Brookfields Hotel where e was
nanded over to Mr, Stever 3owa th2 Operaticnal Comnnnder.

Pr. Sowa ont the other hand warned Mr. Zmamanuel tc obey the curfew as
it is through such chances the enemies would want to intiltrate. Also
he strictly wz®ned the tThrees Kamajors th=t C.D.F. should not be uzea
as a threat to the people of 3ierra Leomne.
FInDInGS:  In the process of this investisation it yas noted tAAt t"h
three (35) Aamajor , nanely: Alphe . Toker, Slyvanius dnA,kohﬁ“ad
all attached to tae Special Task Force heaaed'ﬁj w11i
2. Wl 't thiuzé;e01 1 task fefce boys do not gs to
icterloos. ~They are juskin Freetown, goxhg abou
vehlcies and other valuslle proaggé&gé_g onl %gopLe -Tkg
Y 3. That they are more linked to Sate “cur—ewxn Authoritie
ize. C.).F. They have no regard for pvcple llme Kenaie Torme, nem@;ai,
egcent Allie @ryJunior Farnwaliyw,
4, That in this metter, those named z2bove actually molested fmmanuel
even though Qﬁe matier was later amicably settled by Steven Sowa.

ASCOMsMy PT0HS: Thnat arrangement be made for the repatriation of
these special task force boys immediately to their original base at
Zimmi.,

2. That o letter of apology is sent to the High Commissions gar the
action of “boys 2bd also anundertaking be que that such will not
occur 1in future.

3.And severe punishment be taken against the three culprits for their
mispbehavi QuT .




S ECRET

CIVIL DEFENCE FORCES OF SIERRA LEONE
INTELLIGENCE BRANCH 00000882

¢6/0 Ministry of Defence
State Avenue,
Freatown,
9th Mareh. 1 999 »

FROM: DIRECTOR OF INTELLIGENCE CDF(SL)
TO: THE NATIONAL PRO CDF (SL)

REF: BEATING OF MR, EMMANUEL (DRIVER AT BRITISH
HIGH ON) BY C,D TANT

On Friday, 5th Maregh, 1999, at about 7,30 p.m., three Kamajors lead

by Alpha M, Coker (alias Blood) arrested Mr, Emmanuel and his children
for breaking curfew atiNew England, In the process, Mr, Emmanuel was
assaulted while he was trying to profect his children from harrassment,
Mr, Emmanuel was however brought to okfields Hotel where he was
handed ever to Mr., Steven Sowa the Operatiocnal Commander,

Mr, Sowa on the other hand warned Mr, Emmanuel to obey the curfew as
it is through such chances the enemies would want to infiltrate, Also
he strictly wiZned the three Kamajors that C,D.F. should not be used
as a threat to the people of Sierra Leone,

INGS3 In the process of this investigation it was noted that the
e Kamajors, namely: Alpha H, Coker, Slyvanus and Mohamed are
all attached to the Special Task Force headed by Allie Tarawalli, .
2. That thés<spescial force boys do not go to war front at
Waterleco, They are + in Freetown, going sbout commandeering
vehicles and other valuable properties from people.
3. That they are more linked to ECOMOG then to our own Authorities
i,e8, C,D,F, They have no regard for people like Kennie Torma, Kemokai,
except Allie or Juni®r Tarawally.
4, That in this metter, those named above actually molested Emmanuel
even though the matter was later amicably settled by Steven Sowa,

%ﬁggﬂugggg§§§§%1 That arrangement be made for the repatriation of
@58 Spec ask force boys immediately to their original base at
Zimmi.

2« That a éaé;er of apology is sent to the High Commission::Zor the
action of boys abd also a:undertaking be made that such will not
occur in future,

3.And severe punishment be takenaagainst the three culprits for their
misbehaviour,

g LJL/°§£§
uglstine Ngobie (o
of Intélysg

W% e 0N
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6 March 1999 British
High Commission
Freetown

The Hon

Captain H%nga Norman A 000 00 88 3

Deputy Minister of Defence

D&J S om M ,M,«t:f

- - Lwrite-to express my-serious.concern.about an incident which accurred at -
New England yesterday evening which involved my driver at the High Commission
Mr Emmanuel Fillie and his family and members of the C.D.F.

I attach for your information a report on the incident prepared by the Head of
my Close Protection Team Staff Sgt. Lamont.

It is particularly disturbing that this incident should take place just 2 days
after | had met the members of the C.D.F. with you at Brookfields. You will recall
that in the remarks which I addressed to the assembly, I reminded the C.D.F. that
n carrying out their important duties they should not adopt the method of "the
enemy" by harassing the people and violating their human rights. I appreciate the
difficult task which the membe;s/ of the C.D.F. are performing and I have been in the
forefront of wrying to obtain more support for them. However incidents such as
occurred last Friday make this more difficuit.

The name C.D.F. is well chosen and I suggest that there should be as much
emphasis oo the first word Civil as the other two, Defence Force.

Peter Penfold

BRITISH HIGH COMMISSIONER

d\«mfl

Attachment



Paul Lamont

Close Protection Team leader
British High Commission
Spur Road

Somtne 00000884
é Mar 99

British High Commissioner
Sir,

Incident involving Mr Emmanuel Fillie, British High Commissioner’s driver - S March
1999,

1. This report covers the details of an incident involving Mr Emmanuel Fillie, the British
High Commissioner’s driver and members of the Civil Defence Forces from the Brookfields
hotel, Freetown on 5 March 1999.

2. About 1915 hrs I received a telephone call at home from the British High Commission
night receptionist, informing me that Mr Emmanuel Fillie’s father had telephoned the High
Commission in a distressed state to inform us that his son (Emmanuel) had been arrested by
the Kamajors for violation of the curfew. I informed the residence security that I was going to
go to the Brookfields hotel to establish the details of the incident and to help facilitate Mr
Fillie’s release from arrest if needed.

3. About 1930 hrs as I approached the hotel a vehicle came out of the hotel car park.
This vehicle appeared to be full of Kamajors, they were sitting in the boot of the vehicle and
the back seat and front seats were also full. As I came level with this car one of my team
members signalled for the vehicle to stop as we were going to ask where Mr Fillie was. On
getting out to speak to the Kamajors we were met with shouts of ' we are Kamajors'. The
occupants of the car continued to shout this over and over again. As I was about to speak to
the Kamajors we noticed that Mr Fillie and his nephew Junior were in the back seat of the
vehicle. [ instructed Mr Fillie and his nephew to get out of the vehicle and to get inside our
vehicle. This they did. I also at the same time told the Kamajors that we were going to take
Mr Fillie home. The Kamajors agreed to this and then drove off.

4 We then drove Mr Fillie home, and once there I asked him the circumstances involving
his arrest. He informed me that various children including members of his own family, had
been late back from collecting water from the nearby stream. Apparently there had been no
water in the New England area that day. At around 1810 hours a group of Kamajors had made
the children sit down and were beating them. Mr Fillie went down to collect his children and
attempted to talk to the Kamajors to explain what had happened. They would not listen to him
and started to beat him with a rifle. One of the Kamajors fired his rifle three times into the air.

5. Mr Fillie stated that a scuffle then broke out between him and a member of the
Kamajors whilst he was trying to protect the children. The Kamajors continued to beat him on
the back of the legs and torso with rifle butts as well as kicking him. He was then thrown into

391K



00000885

the back of a vehicle with his nephew Junior and taken to the Brookfields hotel. Whilst this
was going on not only was Mr Fillie’s wife and child there but also his parents witnessed this
attack. One of the Kamajors who identified himself only as ‘Blood’ continuously asked him for
his 'calendar’ * ¥ which Mr Fillie stated that he had one in the house but that he did not carry
one with hit.

6. On reaching the hotel Mr Fillie was again kicked and rifle butted by the Kamajors. He
was also subjected to having the back of his ankles whipped with a blunt object. At the hotel
he was questioned a senior member of the CDF who identified himself as Stephen Sowa as to
where his ID card was. Mr Fillie then produced his ID card to verify he was who he said. It
was at this point that the Kamajor who had earlier asked him for his 'calendar ' stated that
Emmanuel was a liar, as when asked earlier he had not produced his 'calendar’ ( this Kamajor
obviously does not know the difference between an ID card and a calendar). Mr Fillie then
explained again what had happened, and also that he worked for the British High Commission.
It was at this point that the Kamajors started to apologise for the 'misunderstanding’ and they
offered to take Mr Fillie home and asked that he not tell anyone of the incident.

7. I have inspected the injuries to Mr Fillie and although I am not a Doctor, I can tell that
he has very bad bruising to both his ankles and to the rear of his legs. Emmanuel was in a very
distressed state when we took him from the vehicle. When we dropped him at his home Mrs
Fillie was there and she to was very distressed. It would appear that Mrs Fillie had also been
assaulted by the Kamajors as she had bruising to her arm where she had been struck by one of
the Kamajors.

8. This is an account of the events as related to me by Mr Fillie. I would like to also add
that the Kamajors who carried out this attack, again visited Mr Fillie’s home after we had left
again asking him not to mention to anyone what had happened.

3319
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Curriculum Vitae of Samuel Hinga Norman.
Contains biodata and other information about career
of Hinga Norman.
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NAME:
DATE OF BIRTH:

PLACE OF BIRTH:

NATIONALITY:

MARITAL STATUS:

EDUCATION:

WORK
EXPERIENCE:

A

CURRICULUM VITAE

SAMUEL HINGA NORMAN 00000886
1ST JANUARY, 1940

NGOLALA VILLAGE, MONGHERE, VALUNIA
CHIEFDOM, SOUTHERN PROVINCE

Sierra Leonean

Married with 6 children

Monghera Native Administration School - Talato

1947 - 1949

Military Elementary School - Murray Town
Barracks, Freetown 1949 - 1954

Military Secondary School (Boys Platoon) 1954-1958

Wireless Operator's Training Instructors
Course - Western Germany 1959-1960

Mons Officer Cadet School Aldershot - UK. 1966
UNICEF Farmers SUMMIT - Bo 1990

United Nations UNFPA Population Programme -
Freetown - 1995

Proliferation of small arms workshop -
Republic of South Africa - 1996

Joined the Sierra Leone Army

as a boy soldier - 1954-1972
Horton Investment Trust - 1975-1982
World Courier INC - 1982-1984
Director, Samco Int. - 1984-1988

[



00000887
APPOINTMENTS: Staff Officer, Military Headquarters - 1966
- ADC to H.E. The Governor General
State House - 1967
- Company Commander (Bravo Coy)
1 RSLR - 1967
- Adjutant 1 RSLR - 1968
- Manager, Horton Investment - 1978-1982
- Manager, World Courier Inc - 1982-1984
- Managing Director Samco Int. - 1984-1988
- Liaison Representative Government
of Sierra Leone and Valunia Chiefdlom - 1989
- Proprietor/Co-ordinator, Ngolala
Integral Development Project-Mongheri - 1989
- Regent Chief of Jaiama-Bongo - 1993
- Deputy Minister of Defence and Mimister
responsible for Internal Affairs - 1996
INTEREST:
- Agricultural Activities
- Politics
- Reading

AR
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Newsletter

Sierra Leonean Newsletter published by the
Movement for Restoration of Democracy in Sierra
Leone (MORDSIL), dated 11 August 1997.
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The Movement for the Restoration of Democracy in Sierra Leone (MORDSIL)

Volume I No.

August 11, 1997

Page 1

The Movement for the restoration of
democracy in Sierra Leone
{MORDSILY i3 a Non-aligned
Movement formed in the aftermath

of the May 25 coup that overthrew
the democratic government of Sierra
Leone. MORDSIL seeks to unite all
civil defence forces in Sierra Leone

and also to bring all diplomatic and
other pressure to bear on the AFRC
to stand down.

KAMAJORS EXHIBIT CAPTURED
WEAPONS AND PRISONERS

The Kamajors on August 6, 1997 displayed prisoners of
war, uniforms, arms and ammunition to foreign journalists
at Fairo which they captured from the combined forees of
the AFRC during the recent raid on Zimmi

Among the captured items were large quantities of single
barrel Shot guns, RPG bombs, Apple grenades, AK 47 and
38 rifles, Stick grenades, AK ammo, Cartridges, Military
uniforms and two prisoners. None of the Kamajors was
kilted

White - bearded Chiel Norman, the man behind the Kamajor
sucvesses  addressing Kamajors in the presence of  BBU
cuprespondent

Aware of the fact that a lot of lies have been propagated by
the AFRC about the current control of Bo Waterside and
Zimmi, MORDSIL wishes Sierra Leoneans to know the
truth, the whole truth and nothing else. In deed there was
battle at Bo Waterside but the AFRC was crushed
decisively and one of the councilmen, Sam Bockarie
{(Mosquito/RUF) was shot and faces the risk of amputation
- a taste of his own medicine. The Kamajors captured one
Toyota Hilux van with the CCSL seal,

)

After six vears of senseless rebel war that has ripped
our country apart and led to the needless deaths of
thousands of poor Sierra Leoneans, the “National
Army” has shamelessly closed ranks with the same
rebels against whom they allegedly fought in Kailahun
District up to the hour of the coup and turned their
guns af the Karnajors, Kapras and innocent tax payers
who pay for their up-keep. This strange relationship
between the partners of the AFRC have aptly proved
the ordinary Sierra Leonean right that, indeed | the
“National Army” are “Sobels”, a name ascribed to
them from the early davs of the rebel war

BIG DEMO AGAINST AFRC

Thousands of Sierra Leonean refugees in Liberia,
August 7, 1997, staged a big solidarity march on
Monrovia in support of the unconditional and
immediate reinstatement of President Tejan Kabbah
The demonstrators presented their pention to the
ECOMOG Field Commander for General Sam
Abacha, ECOWAS Chairman, and copied the wider
international community, appealing to them to use the
military option if it is the only way to force the
unacceptable, unpopular and the notorious regime out
of power.

According to the refugees spokesperson, the angry but
calm demonstrators had already packed their bags and
baggage in readiness for repatriation when the coup
took place. “This situation has greatly embarrassed us
and is causing us untold sufferings”. one refugee
remarked,

All the demonstrators carmied placards some of which
read thus: AFRC MUST GO NOW.... MR, AMBASSADOR
WHO DO YOU SERVE, DEMOCRACY OR JUNTA” MR
AMBASSADOR WHY YOUR FREQUENT VISIT TO
BOPOLU RU.F. CAMP? DOWN DOWN AFRC UP UP
Tepan Kabbab,

Aborve all efse.. Slevrg by




MORDSIL CALLS FOR IMMEDIATE
INTERVENTION

Following the collapsed negotiations in Abidjan, MORDSIL
joins the Security Council, ECOWAS, QAU and the
Commonwealth 10 condemn the junta’s continued
intransigence to unconditionally restore power to President
Tejan Kabba

However, Sierra  Leoneans  wview the International
Community stance of sanction as a double punishment for
the common man whose property including food stuff,
money, vehicle have been looted by the AFRC “Sobels”™
The AFRC “Sobel” are by no means bothered about the
sanction. Sanctions to them is viewed as a way of slowly
killing the people who have vowed not to be loyal to the
junta. MORDSIL is, however, worried about the AFRC
continuing violence, threats and genocide against the
civilians, foreign nationals and NGOs. We are therefore
calling on the OAU and ECOWAS to mandate an
immediate and decisive military intervention to bring the
junta down. This is the only way out of this quagmire.
Sierra Leoneans are impatiently awaiting ECOMOG w
intervene

Sierra Leoneans would not want a repetition of the Burundi
Scenario in Sierra Leone. When Pierra Buyoya overthrew
the Hutu-led-government a little over a year ago, all the
states of the Great Lake region denounced the coup and
resolved to solate that regime.  But when the coupists
maintained their grounds, sanctions were relaxed and
pormal trade and other international relations are now
booming while Buyoya entrenches himself in power. In fact
Buyoya was invited and ajtended the Harare OAU Summit
i July 1997 What do Johnny Koroma and his cronies care
if the entire nation is plunged in darkness or if people die
of diseases and starvation. As far as the rebel regime is
concerned the answer is NOTHING! They would not mind
1o wade through slaughter (o the throne.

&

H

LETTER TO SIERRA LEONE

EANS

&

Drear True Sierra Leoneans,

Let's congratulate owrselves for the sustained
resistance o the Jumta and all their empty jusufications.
Thanks also for ignoring Karefa - Smart, Abass Bunduy,
Pallo Bangura and their hikes.

MORDSIL is appealing to all Sierra Leoneans 1o
rrust their hopes and not their fears... for ours 15 a noble and
legitimate course. Please don't allow any trivaalities to
detract us because above all else.... Sierra Leone first. Let
no amount of threats and intimidation make vou

Succumb 1o the AFRC .
long, %,:‘ E?%?%} Shil

To you the RUF now the so called Peoples
Army (P.A) you stll have a package in Abidjan
Accord. Quit the junta now and spare yourselves and

the people of Sierra Leone another blood letting. If vou

persist, however, and cause any further force to be
used... then you stand the chance of losing the
demobilization and reintegration benefits

To you the men and women of the National
Army you still have an opportunity to swrender to
ECOMOG or join the Militia wing of MORDSIL. The

junta is illegal and the offices are only causing untold

hardship and death for their own selfish gains. In the
interest of your families, friends and your country
please stop destroying your father land for posterity
You are only making a bleak history for your own
generation.

Yours faithfully,
Mother Sierra Leone

STOP PRESS:

t. S. Bah and an unidentified Captain of 13"
Battalion , Kenema and 48 NCOs killed in
Zimmi Battle.

Dietails - next week

NEXT ISSUES

. MORDSIL meets President Tejan
Kabbah.

. Sterra Leone Ambassador to Libena
in dirty deals with EX-RUF
Combatants.

. MORDSIL. visits Refugees in

Guinea.

. Special tribute to the Late P.C.
Demby.

. War front this week.

Ao else. ..

Sterry Leowe
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25 Letter A letter written by J.S. Keifala, Secretary Eastern
Union, signed both by Keifala and Hinga Norman,
dated 17 March 1999.




IERRA LGy,

_ UNION «, J
2 STERN ¢ p

(/o 1.S. Keifala, Road Transport Authority, Kissy Road, Freetown |
ﬁ Tel:-250093/251056

The Resident Minister {} [j U {? { ; ‘j 3 i

Eastern Province
Kenema.

17" March 1999.

Dear Sir,

AUTHORITY TO PERFORM C.D.F INITIATION

The Eastern Union in consultation with the Deputy Minister of Defence have authorised
the undermentioned people viz:-

1. Mohamed Abdul-Rahman Kabba
2. Abu Bakarr Sherif

to perform the initiation of C.D.F.

All Paramount Chiefs and Local Authorities in the Eastern Province are therefore urged
to give them their fullest co-operation until further notice.

Yours faithfully,

F A S ) -

~—— Gpoort g
........................... S TN
a

J. S.Keifal
SECRETARY ...

Mr. Maigore C. Kallon
(Chairman Eastern Union)

333+
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Radio Message

Text of 3 radio messages sent from District Admin,
CDF, Bo June 1999.
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Situation Report

Copy of the text of a radio message (Situation
Report) sent Dist Admin CDF (SL) Headquarters
Pujehun in Zimmi to National Coordinator (Hinga
Norman) in October 1999.
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28 Radio Message Copy of the text of a radio message sent out by

National Director of Transport CDF (SL), 23 June
1999.
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29 Radio Message Text of a radio message sent from CDF Headquarters
Kenema to the national CDF Headquarters, Freetown

- attention National Director of War, 2 April 1999.
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Radio Message

Text of a radio message sent from CDF Headquarters

Bo - to the National Co-ordinator and info to Moinina
Fofana; dated 19 April 1999.
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Radio Message

Text of a radio message sent by Hinga Norman to
Dist Admin CDF (SL) Bo; dated 15 April 1999
regarding the raising of manpower.
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Radio Message Text of a radio message sent by Dist Admin Pujehun
CDF (SL) at Kenema sent to Dist. Admin Bo; dated
15 April 1999 asking for urgent provision of 500 men
for operational purposes.
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Letter

Letter written by Allieu Kondewa, sent from Civil
Defence HQ, Tihun Sogbini Chiefdom, Bonthe
District, dated 31 July 1997.




Cod g <ie

‘ﬂMM\.’Vb PQQLU@W ,

Cj LY'\ ; L;Lw\_ ﬁ
L”"f“"&.—zg, Lt EF A

C""‘w&_/Lt-O‘

-‘“—ﬁu«(‘ »(/Q.J

/\' C o Zgaig

'{Q'aiv' M&Q_ .

GOG00%0 4
g’,’_@:&_‘ ,ﬁ%w;_«:m,,;, # %3

[ Lhine Kowibani

5 '»&\—
, C
ON e ,a,m/vemc.-f:: :
37 /7 [ rag 5.

Lol gy T Qg'é~0”“f?'— ] %;m;u
—. C 7‘"««;1.}53 . Z -a;‘;LQ.. f»*.;—:i"a::
f:g j;ﬂ{ L2 = 10»}’/ f'éf ‘C&a&?wi

e TEL fleted
Lf:

i A~ el ﬁ, ‘l;"tu»("
. o
r)nﬂm f:‘:gz—-b 'A,.S‘L/LL DRy '&/J_,
Sk« S

= ceaie T T
/ \/chw_i/l-—;m ’*ﬁ;m‘l__ Q %ij {/M,
e Ll Talo /o

Ao TR

é/\&« S W L/Nf:%

L [os u_:C'L_ [’5{_&“ Lo~

G“;—Qd an i sis

L4

4,4@14 i 77'&-0 fzu.:ef'

() *'Gé: /"‘”ubbé_&n’\ é—mw’

i C_q_,b,g-\_ﬂ_,f: B - IS
e A o /,_Lﬂ“ d
|  Feetmora. T wrmnks TS mcawr
TR e Ten i feeies
J o

. &l o S, M -
4 /'\ r O r

o

— ﬁ' L ﬁwb% R B T o B



\
X i ame £ ' = L 3 '
“Fiiaan i f”‘s':r( ‘ ‘w‘\ s .-gm?z!:n’ -2 fh..z:w..g—, mQ P - B ,4:1#1«!—6&1’9 T

—r—nl

s 7VL,W L Sovodead, wll T wfr’igﬁlz&.c%wﬁ
a ) U D I\/E:E(S - ez ~e " )
i —Pers . o SN ”‘1775 werfe | et -gf—
o Ll g o o ol e ,.éq-my\ _places "CD O lfonn iiony
'Q'\L‘U\/’é:. YJ“L'{‘V ”“»‘—‘-—' - F:A*{?miﬁu. - e Z.—é.e T2 Tm—‘w “tap wnlis
& ; I+ ~ 2 Aer

b V\A.:j @-—vz.__\/-u__‘ v‘\__ /I,()C Tk e 4&: M F-NA_Q__

¢

,,Q,(__ Dt »mM(]_ ot “&var‘f’ ‘btf:) w AT

“ta ’T/ﬁ.g__ 2—(_&14,694&1\ ﬁ‘"‘"‘”-o

“{a»q«. Gl Fotect wa al/_




Number

Item

| C‘ontént i

34

Investigation Report

An investigation report by 15 ECOMOG Brigade
Kenema authored by Captain A. Abukakar and dated
20 December 1998. The report was forwarded to
Vice President, Republic of Sierra Leone, Kenema
under a cover letter signed by Major A. N. Nwadiaro
on 26 December 1998.




RESTRICTED 00000908

Headquarters
15 ECOMOG Brigade
NIGCON - ECOMCG
PMB 3
Reservatien Read
Kenemg

15EEDE/126/A Sierra Leesne
Tel: 215

The Heneurgble Vice President

Republic of Sierra Leone

KENEMA 26 Dec 98

Sir

HANDING OVER OF MR KBK MAGONA ~

NATIONAL TA§§ FORCE COMMANDER

CIVIL DEFENCE FORCE AND THE REPORT OF

INVESTIGATION CARRIED OUT ON HIS

ACTIVITIES IN KENEMA

Te I am directed te handever Mr. KBK Magena, the National Task Ferce

Cemmander, Civil Defence Ferce along with the repert of investigatien carried
out en his activities within and areund KENEMA fer yeur perusal and further
dispesal. I am further te inferm yeu that this Headquarters highly appreciates
your willingness te dispese of this matter in the best interest ef law abiding
and leyal citizens ef the Eastern Frevince whese security is eur parameunt

Conceril.

2. Thanks fer yeur fatherly cencern and ce-operatien.

Ma jer

fer Cemmander

Enclesure:

1e Report of Investigatien en the activities of Mr KBK Magena - 1 cepy.

Cepy to:

DHQ SL
HQ ETFSL
CDF Kenema

RESTRICTED
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1.  This is an iavestigation report carried cut on the activitias of Mr YIX Magona, Natiomal
Task Forxee Commander of CI¥, he bacame & thorn in the flesh of virtually svery pesee loving
irhabitant of kenewn snd emvirom. Apart dfom the terror he wnleashed on fmmooent citisens,
®r Magona held series of weetings vith some )hmajors (CDY) and fow lecals alwed at =
wndernining E0OMOC treops sotivitiss/eps in the Fastern province of Sierra leows. Ne was
arrested and detained om 14 Dee 98 in NG 15 ROOMOG BMde XP guanireon for leading & gramp of
irrate Jpunjors to fire swvewal vifle shots in Asnens tewan hat disfupted the peace enjeyed

for lomg by 2ll inbaditanis of Kenemn and emviron st the perisd vhen the security sitwatisn
beonms fragile,

ARG
2. The ain of this repert is to hillight on the aotivities of Mr KBK Magema of ODP S/L
hat led %0 his arrest and detainci.: at HQ 15 ECOMOG Bde geavdroom om 4 Dee 98,

GASE BISTORYs
3.  On 1 Des 98, Xr XK Vagems, Watiemsl Task Foree Commmader CIN/SL was arrested along
vith %98 of his close aldes in Nemsws fox firing several Ndlle shots which caused .
pandencnion (@hace). The preblem sterted by 1417002 Dec 98 wvhen Mr Magons led truck loaded
vith his Ksanjors loyaliss and storm Milton Maghaf Cosst place(a palm wine drinking joint)
located on koromah strest, Kemess under the pretext of arrestimg Camadi -~ Sative (Marijusnsh|
danlers. The rifles shots wvers precesedsd by fllegel search, | confussion, looting sad
foroceful seisure at gam peimt of people persomel effectes. Similarly, om returm to CIF I,
located off Hangah road Nenems, one of Mr Magoma's body guavds Moris Sessy of No 17 Nengeh
road Kensme fire) some shots simed Ot dispsssing the orowds. This ineveased the oonfussion
arcund the centre of the tevm. Some peepls vere said o heve started peeking their persomal
sffscts and ready to leave e towm 4@ meardy bushed for safety., ¥ o wag quoted as sayimg
* Leave them within 3 days I will turm the vhole town upside down™, Though Mr Magona Adenied
eeking suck stztement, 2lot of pecpls present vhile he ves making such & statenmt attosted
to ite Chief Xumoh Praimek (Semior Kamejor imitistor) imvited Mr Pegome to his house vhen he
leernt that it wne Mr Magons that lad the firfig in the towm dub Mr Magons turned dewm the
tovitation.
be The Commander, 1% BOOMOG Bde sent some soldiers to Enmch Braissh hewse to find out vho
vas firing, Kamoh Breimsh sent dack the soldfers to tell the Comsander that Mr Magons led
some kamnjors to raid an swyea snd they were responsidle for the firimg. The Commmnder sent
uoye txecpn led by the MM and arrosted Mr Magona, Vhen Mr Magoma was arrested alot of thing
he 1llegely collectsd, looted from his v1i.cth- verk eithér recovered from him directly or
REUSTPI™TD



— 00000905 °

from his ochorta. The itsus were immediately retumned to the owners who personally lodged
s complain 40 HQ 15 ECOMOG Bfle on him,

S5« Prior to the imoident of firimg on 1k Dec 98 wvhich led to the arrested, detentiom and
subsequent investigation, series of complains were msade %o HQ 15 ECOMOG Bde on Mr Msgona
by individeals and gremps insluding EOOMOG troops, offfedtls of CDF Renema district sid
law adbiding citizens in and around Xenema. Amoung other things, Mr Magona was accumsed of

oarPingout Yn lowful srrest detention, extoriion and wost cases kiling of inmocent people
who he tagged RUF/JUNTA colibbmwmtors at his 5S Camp (near Moa river bridge) detention
centre. The Chwmander 15 FCOMOG Bde salled a meeting with the CDF officials which Mr Magene
attended, Daring the weeting complains mmé allegations were made by ECOMOG duty officers/
poldiers on regular patrole in Kenema of using the Deputy Defemce Miniater's #ame or vehicle

to effect arrests and texrorised imnocent people during ocurfew hours uszing his Kemsajor
loyalies in the Task Porce (CDF). ™ae DUF Kenews District officials sccused hn;‘u-ng his
Task Force group to caumse confussion among them and put the mame of CIF to disremute. Mr
Magona brought the issuve of mishandling of catredges issued to CDF Kemgema District which
he was handling to silende the complaininge on the issus of unlswful srrests, harcsament
and all other forms of security breaches brought ageinst Mr Magona, It was decided that a
Board of Imquiry (BOI) involving CIF repredentatives be instituted to investigate the
watter, The BOI report which indicted Mr Magoma was sent to the UDF H( and no action was
taken agsinst him in oxder to forestall future ocourence,

6. GClossly wonitored astivities of Mr Magons showed that he crgenised series of meetings
vwith the Jamajor (CDF) loyml to him in Tsmeme and environ with the soul aim of subvertiig
FOOMOG activities in the Bnsterm Provinee of Sierra Lesone. He embarked on the seizure of
weapons from Kamajors other than the ones®PeTRting under -‘- Task Porce for reasdne best
known to him, The inforwation regarding the weeting amd seizure of weapons from kawajors
were confirmed Wy Chisf Xamch Byajmsh (the most senior kasajor initiator) in his statewent
as attached. Kamoh Braimeah said he warmed Mr Magoae to desist from holding meetings aimed
at sonfronting FCOMOC étherwise he was going to have it rough with him. Xamoh Braimah also
presented quantity 1 RPC tube and 1 GPMG (all serviceable) séézea from his kamsjors and
recovered from Megona‘'s resident while he is in ECOMOG custody. Though he denied meizing
weapons frow kems jors under Kamoh Braimeh, however on presentation of the sald weapons to
. by Kamoh Traimah, he went flat on ground pleading for forgiwveness.

FINDINGT 3

7. The following findings wers made out of the investigetion:

a. Mr KBK Magona is the GIF/. L Netional Task Force Commander based in Kenems,
b, Mr Mpgona took up abpointment asz the National Task Force Commander CDF/SL in

september 98 and uince then law abiding citezens in Kenema have seen no peidce,

cs Itm discovered that on 14 Dec 98, Mr Magona led a truck load of kamajors to and
reided & palmwine Joint along Korocwah street in Kenema where some shotr were released

2
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4. He admitted that he and his ksmajor growp fired shots on the air in order to stop
the fleeing pecple at the palwwine Joint,

e. He adhitted forveful eollsotion of personal effects and Marijuanah (Canabi-Sativa)
froam the paluwine Joint.

f. He however alleged that the firing at CDF office was made by Moris Sessay (hujor)
&« Moat of the items looted/foroeful collectéd by Magone were recovered from him and
his group and immediately handed over to the owners,

h, 'The two people he Arrested and detained on the allegation of dealing in the drug
ware handed over to the police for further action.

i. VMr Magona is Mende by tribe and Bails frem Pujehun in Gaura chiefdom of Kenema
District.

Jo FKamok Braimah confirmed that Mr Magone held series of wmeeting with kamajors loyal
to him and also seized weapoms from kamajors not opersting under him with soul aim of
sabotaging FCOMOCG operations and security set ups in and around Pastern Province of
Sierra Leone,

ke Accoding to Kamoch Byeimsah (Mr Magona's intiator) if Mr Magona contimue to remain
around Kemewa area, it will be @iffiocult for ECOMOG to operete smcocessfully,

1. Even though Mr Magona deniesd killing anybody at the 3§ Capp there are strong
evidences even within the kamajor groups that he committed the aat,

u, He also admitted seixzing weapons from kamajors and olaimed rewissuing ssme to
troops in the bush. However, a few weapons like RPG, GPMGC and AKX 58 fifle delonging
t0 Kamoh Ereisah kamajorswere recovered in his house.

ne Its discovered that kamajors operaiing under the .. cional CDF Task Fprce are bettex
arued and alvays protected fyom going to fight enemy at the front for redsom hest @
known to Mr Mmgona.

CCONCLUS IONs

8.

There iz no doubt that since the assumption of duty as National CIF¥ Task Force Commander

Mr Magona has wade life virtually miserable not only to law abidimg citisenas within Xemaws

and environ but also made operztions/security arrangements and coordinations Aiffioult to
hoth T and CDF in Bastewn Proving® yi,; resent uttermnoes notebly the illegal arrests,

detention, terrorism, seirure of weapons from kamajodks, misuszed of k~majods an? holding of
meetings Aimed at sabvotaging FCOMOG sacurity and operations are just = few to mention .
PTCOMMTITOATTICN e

Se

Its recommendsd that:

a. ¥Mr Magona be kept out of the scene until the war is over.

b. Master Moris Sessay and Mohawmmed Sallon who participated in the incident of 1§ Dee
98 and detained together with Mr Magona be released to the CDF immedintely,

e The rifles belonging to Mr Magonk and the two kamrjors detained with him be collected

back. 3
RSTRICTED
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de OTF authority should be advised to educate its wmewbers on the danger of firing

their vweapons in the town especially at this period of the year.
e, JTts 2lso opined that Mr Magona's private vehicle now in custody of the !COMOG

"™ 7L be handed over to CDF offially.

VAT AKAR
Capt
3IC

LA

Jistributions

Internal

Actions

HG 15 MCOMOC Bde
Informations

15 ECOMOG Bde Pro Pl

CDF Kenema ]).1.||t:t.'ic>'t‘..“‘é\\:\\\\______~

COF 26 Kenema
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Letter

Letter addressed to Allieu Kondewa from Sumaila
Turay-Jabbie of CDF, Bumpe Ngao Chiefdom, dated
13 December 1997.
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Item

Letter

: Content

Letter titled “From High Priest Dr. Allieu Kondewa
to Deputy Minister of Defences.”
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3
FROM HIGH PRIEST DR. ALLTIEU KONDEWA TO DEPUTY

MINISTER OF DEFENCES 00000913

I am very serry te explain myself te you as yeou were even net geing te
find me in Be teday,

I HIGH PRIEST DR ALLIEY KONDEWA, I am a werrier, all what has met me
in Be is te my surprise, Te start with I had a vehicle at BASE ZERQO which
was transperting my KAMAJORS .... fer leng, . it was in my pessessiomy in Be -
Mr Daramy Regers teld ECOMOG te take that Vehicle frem ge and infact erdered
the Arrest ef my beys and they were lecked up at Brigade Head- Quarters im a

guaid roem,

I went te ledge my cemplain te the Resident Minister Hen, Feday Sesay and
later ECOMOG broughté war Tanker te fight me fer the said Vehicle, I had
te held my peace and went back heme,

Since I never feared them, later Mr, Daramy teld me, he was geing te get
a Vehicle fer me but uptill new I have net ge# the Vehicle, Later he wrete me
a letter inviting me and when I turned up he again erdered that the Mercedes
Benz car be taken frem me ferth with,.

Further more, Mr Daramy gave me a Junta house at Be Ne2 where I was
Residingy, he has again driven me eut ef the heuse in my absence witheut even
given me lieu of netice, Again Sir, withingese .days , he has erdered
ECOMOG to m%ke a check peint nearer te my resident enly te preveke me, Infact
at night presently stenes are being dhrewn at my resident every mid night which
I am . » sure Mr Daramy Regers is creating all these preblems fer ne,

Oine .
Even yesterday I saw enle lady whe went te check me that she has her preperties
in the heuse I was residing which was a gress chick te my pesitien,

I knew frem start I am net a bad man but I have new suspected that there is

nebedy te talk for me in the S.L.P.P. Gevernment,

Even new, I have dispatched my families whe are travelling en feet te my heme
Talia Yerbece. Se, I have knewn that yeu breught me ta Be anly te disgrace

me but Ged will decide, I knew t what I have dene fer the Kamajers,. Se

the % that gave me the miracle will alse be the %:f that will help me in the

whele situatien,

May @ed bless us in the servitves of the natiens

.

HIGH PRIEST DR. ALLIEU
K KONDEWA
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Letter

Letter sent from "Death Squad Unit, Tisana”, signed
by Bob Tucker and addressed to Dear Chief.
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Passport

Sierra Leone Passport Number SO05865, issued in
the name of Samuel Hinga Norman.
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32 pages.
Ce passeport contient
32 pages.

SERVICE PASSPORT
PASSEPORT DE SERVICE

"REPUBLIC OF
SIERRA LEONE

No durasserorr | $ 005885

NaME oF searer ) JTIR - . ORIMUEL HINGR
NOM DU TITULAIRE f Norman .

00000917

PASSPORT

These are to request and require in the name

of the President of the Repub//'c of Sierra

. {Maidsn name)

ACCOMPANIED BY HIS WIFE s

ACCOMPAGNE DE SA FEMME
PASS'ORT CONTROL OFFICEH (Neé)
Gi FREETOWN, gienas 1LFONE
rven at e and by chlldron
2"“ e SO f
NATIONAL STATUS NATIONALITE

this .. ..o . T2 day of

CTTIZEN OF THE REPOBLIC OF
SIERRA LEONE AND THE
COMMONWEALTH
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DESCRIPTION — SIGNALEMENT

Bearer—Titulaire Wife—Femme

Profession |FRRMUR /ReErEMT,
Profession

Place and date

of birth SVPONGHERE ... |. .
Lieu et date 1. 1. 40

de naissance

Residence § . PR LEONE

Résidence

Height 2 2 Bu D in ot in

Taille
Colour of eyes | D/BROWN |
Couleur des yeux

Colour of hair
Coufeur des cheveux

Special peculiarities | = ——
Signes particuliers

CHILDREN — ENFANTS

Date of birth-Date de naissance Sex-Sexe

Name-Nom

of Bearer

Usual Signature )
o~
Signature 4

Loyl
e
R O
3 i’i!&«-, i%
du Titulaire

¥

: PR - o

Usual Signature

of Wite_
Signature

de sa Femme -

Bearer
(Titulaire)

Wife
(Femme)

2y L s e ’ o XY [ R 2
. . » ' : »
é L Y Al >3 20 o ide
13 . ’ PR [ [3 4
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3
A
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COUNTRIES FOR WHICH THIS PASSPORT IS VALID

PAYS POUR LESQUELS CE PASSEPORT

EST VALABLE

- 00200921

snd Subjeot te any visa or otner

“-gntry regulations of countrieg troy

Visited

The validity of this passport expires:

Ce passeport expire le:

M . /TIRY .

unless renewed.
3 moins de renouvellement.

ol S EREETOWN .
délivré a

date gfzm , /IRy

date

- 2000

RENEWALS
RENOUVELLEMENTS

00000929

OBSERVATIONS

NOT VALID FOR TRAVEL TO, OR THROUGH,
COUNTRIES FOR WHICH A MILITARY, CR
CONTROL COMMISSION, OR OTHER SPECIAL
PERMITIS REQUIRED, UNLESS SUCH PERMIT

WO FURTHER tNUOK \tMEN] AS TO THE\
| VALIDITY OF THIS PASSPORT ~HGULD 8B

MADE WITHOUT PRIOR REFERENCE TO
THE PRINCIPAL IMMIGRATION OFFICER
FREETOWN, SIERRA LEOQWNE

LSRN e o AINED, . R

k|
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NOTES

CURRENCY AUTHORISATIONS

1. Sierra Leone passports are issued and renewed by the competent
suthorities |n Siera Leone and by the Dy ic Missions and C
of Sierra Leone abroad to which application should be msde. Passporis
shouid not ba sent from one country to another by post.

000009473

2. Thay sre avaitable for five vears in the first instance unless otherwise
stated, and may be renewad for 8 further consecutive period of five yesn
from the date of expiry provided the tota) period of validity of ten years
from the original date is not excesded. The fee for renewal is Le. 4,00,
Passports are not valid beyond ten years from the original date of issue. if at
any tima the passport contains no further space for visas, a new Passport
must be obtsined.

3. They are only availabie for travel to the countries named on page 4.
but may be for ittonal ies. The ion of 8 passport
30 andorsed does not axempt the holder from compliance with any immigra-
tion ragutations in force in the territories named or from the necessity of
b obtaining a visa or permit where required. Pessports endorsed as valid for
the British Ci sre 8iso ilable for ing 10 tertitory
undet British protection of trusteeship.

REGISTRATION AT CONSULATES ASBROAD

Simrrs Leone titizens who are resident abroad should st the esriest
opportunity register their names and at the nearsst Diph i
Mission or Consulate of Sierra Leone. Failurs to do 80 may in & period of
emergency resuit in difficulty or detay in sccording them the assistance and
protection to which they ste entitlsd. Chsnges of address or deperture
from the country thould also be notified to the Mission or Consulate.

CAUTION

This passpart ramains the proparty of the Government of Sierra Leane snd
may be withdrawn at any time.

1tis 2 valuable document and should not be shared in any way ot alfowed
1o pras into the possession of an unauthorised parson. If lost or destroyad,
tha fact and should be i distaly reported to the Passport
Office. Fraatown, or the Siarra Laone Mistion or Consulate and to the Jocal
potice. New passports can only be issusd in such casss, sfter exbaustive
enquiries.
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39 Memo Memo from the Commander in Chief (SLCDF) to the
Honourable Chief Sam Hinga Norman dated 23
November 1997 titled “enlistment of executive
members of zone II front line, assault rifles and shot-
guns in possession.”
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40 Memo Memo from the Secretary General SLCDF, Abu

Konuwa, to Hinga Norman dated 16 November 1997,
titled “Situation Reports as at 16 November 1997,
and the violation of the Conakry Peace Accord by
Both the AFRC and the RUF”.
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Letter

'Coil_lten\i:«

Letter from the Administrative Officer,
South/Western region, Bonthe Moyamba District,
dated 18 November 1997, titled “Administrative and
War Report on the A trip to Mano Dasse.”
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Letter

Letter from Mustapha S. Sankoh, Deputy Director
and Admin Officer War Council, from the SLCDF
South/Western Region, Bonthe Moyamba District
dated 22 November 1997 to the Head Office, Talia
Town Bonthe District, titled “Administrative and
War Report within Bonthe and Moyamba District.”
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